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Performance Report 
 

Overview of performance 
 

Chief Executive’s statement 
 

In last year’s Chief Executive’s statement, I wrote 
that the COVID-19 pandemic would be with us for 
some time to come, and this has indeed been the 
case. That said, I don’t think any of us could have 
anticipated the impact that this virus would have on 
our lives. This has been felt by all of us in different 
ways both personally and from a work perspective 
and I am grateful, as I write this statement, that we 
are at last seeing positive recovery from the 
challenges this has brought. 

 
Colleagues and volunteers right across our services 
have worked tirelessly since the start of the pandemic to deliver safe and high-quality care 
to our patients and I am hugely grateful to each one of them. Our staff did this whilst 
responding to new and rapidly changing safety protocols and, most importantly whilst 
looking after each other through some of the most challenging times our service has faced. 

 
Delivering our patient services 
Personal protective equipment, enhanced cleaning, changing guidance, operational 
pressures, deployment into different roles, swabbing and testing, rolling out vaccines and 
managing outbreaks have pushed our logistical capability and operating model to new levels 
in 2020/21. 

 
Our Emergency Operations Centres underwent significant change to respond to the 
challenges of the pandemic, both in respect of coping with increased call volumes, which 
impacted on our call answer performance, and on managing the risks to staff of working 
together in this environment. 

 

We took several measures including expanding the floor space, enabling forty clinicians to 
work at home, reducing footfall and movement between sites, increased cleaning, 
promotion of lateral flow testing and staggering breaktimes. We also set up our own 
polymerase chain reaction testing for all Emergency Operations Centre staff to quickly 
manage outbreaks. 

 

Across the year it has been a challenge to consistently achieve our emergency response 
times, and, although we have achieved an improved position across all response categories 
compared to the previous year we recognise that some patients waited a long time and that 
is something we must continue to address. Given the challenges faced by the service, it is 
however a significant achievement to have improved our overall response times year on 
year. People often think of our blue light ambulances when they think of us, but our 
Scheduled Care colleagues have also worked tirelessly to respond to our patients and 
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adhere to strict safety and cleaning protocols. Their support to our emergency response has 
been and continues to be exceptional. Consistent with the previous year I am very pleased 
to report that we fully met the target for the most life-threatening emergencies (Category 1) 
within the timeframes set. 

 

Increased funding through the pandemic enabled us to achieve the optimal vehicle hours 
required to meet demand, through the commissioning of third-party provider support. 
Whilst at times this was impacted by high COVID-related sickness, it demonstrated that 
when sickness reduced the higher vehicle hours had a hugely positive impact on our ability 
to deliver a more responsive service to patients. 

 

Scheduled Care overall has 
continued to perform strongly 
during the year. These services 
have played a critical role in 
freeing up capacity across our local 
health system by supporting 
hospitals with timely patient 
discharges, as well as supporting 
our Unscheduled Care colleagues 
in times of pressure. Scheduled 
Care will be playing a pivotal role 
in keeping the health system 
moving in 2021/22 as provider 
colleagues focus on the restoration 
of elective and cancer care services. 

 
I am very conscious that colleagues across all of our services came to work despite feeling 
anxious for themselves and their loved ones and they focussed on delivering our services to 
patients, showing commitment and compassion for doing the right thing for their patients 
and colleagues. My gratitude to our teams for this selfless and compassionate behaviour is 
hard to describe. 

 

Our vehicles and vehicle cleanliness are fundamental to the delivery of our patient-facing 
services. Colleagues at our subsidiary company, North East Ambulance Service Unified 
Solutions (NEASUS), have worked diligently to ensure that our crews had the right number 
of vehicles available each day during the pandemic, with the added challenge of conducting 
enhanced cleaning on the vehicles. I am delighted that NEASUS ended the year with the 
securing of a major service contract for a private company. NEASUS directly supports 
patient services through the reinvestment of any profits into patient care and this is a major 
step for the future. 

 
Whilst not directly patient-facing, our corporate staff have also made a significant 
contribution to support our front-line efforts this year, with many stepping well outside of 
their comfort zones to help out. This includes securing and distributing our personal, 
protective equipment, monitoring infection, prevention and control / staff safety measures, 
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upgrading our technology infrastructure, administering staff testing and vaccinations and for 
those with a clinical background directly responding to patients. 

 

We also received significant support from an army of volunteers during 2020/21. This 
included our existing, valued volunteer base, as well as a large number of members of the 
public who volunteered with us as part of our pandemic response. We are extremely 
grateful to you all. 

 
Looking after our people 
Looking after the welfare, wellbeing and safety of our colleagues has been of paramount 
importance over the last year. It was important that we secured sufficient stocks of 
personal, protective equipment and introduced enhanced cleaning and safety measures 
across all environments to protect our staff. 

 
We strongly encouraged colleagues to work from home where possible to reduce their own 
risk and the risk to those colleagues who needed to be office-based. We realised this would 
bring its own challenges and we were very conscious of the need to provide support to our 
shielding staff. We worked in collaboration with our fantastic staff networks to reach out to 
staff who may be more vulnerable and in need of additional assistance. 

 

We recognise too that the pandemic has had an impact on mental as well as physical 
wellbeing. We launched our ‘Help Hub’ in April 2020 which provides staff with access to 
wellbeing support and have regularly sought feedback from staff through surveys to check 
that the offerings meet their needs. We are extremely grateful to our occupational health 
team who have worked tirelessly to make sure the care and support we were able to offer 
our staff was as wide ranging as possible. 

 
We have made every effort to secure 
COVID vaccinations for all of our staff 
across the region through close working 
with our partners and by running our own 
vaccination clinics. I am pleased to report 
that by 31 March 2021 84% of our 
substantive staff had received their first 
vaccination and over 40% had received 
their second dose. 

 

Looking after our people features heavily in 
our new strategy and we will be supporting 
colleagues through a recovery period over 
the next twelve months. 

 
Our staff networks have added a real level of additional support to staff and provided a safe 
place for colleagues to discuss the issues they have faced over the year. It has been an 
especially challenging year for these networks as we were unable to meet in person, but our 
network leaders and team pulled out all of the virtual stops they could to ensure support 
was maintained. 
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Financial performance 
It has certainly been a unique year in respect of NHS finances with a different regime in 
place during the pandemic. As outlined in the previous section, the additional funding that 
this brought enabled us to increase our vehicle hours, which was significant in respect of 
front-line delivery. We ended the year on a small surplus against our breakeven control 
total. 

 
Innovation and service enhancement 
Whilst the pandemic has presented many challenges, it also presented opportunities for 
improvements and we have seen a significant number of service enhancements and 
innovations which have been brought about by the need to work in a different way. 

 

This has included enabling 
home working for our clinical 
advisors and senior clinicians 
from the Clinical Assessment 
Service; through NHS111 
providing patients with arrival 
slots into emergency 
departments; introducing video 
consultations; and changing our 
working practices to enable 
colleagues to work effectively 
and more flexibly from home. 

 
The report contains many more examples of innovations which ultimately enable us to be 
responsive to our patients in this changed environment. 

 
Partnership working 
This year really brought home to me the real partnership approach that is in place across 
the North East and Cumbria. Our partners across the Integrated Care System in hospitals, 
community providers, primary care, mental health and across the wider social care system 
came together to offer support to each other right across our communities. We saw the 
development of our new Provider Collaborative in the region and as we move into the 
coming year, we continue to work with our partners to shape the future of our Integrated 
Care System. 

 
The importance of our services in supporting the functioning of the whole health system has 
never been clearer. The national 111 First campaign encourages patients to use 111 before 
self-presenting to urgent or emergency care. As the NHS111 provider for the region, we 
played an integral role in this and through national funding we were able to expand our 
service to support anticipated increased call demand. 

 

We also played a vital role in the region’s vaccination programme. Our vaccination team 
worked collaboratively with partners to deliver vaccinations to the public across core sites 
such as the Centre for Life and Nightingale Hospital. 
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Looking ahead 
As I write this statement, restrictions are beginning to ease, and the vaccination programme 
nationally is continuing to progress well. Whilst I am cautiously optimistic about the future, 
we are not being complacent, and we will continue to adhere to the highest standards of 
safety for our patients and our staff. 

 

Importantly, our Board of Directors approved the Trust’s new five-year strategy in March 
2021 and I am looking forward to working with colleagues and stakeholders to develop the 
detailed plans that will take us from strength to strength. We are very clear that patients are 
at the heart of our new strategy and we will, as we develop the steps to bring our strategy 
to life, maintain our strong focus on our people, our partnership, our performance and on 
ensuring we provide the highest levels of quality and safety. 

 
It is really an understatement to say that 2020/21 has been a challenging year for us all. I am 
immeasurably proud of our staff, NEASUS colleagues and our valued volunteers for their 
hard-work, dedication, compassion and care under very difficult circumstances. My sincere 
thanks also go to our partners and the general public, who have provided the Trust with 
incredible support and encouragement during this pandemic. 

 

Thank You All 

 

Helen Ray 
Chief Executive 
10 June 2021 
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About us – our history and purpose 
The North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust (the Trust or NEAS) was authorised 
as a Foundation Trust in November 2011 and we are one of ten ambulance services in 
England, covering an area of around 3,230 square miles. We serve a population of more 
than 2.71 million people and employ more than 2,700 staff in addition to over 300 valued 
volunteers. 

 

Our mission is to provide safe, effective and responsive care for all, and our vision is to 
deliver an unmatched quality of care. Our values of respect, compassion, pride, making a 
difference, striving for excellence and innovation and taking responsibility and being 
accountable are at the heart of everything we do. 

 
About us – our activities 
We operate across Northumberland, Tyne and Wear, County Durham, Darlington and 
Teesside. We provide an Unscheduled Care service to respond to 999 calls (the emergency 
element of our services), and a Scheduled Care service which provides pre-planned non- 
emergency transport for patients in the region (our patient transport service). 

 

Our Unscheduled and Scheduled 
Care services work in partnership, 
enabling us to more effectively 
match patient acuity to the skills 
of our staff with the aim of 
enhancing clinical outcomes and 
improving patient experience. 
Our front-line services are 
delivered from 55 stations across 
the North East region. 

 
We also deliver specialist 
response services through our 
Hazardous Area Response Team (HART). HART units are made up of specially trained 
paramedics who deal with major incidents. Our HART team are highly trained to operate in 
the hot-zone of challenging incidents, including chemical incidents, terrorist attacks, major 
collisions, water operations, difficult extrications and many more. HART units play a 
significant role in our emergency preparedness, resilience and response (EPPR) and you can 
find out more about this later in the report. 

 

We have delivered the NHS111 service across the region since 2013. The service operates 24 
hours a day, seven days a week, helping patients who need medical help fast but do not 
need to call 999. The service has developed over the years to provide patients with greater 
access to a range of clinicians for advice and support. We have been able to demonstrate 
how this service can run alongside the 999 service to provide a seamless access point for 
patients. The NHS111 service also incorporates our Clinical Assessment Service (CAS), 
bringing together a range of clinicians with differing specialities such as advanced 
practitioners, GPs and pharmacists to help patients receive the most appropriate care for 
their needs. 
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We are proud that our NHS111 service and CAS were at the forefront of the response to the 
COVID-19 pandemic during 2020/21, with patients being encouraged to think ‘111 first’ 
before self-presenting at an urgent or emergency care treatment centre. 

 

We also provide out-of-hours services in parts of the region in conjunction with local 
partners, as well as GP home visiting and community paramedic services to support local 
communities. 

 
In addition to our front-line services, the 
Trust wholly owns its subsidiary North East 
Ambulance Service Unified Solutions 
(NEASUS), a fleet services and fleet 
management company. NEASUS is 
contracted by the Trust to maintain, fit, 
service, clean and repair Trust vehicles. 
NEASUS provided the Trust with significant 
support during the year in respect of 
enhanced cleaning of our vehicles, helping to 
maintain a safe and responsive service for 
our patients. 

 
[cs ;’dc 

 

About us – our strategy and strategic 
priorities 
We have continued to focus on our three strategic aims as set out in our five-year strategy 
for 2015 to 2020: 

➢ Do what we do well – achieve sustainable service delivery and ongoing 
improvements, whilst protecting best practice and quality standards through 
optimum use of all available resources. 

➢ Look after our employees – nurture a consistent culture of compassion that values 
and supports employees to deliver exceptional care to patients. 

➢ Develop new ways of working – drive and shape the future of urgent and 
emergency care services through effective integration and collaboration. 

 

Due to the need to prioritise our response to the pandemic during 2020/21 the corporate 
priorities and underpinning sub-objectives for 2019/20 were retained for 2020/21. 

 

➢ Improving Quality and Safety – delivering the key milestones in the Quality 
Strategy; improving our clinical outcomes; improving our safety culture; and driving 
forward improvements against the Care Quality Commission’s Fundamental 
Standards on the route from ‘good’ to ‘outstanding’. 

➢ Workforce and Investors in People – developing and delivering the workforce 
strategy; strengthening organisational health and wellbeing; and developing and 
delivering leadership and progression opportunities. 

➢ Clinical Care and Transport – delivering transformation in the Unscheduled Care 
service; and undertaking a full review of the Scheduled Care service. 
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➢ NHS111 and Clinical Assessment Service – developing and delivering the Integrated 
Urgent Care (IUC) operational model; development of the North East Provider 
Alliance; and development of clinical modelling. 

➢ Communications and Engagement – driving forwards improvements in internal 
communications; launching the Trust’s new intranet; and enhancing equality and 
diversity. 

➢ Organisational sustainability – including achieving the financial plan; supporting the 
development of the Integrated Care System (ICS) in the region; and delivering digital 
enablers to support many of the Trust’s other corporate priorities and sub- 
objectives. 

 

Work began in the second half of 2020/21 
on the development of the Trust’s new five- 
year strategy for 2021-2026. The new 
strategy was approved by the Board of 
Directors in March 2021 in preparation for 
the new financial year and centres around 
four ambitions, with patients at the heart of 
the strategy. 

 

Nine supporting plans will underpin the four 
ambitions and work has commenced on 
developing the detail of these plans. 

 
The recovery of our services and staff will be 
the priority for 2021 to 2023, with the aim of 
stabilising and maintaining quality and 
performance in advance of winter 2021/22. 
Developing our role as a key partner in the 
Integrated Care System will also be a focus 
short term focus. 

 

In the longer term we will focus on 
transformation and growth of our services in 
line with the place-based principles of the ICS 
and Integrated Care Partnerships (ICPs). 

 
About us – key issues and risks 
Undoubtedly the biggest issue and risk which 
faced the Trust in 2020/21 was the 
continuation of the COVID-19 worldwide pandemic, which commenced in late 2019/20. 

 
Responding to the pandemic had a significant impact on all aspects of the service and 
keeping our patients and staff as safe as possible was the primary objective of the Trust in 
2020/21. 
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We introduced a number of measures to keep our staff safe and able to continue to deliver 
our services to the public. This included: 

• Implementing a robust escalation structure to support the implementation of swift 
risk-based decision-making using command and control principles; 

• Issuing personal protective equipment (PPE) to staff in line with government 
requirements; 

• Redeployment of support services staff and the recruitment of a significant number 
of volunteers to support front line operations; 

• Modifying our Emergency Operations Centres (EOCs) to support social distancing and 
providing some of our clinical advisors and senior clinicians from the Clinical 
Assessment Service with the ability to take calls from home; 

• Training clinicians who normally work in support services or those clinicians who 
were shielding to be able to utilise a standalone clinical triage tool and support 
colleagues from the EOC in responding to increased call volumes; and 

• Implementing agile working for our office-based support services staff which 
reduced footfall across the Trust’s largest sites, protecting essential services. 

 

The pandemic also had wider implications for the Trust, including altering the financial 
landscape and national funding arrangements. Further detail on how we responded to the 
pandemic is included throughout the Annual Report. Further detail on our risks can be 
found within the Annual Governance Statement. 

 
Going concern disclosure 
Our full accounts, presented at the end of the report, have been prepared in accordance 
with the directions made under paragraph 24 of schedule 7 of the National Health Service 
Act 2006 and NHS England and Improvement, the Independent Regulator of NHS 
Foundation Trusts. 

 
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust 
Annual Reporting Manual 2020/21 and Department of Health Group Accounting Manual 
2020/21. 

 

After making enquires, Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason 
the Trust continues to adopt the going concern principle in preparing the annual accounts 
and annual report. 

 

The Directors consider the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced 
and understandable and provide the information necessary for patients, regulators and 
other stakeholders to assess the NHS Foundation Trust’s performance, business model and 
strategy. 
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Performance analysis 
 

Our key performance measures and how we monitor them 

 
Unscheduled Care 
Our Unscheduled Care (emergency response) service operates in accordance with national 
performance standards. The Ambulance Response Programme (ARP) introduced new 
standards several years ago, with the following principal aims, as defined by NHS England 
and Improvement: 
➢ To prioritise the sickest patients, ensuring they receive the fastest response; 
➢ To drive clinically and operationally effective behaviours, so the patient gets the 

response they need first time and in a clinically appropriate timeframe; and 

➢ To put an end to unacceptably long waits by ensuring that resources are distributed 
more equitably amongst all patients. 

 

The national standards are defined as: 

 
Category Headline Sub-description Average 90th percentile 

description  response response target 
target 

1 Life 
threatening 

A time critical life-threatening event requiring 
immediate intervention or resuscitation. 

7 minutes 15 minutes 

2 Emergency Potentially serious conditions that may 
require rapid assessment and urgent on-scene 
intervention and/or urgent transport. 

18 minutes 40 minutes 

3 Urgent An urgent problem (not immediately life 
threatening) that needs treatment to relieve 
suffering and transport or assessment and 
management at the scene with referral where 
needed within a clinically appropriate 
timeframe. 

None 2 hours 

4 Less urgent An urgent problem (not immediately life 
threatening) that needs treatment to relieve 
suffering and transport or assessment and 
management at the scene with referral where 
needed within a clinically appropriate 
timeframe. 

None 3 hours 

(Source: NHS England Ambulance Response Programme Review) 

 
Scheduled Care 
There are no national targets against which our Scheduled Care service is measured. We do 
set a number of local quality indicators, such as time on vehicle (with the aim for this to be 
less than 60 minutes in 90% of cases), timeliness of arrival at treatment centre and 
timeliness of pick-up following treatment (85% to be picked up within 60 minutes). 
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Emergency Operations Centre 
We monitor a number of different national and local metrics in respect of our Emergency 
Operations Centre. These metrics include 111 call answer performance, timeliness of 111 
clinician call-backs and the percentage of 111 calls transferred to 999, which are within an 
agreed set of measures we report to our commissioners. 

 
Monitoring Performance 
Monitoring performance against these national and local metrics is of paramount 
importance, and we do this in a number of ways. 

➢ We have a Performance team who analyse trends and trajectories for performance 
and liaise with all departments in the Trust to triangulate performance and 
proactively challenge and support; 

➢ Clinical Care Managers and Clinical Operations Managers review performance and 
staffing plans on a daily basis; 

➢ Within the Emergency Operations Centre the Dispatch and Duty Managers review 
performance on a daily basis; 

➢ The Deputy Chief Operating Officer holds weekly performance review meetings with 
her senior team; 

➢ The Chief Operating Officer chairs a monthly Performance Group, which was 
introduced as part of the launch of the Trust’s new governance structure in 
September 2020; 

➢ The Executive Management Group (which includes all Executive Directors and the 
senior management team) receives performance updates at each meeting; 

➢ The Performance and Finance Committee was also established as part of the 
governance structure review in 2020. This provides enhanced scrutiny and assurance 
over performance at the Board committee level. The Performance Group has a dual 
reporting line into the Executive Management Group and the Performance and 
Finance Committee; 

➢ The Board of Directors reviews the Integrated Board Performance Report at every 
meeting. The report was significantly revised in 2020/21 and now supports greater 
triangulation between operational performance, quality, finance and workforce 
information; and 

➢ Our performance is also subject to regular scrutiny from key stakeholders, including 
our Council of Governors, regulators, Overview and Scrutiny Committees and 
Healthwatch. 

 

Overview of operational and financial performance 

 
Operational performance 
Despite the impact of the pandemic on staff absence and capacity, response times have 
improved in 2020/21 across all categories compared to 2019/20, following additional 
investment. Consistent with the previous year we met the target for the most life- 
threatening emergencies (category 1) and also met our Category 4 target. 

 

Significant levels of additional resources have been deployed through 2020/21, utilising 
third party providers, in order to meet patient demand, which has supported improved 
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response times across all categories. However, due to the impact of the pandemic this 
additional resource has not been sufficient to achieve all category standards. 

 

Additional pressure on resources from infection, prevention and control requirements, 
including daily deep cleaning of vehicles, has impacted resource availability through 
increased downtime. Staffing resources have also been stretched through increased 
sickness levels, as well as the impact of shielding and staff self-isolating. The impact of this 
has been that Category 2 and 3 response standards have remained challenging as we 
continue to prioritise C1 life-threatening incidents. 

 
Work has been on-going through the year to provide staff with support for their health and 
wellbeing, along with the roll-out of staff vaccinations from December 2020. Projects have 
also been implemented to mitigate the impact of additional cleaning requirements to 
maximise availability to respond to patients. 

 

Overall 999 demand increased by 1% compared to the previous year, however the success 
in improving hear and treat rates, resulted in ambulance incidents reducing by 1.2% helping 
to mitigate the impact of the pandemic and effectively meet patient needs. The increase in 
Hear and Treat was supported by the implementation of new triage processes and 
increasing the clinical support available within the EOC. 

 

The improvements in hear and treat, along with increases in see and treat incidents has led 
to a reduction in the number of patients transported to emergency departments, which has 
reduced by 5.7%, with almost 14,000 fewer patients being transported to emergency 
departments. 

 
Measure Target 2020/21 2019/20 

C1 Mean 00:07:00 00:06:26 00:06:32 

C1 90th Percentile 00:15:00 00:11:01 00:11:13 

C2 Mean 00:18:00 00:25:38 00:29:28 

C2 90th Percentile 00:40:00 00:53:27 01:01:30 

C3 90th Percentile 02:00:00 02:54:57 03:51:28 

C4 90th Percentile 03:00:00 02:36:59 03:11:02 

Hear & Treat N/A 8.02% 5.7% 

See & Treat N/A 29.78% 26.8% 

See & Convey to A&E N/A 53.66% 57.4% 

See & Convey to Non-A&E N/A 8.54% 10.1% 
See & Convey N/A 62.20% 67.5% 

 
Our NHS111 service has been under significant pressure throughout the year with increased 
call demand, particularly within the in-hours period, as a result of the pandemic, despite 
additional national support to manage Covid-related 111 demand. This has resulted in 
extended call answer / call back times for Health Advisors and Clinicians along with 
increased call abandonment rates. 

 

Additional agency, Health Advisor and Clinical resource was deployed throughout the year 
to manage the additional demand, with clinical capacity from other services in the region 
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able to support, particularly through wave 1. Remote working solutions for clinicians has 
been rolled out to enable more flexible working and increased availability. 
Increased absence due to Covid has significantly impacted the capacity of the service, and 
Health Advisors in particular. Staff have all received additional health and well-being 
support. 

 

We have continued to support the system through improving our emergency department 
validation rates, helping to signpost patients to the most appropriate service, along with the 
introduction of direct booking into emergency departments. 

 
NHS111 played a pivotal role in the pandemic response in the region and you can find out 
more about the launch of 111 First later in this report. 

 
Measure Target 2020/21 2019/20 

111 Calls abandoned <5% 13.42% 9.87% 
111 Calls answered in 60 seconds >95% 70.03% 81.18% 

111 Clinician call backs (10 
minutes) 

>50% 32.26% 
23.10% 

111 C3/C4 revalidations >50% 28.58% 25.54% 
111 ED revalidations >50% 18.17% 12.65% 
111 Clinical Input >50% 31.24% 34.62% 

 
Our Scheduled Care service continued to perform well during the year and provided 
significant assistance across the health system in the region to support timely discharges 
and maintain patient flow during extremely pressured times. 

 
Scheduled Care measures 2020/21 2019/20 

On time arrival 83% 77% 
Collection within 60 Mins 90% 86% 

Time on Vehicle within 60 
minutes 

94% 91% 

 

 

Financial performance 
It has been a challenging year for the Trust as we responded to the pandemic. Not only did 
this significantly increase the demands for our services, but we had the challenge of 
providing our services in a safe and sustainable way during a lockdown. 

 
The Government’s response to the pandemic meant that for NHS organisations a new, 
temporary financial framework was implemented in April 2020. For us this required delivery 
of a planned -£0.678m deficit in-year. 

 

Our operating income for the year was £184.7 million. The majority of our income comes 
from the provision of our Unscheduled and Scheduled Care services as well call handling for 
999 and 111 through our main contract which we have in place for the 10 Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) in our geographical area. However, due to the pandemic and 



1
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to reduce administrative burden, normal contracting arrangements for the NHS were 
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suspended and for the first six months we received a fixed monthly block contract income 
supplemented by monthly COVID ‘top-up’ payments to deliver a breakeven position. The 
final six months required us to deliver a -£678m deficit as part of system-wide allocation of 
NHS resources and we received a fixed monthly top up, based on this financial plan 
requirement, in which to manage the provision of all our service. 

 

Additional income from our Commercial Services Team via the provision of a range of 
services including training and the sale of equipment, and from our subsidiary company 
NEASUS was significantly reduced during the pandemic. However, we did receive some 
income through an NHS lost income payment to supplement this at the year end. 

 
The Trust has complied with Section 43(2A) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended by the Health 
and Social Care Act 2012) which requires that the income from the provision of goods and 
services for the purposes of the health service in England must be greater than its income 
from the provision of goods and services for any other purposes. The impact of other 
income on the Trust is insignificant. 

 

Our operating expenses totalled £181m this year. Our top three areas of spend were pay, 
third party service provision and transport costs. These running costs continue to be tightly 
controlled however we have seen pressures in the following areas: 

• Pay; 

• 3rd party service provision; and 

• Clinical supplies and services. 
 

The growth in spend in these areas are all significantly as a direct result of the pandemic 
response by the service. 

 
Conversely, we have seen spend reductions in the areas of: 

• Consultancy costs; 

• Transport costs; and 

• Legal fees. 
 

The Trust benefitted significantly from the generous provision of free fuel to our front-line 
services for a period during the pandemic. 

 

We subsequently finished the year with a small surplus of £0.1m. Our end of year cash 
balance was £25.8 million. 
We made capital investments of £6.9m during the year, which was £0.8m below the original 
plan. The largest proportion of this investment, £3.2m, was spent on the Trust’s estate 
including the lease of a new training venue at Team Valley, Gateshead. Investments of £1m 
in 47 new Scheduled Care vehicles as well as £0.5m on 16 new Rapid Response Cars were 
made. A further £1.5m was invested in Information Technology maintenance and 
developments. 

 

There have been no events since the end of the financial year that have affected the Trust. 
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Other financial information 
North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust has complied with the cost allocation 
and charging guidance issued by HM Treasury. 

 

No political donations were made during the year. 
 

The Government’s ‘Better Payment Practice Code’ requires public sector bodies to pay all 
trade creditors within 30 days or within the agreed terms. The Trust is an approved 
signatory of the prompt payment code, hosted by the Institute of Credit Management on 
behalf of the Department of Business Innovation and Skills. As a result, the Trust is 
committed to: 

• Pay suppliers within agreed terms; 
• Ensure suppliers know how to invoice them; and 
• Encourage good practice. 

 

The Trust paid 94% and 95% of its non-NHS invoices within 30 days by number and value 
respectively and similarly 86% and 87% on its NHS invoices within 30 days by number and 
value respectively. 

 

During 2020/21 no interest was payable under the Late Payments of Commercial Debts 
(interest) Act 1998. 

 
Environmental and sustainability matters 
Climate change is now viewed as one of the most serious threats to the continued health 
and wellbeing of millions of people worldwide. The worst aspects of climate change will 
inevitably impact greatest on those within society who are most vulnerable and least able to 
cope. It is therefore vital that action is taken at all levels to implement effective strategies 
not only to reduce carbon emissions, but also apply the broader principles of sustainable 
development. It is now six years since we published our Carbon Management Plan for the 
Trust. In that time our sustainability journey has progressed from an initial carbon-focused 
strategy to a more holistic sustainable development model. 

 
Caring for our patients in a sustainable manner and being aware of the social impacts of our 
actions will help achieve the goals of caring for the environment, reducing long term 
expenditure and building a supportive base in the society in which we operate. We are in 
the final stages of preparing the new Green Plan as a follow on from the Carbon 
Management Plan. The Green Plan strategy document outlines our targets and aspirations 
for the next 5 years in light of the NHS requirement of Net Zero by 2040. 

 

We have delivered over 150 ‘Invest to Save’ energy reduction projects which have created a 
30% and 56% reduction in electricity and gas respectively, with a cumulative financial saving 
of over £390k since 2012/13. During 2020/21 we delivered a number of projects that have 
contributed to these savings: a further 3 renewable air source heat pumps have been 
installed, bringing the total to 19 across our estate and enabling gas to be eliminated from 
these properties. The overall carbon savings from the projects implemented have been 
outstanding, with over a 1,400 tonnes saved. We achieved the Carbon Saver Gold Standards 
after a third-party audit, which was recertified in 2020. 
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We are conscious of the impending ban on purchasing new diesel and petrol vehicles from 
2030. We are working on moving away from fossil fuel-based vehicles and increasing the 
number of alternatively fuelled vehicles within our fleet, initially through our support service 
vehicles but working towards front line. We are working alongside other ambulance trusts 
as well as manufacturers on developing a front line electric double crewed ambulance by 
the end of 2021. We are working to plan and install the necessary infrastructure to facilitate 
this through site surveys across our estate. We are an active member on the Integrated Care 
System North East & North Cumbria Sustainability Group and lead the travel and transport 
workstream with a view to implementing a joined-up approach to charging infrastructure 
across the region. 

 
Our score for the annual NHS Sustainable Development Assessment Tool has increased over 
time from 41% in 2016 to 65% in 2020. This measures our progress against the United 
Nations Sustainable Development Assessment Tool (SDAT) goals. Progress has slowed in 
2020 due to the global pandemic response, however additional work is planned in 2021 in 
climate adaptation, further reduction in single use plastics and sustainable models of care. 
These will be tackled through the ambitious targets in the Green Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Covid 19 pandemic has changed the way much of the support services of the Trust 
work. With the majority of those staff working from home it has created a positive impact 
on reducing commuting and has proved that technology have a huge part to play in reducing 
emissions. Over the year that staff have worked from home (based on travelling 5 days a 
week 46 weeks a year) the Trust has reduced carbon by 250 tonnes of CO2 which is 
equivalent to around the annual energy use of 29 homes or charging 32 million 
smartphones. 

 
Emergency preparedness, resilience and response 
The NHS needs to plan for, and respond to, a wide range of incidents and emergencies that 
could affect health or patient care. Under the Civil Contingencies Act (2004), NHS 
organisations and providers of NHS funded care must show that they can effectively 
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respond to emergencies and business continuity incidents while maintaining services to 
patients. The NHS England Core Standards for Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and 
Response (EPRR) are the minimum standards which NHS organisations and providers of NHS 
funded care must meet. The purpose of these standards are to: 

 

• Enable health agencies across the country to share a common approach to EPRR; 

• Allow coordination of EPRR activities according to the organisation’s size and scope; 

• Provide a consistent and cohesive framework for EPRR activities; and 

• Inform the organisation’s annual EPRR work programme 
 

The standards are reviewed and updated as lessons are identified from testing, national 
legislation and guidance changes and/or as part of the rolling NHS England governance 
programme. 

 

As part of the national EPRR assurance process we are required to assess ourselves against 
these core standards. We submitted our self-assessment to NHS England in August 2020, 
and organisations that were rated partially or non-compliant in the 2019/20 process 
provided updates on their improved status. The Trust has undertaken updated assessments 
since this time and the outcome of this self-assessment shows the following compliance 
levels at the year-end: 

 

Area Compliance Rate 
(Year-end 2020/21) 

EPRR Core Standards 96% 

Hazardous Area Response 
Team (HART) 

100% 

Marauding Terrorist Attack 
(MTA) 

100% 

Chemical, biological, 
radiological and nuclear 
(CBRN) 

100% 

Mass Casualty 100% 

Command & Command 92% 

Joint Emergency Service 
Interoperability Principles 
(JESIP) 

100% 

NHS 111 89% 

Patient Transport Service 89% 

 
This represents an improved position when compared to the previous year. There are areas 
within the EPRR core standards which NEAS are partially or non-compliant with, however 
there is work in progress to ensure that the Trust can move from its current state to its 
future, desired state. It is to be recognised that in relation to the areas which are partially or 
non-compliant there is rationale and actions in place to make improvements. 
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Social, community, anti-bribery and human rights issues 
We continue to support the trust through the Equality Analysis Assessment Policy and the 
Equality, Diversity and inclusion code of practice in addition to contributing to and 
supporting a range of other policies and procedures. 

 

This year we have reviewed our transgender and non-binary guidance for staff and 
managers, introduced living library lunch and learn activities on a range of subjects with 
individual staff one-to-one sessions for people to explore issues and help people learn in a 
safer space. 

 
In respect of anti-bribery, there is an Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy in place with 
regular updates on activity and investigations provided to the Audit Committee. A revised 
version of the policy was approved and made available to all Trust staff in October 2020. 
The Trust’s Standards of Business Conduct Policy also includes references to bribery and this 
policy was also updated and approved in October 2020. The Local Counter Fraud Specialist 
ensures that fraud awareness training is delivered as part of the Trust’s statutory and 
mandatory training requirements. 

 

There is a Board-approved Modern Slavery Act Statement which demonstrates the Trust’s 
commitment to and efforts in, preventing slavery and human trafficking practices in the 
supply chain and employment practices. 

 
Equality reporting 
We are committed to advancing equality, promoting social inclusion and ensuring our 
workforce is diverse and inclusive and can meet the needs of our patients and communities. 

 

We recognise our responsibility to provide equal opportunities, eliminate discrimination and 
foster good relations in our activities as an employer, service provider and partner and we 
work with organisations across the sector, region and nation to meet these requirements. 

 
We take a broad approach to equality, diversity and inclusion - we consider this to be part of 
the day job and an essential part of providing excellent services and patient care. 

 
Each year the Trust develops a separate annual equality report. The Trust meets all its legal, 
mandated and statutory requirements in relation to equality, diversity, inclusion and human 
rights. Our annual report can be found at https://www.neas.nhs.uk/about-us/equality-and- 
diversity.aspx 

 

Our equality frameworks 
We continue to use the NHS EDS2 framework alongside the Employers Network for Equality 
and Inclusion (ENEI) framework to drive our improvement work around diversity and 
inclusion. 

 

We have worked with staff and stakeholders to assess and grade our performance against 
the national Equality Delivery System 2 guidance. The 2020/21 grading assessments 
indicated that the Trust is excelling in four objectives, achieving in eleven objectives, split 
developing/achieving in one area and developing in two objectives. We have had to delay 

http://www.neas.nhs.uk/about-us/equality-and-
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our internal staff grading due to Covid restrictions but will undertake this at the earliest 
opportunity. 

 

The use of the ENEI framework helps us to undertake an annual assessment of our progress 
and benchmark against others in addition to getting access to support, webinars and advice 
on relevant issues. In May 2020 we were assessed at Silver level against their assessment 
and we were highly commended in two award categories around our recruitment work and 
making a positive difference in communities. 

 
We also sign up to the Disability Confident Scheme where we continue to achieve leader 
status – the highest ranking available. 

 
Patient survey data 
We have implemented a new 
patient survey system in 2020 
which allows us to undertake 
a more comprehensive 
analysis of data by protected 
characteristics. Due to COVID 
restrictions and national 
reporting requirements being 
suspended we did not 
capture data for each service 
area for the full year, but we 
still managed to collect over 
10,000 responses from 
patients, more than any 
other year thanks to our new 
survey system and methodology. 

 

The 2020/21 annual survey report shows slightly lower satisfaction levels from Black, Asian 
and Minority Ethnic (BAME) people and Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) 
people. The proportion of responses in most cases were lower than the community profiles 
but we are exploring themes through our positive action officers and educating 
communities about our services and the support available to assist people to use them. 

 
Positive action 
We have secured funds from NHS charities and our own Charitable Fund to appoint two 
temporary positive action officers. The officers are starting to work with BAME, LGBT and 
disabled communities to raise awareness about our service, how to access them, when to 
use them and to dispel some of the myths about COVID and the vaccine. As the project 
develops, they will also appoint community ambassadors to help us to reach out into 
communities, build and maintain relationships and pass key messages throughout the 
region. They will also help us to promote our organisation as an inclusive employer, support 
people to access jobs, volunteering opportunities and help to access opportunities and act 
as contact points in communities to help us to gather feedback and understand the issues 
within these seldom heard communities. 
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We continue to meet our requirements under the Workforce Race and Disability Equality 
Standards (WRES and WDES) and gender pay audit requirements. Actions to help us to 
improve our response to these requirements are contained in our Equality, Diversity and 
Inclusion Plan 2020-2024 and the accompanying action plan. 

 
Race equality 
Following the tragic events of last year, we have focused on race equality work and 
undertaken a significant amount of work to improve our approach. Some of the activities we 
have undertaken include: 

• A 32-point race action plan with senior leaders responsible for actions; 

• Developed a diversity and inclusion allies programme - we trained over 70 people 
across the Trust to become more active allies; 

• Launched a race book club with a series of titles on race provided to the top 50 
managers across the Trust to learn, understand and cascade; 

• Held four race safe space events for BAME staff and allies; 

• Launched our community ambassador programme to trained BAME, disabled and 
LGBT people living in local communities to improve links and help to improve 
understanding about our services and employment opportunities; 

• Recruited an additional 19 hate crime champions in partnership with Northumbria 
Police; 

• Improved staff understanding of significant events across the year, including Hate 
Crime Awareness Week, Wear Red Day, National Inclusion Week, Black History 
Month and a range of faith and cultural events; 

• Trained our Board and top 50 leaders on race equality with the help of John Broader, 
Specialist EDI Advisor for NHS England and others; and 

• Linked in with regional and national responses to race equality. 
 

Further information on our approach to EDI in respect of our staff can be found within the 
Staff Report section of the Annual Report. 

 

Helen Ray 
Chief Executive 
10 June 2021 
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Accountability Report 
 

Directors’ Report 

 
Board of Directors 
The Board of Directors is responsible for formulating and driving strategy, ensuring 
accountability and shaping culture. It operates through a scheme of delegation within a 
robust framework of systems and reporting which ensures that core business and risks are 
being controlled. The Board gains assurance through its committee structure and sources of 
other assurance and it meets formally, both in public and private sessions throughout the 
year to discharge its duties and receive those assurances. 

 

The Board delegates some of its powers to a committee of Directors or to an individual 
Executive Director and these are set out in the Trust’s scheme of delegation. Decision 
making for the operational running of the Trust is delegated to the Executive Team. 

 

Our Chair and Chief Executive have complementary roles in leadership: 
 

➢ Our Chair, Peter Strachan, leads the Board of Directors and ensures its effectiveness. 
The Trust’s Chair also chairs the Council of Governors. 

➢ Our Chief Executive, Helen Ray, leads the Executive Team and the organisation. 
 

All Directors adhere to the Trust’s Standards of Business Conduct policy and the core 
principles underpinning Board responsibilities and behaviours, including the fit and proper 
person requirements of the Trust’s CQC registration and NHS Provider Licence. 

 
The Board of Directors has a range of skills and experience gained from the public, private 
and voluntary sectors that complement all areas of our business including clinical expertise, 
senior experience within other NHS bodies and emergency services, legal services, logistics, 
finance, human resource management and operational management. This range of skills 
ensures balance, completeness and appropriateness of membership of the Board of 
Directors. 

 
Appointment and removal of directors is completed in accordance with the NHS Act 2006. 
Under the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance, and the Trust’s Constitution, removal 
of the Chair or Non-Executive Directors requires the approval of three-quarters of the 
members of the Council of Governors. Appointments will also be terminated if, in 
accordance with the Constitution, they become disqualified from holding their appointment 
or they resign from office by giving notice. All Board appointments are made in accordance 
with the fit and proper persons regulations outlined above. 

 
The role of Non-Executive Directors 
Non-Executive Directors contribute to the development of strategy and play an important 
role in scrutinising management in achieving agreed goals and objectives and monitoring 
the reporting of performance. Non-Executive Directors are drawn from the local community 
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and can ensure that the voice of the public is heard in decision-making processes and that 
the interests of patients remain at the heart of Board discussions. 

 

Non-Executive Directors also have a role in working with the Chair in the appointment and 
remuneration of the Chief Executive and other Executive Directors as members of the 
Trust’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee. All of our Non-Executive Directors, 
including the Chair, are considered to be independent. 

 
The role of Executive Directors 
Some decisions are delegated to the executive management of the Board of Directors. 
Decision making for the operational running of the Trust is delegated to the Executive Team. 

 
Executive Directors share the same corporate responsibilities as Non-Executive Director 
colleagues but bring detailed knowledge of the organisation’s management systems and 
processes and of the health sector, as well as specialised clinical and managerial expertise. 

 

The Trust has six voting Executive Directors who are employed by the Trust on permanent 
contracts with a six month notice period. 

 
Board composition 
There have been a number of changes in the composition of the Board in 2020/21. In June 
2020 Joanne Baxter, Director of Quality and Safety, left the Trust to take up a Board position 
at an acute trust. Debra Stephen, Deputy Director of Quality and Safety, became acting 
Director for a short period of time until Sarah Rushbrooke, Director of Quality, Patient 
Safety, Innovation and Improvement commenced in post. 

 

Caroline Thurlbeck, Director of Strategy, Transformation and Technology, left the Trust in 
February 2021 following her twelve-month secondment with local clinical commissioning 
groups. 

 

In January 2021 Douglas Taylor, Non-Executive Director, retired from the Board following 
the completion of his second three-year term. Douglas had chaired the Audit Committee 
and the Charitable Funds Committee during his tenure. 

 
The Board would like to sincerely thank Joanne, Douglas and Caroline for their significant 
contributions and commitment to the Trust. 

 

Sarah Rushbrooke joined the Trust in August 2020, formally taking over as Director of 
Quality, Patient Safety, Innovation and Improvement in September 2020. Sarah joined the 
Trust from Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust where she was 
Group Director. Sarah has significant experience in senior nursing roles and quality 
improvement, which will be invaluable in supporting the Trust in its expansion of quality 
improvement initiatives. 

 

In January 2021 Raman Sanghera joined the Board as a Non-Executive Director following his 
appointment by the Council of Governors. Raman is a qualified accountant with a broad 
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range of experience across both the private and public sectors. He is currently the Assistant 
Director for Strategic Finance and Business Partnering at Homes England. 

 

The Board extended a warm welcome to both Sarah and Raman, who have already made 
positive contributions to the Trust during their tenure in 2020/21. 

 
In 2020/21 the Council of Governors approved the re-appointment of John Marshall and Dr 
Gerry Morrow as Non-Executive Directors for a second three-year term from 1 November 
2020 to 31 October 2023. 

 
In addition, the Council approved a one-year extension for Catherine Young, as Non- 
Executive Director and Deputy Chair to 31 January 2022. The Board of Directors approved 
the extension of Catherine’s term as Senior Independent Director for the same time period. 
This was considered a necessary step to support Board continuity and stability during the 
pandemic period (given the volume of change within the last eighteen months) and enable 
further considered work to be undertaken on future Non-Executive Director succession 
planning. 

 

Ahead of the commencement of the new financial year the Council of Governors approved 
the appointment of the Chairman, Peter Strachan, for a second three-year term, which will 
commence on 29th May 2021. 

 
The Board held 15 meetings in total in 2020/21 – 4 in public and 11 in private. All meetings 
were held virtually in line with government guidelines during the pandemic. The below 
attendance figures for Board Members also include our Annual General Meeting / Annual 
Members’ Meeting. Where Board Members were not eligible to attend certain meetings an 
adjusted denominator is shown (for example private Council of Governors’ meetings or 
where a Board Member served on the Board for only part of the year). 

 
Name and position Board of 

Directors 
(out of 16 

meetings held) 

Audit 
(out of 5 

meetings held) 

Nomination 
and 

Remuneration 
(out of 3 

meetings held) 

Council of 
Governors 
(out of 8 

meetings held) 

Executive Directors 

Helen Ray 
Chief Executive 

16 N/A 3/3 4/4 

Paul Liversidge 
Chief Operating Officer 

15 N/A N/A 2/4 

Kevin Scollay 

Group Director of Finance & 
Contracting 

15 5/5 N/A 3/4 

Joanne Baxter 
Director of Quality and Safety 
(to June 2020) 

2/3 N/A N/A 0/1 

Debra Stephen, Interim Director of 
Quality and Safety 
(July to August 2020) 

2/2 N/A N/A 0/1 

Sarah Rushbrooke, Director of 
Quality, Patient Safety, Innovation 
and Improvement 

13/13 N/A N/A 2/2 
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Name and position Board of 
Directors 
(out of 16 

meetings held) 

Audit 
(out of 5 

meetings held) 

Nomination 
and 

Remuneration 
(out of 3 

meetings held) 

Council of 
Governors 
(out of 8 

meetings held) 

(From September 2020)     

Dr Mathew Beattie 
Medical Director 

16 5/5 N/A 2/4 

Karen O’Brien 
Director of People & Development 

14 N/A 2/2 4/4 

Non-Executive Directors 

Peter Strachan, 
Chairman 

 
(First term: 29th May 2018 – 28th May 
2021. Reappointed for a second term 
from 29th May 2021 to 28th May 
2024) 

16 N/A 3/3 8/8 

Catherine Young, Non-Executive 
Director, Deputy Chair and Senior 
Independent Director 

 
(Second term was completed on 31st 
January 2021. Re-appointed on 1st 
February 2021 for a one-year 
extension to support Board stability 
and continuity) 

16 N/A 3/3 7/7 

Douglas Taylor, Non-Executive 
Director and Chair of the Audit 
Committee 

 
(Left the Trust on 31 January 2021 
following completion of his second 
term) 

13/13 5/5 3/3 5/5 

Carolyn Peacock, Non-Executive 
Director 

 

(Second term - 1st November 2018 to 
31 October 2021) 

16 5/5 3/3 4/4 

Helen Suddes, Non-Executive 
Director 

 

(Second term - 1st November 2018 to 
31 October 2021) 

15 N/A 2/3 1/4 

John Marshall, Non-Executive 
Director 

 

(Re-appointed on 1st November 2020 
for a second 3-year term) 

16 N/A 3/3 4/4 

Dr Gerry Morrow, Non-Executive 
Director 

 

(Re-appointed on 1st November 2020 
for a second 3-year term) 

16 5/5 3/3 3/4 

Raman Sanghera, Non-Executive 
Director 

4/4 N/A N/A 1/1 
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Name and position Board of 
Directors 
(out of 16 

meetings held) 

Audit 
(out of 5 

meetings held) 

Nomination 
and 

Remuneration 
(out of 3 

meetings held) 

Council of 
Governors 
(out of 8 

meetings held) 

 

(Appointed on 18th January 2021 for 
a three-year term) 

    

Chris Fairs 
Associate Non-Executive Director 

 
(From September 2019 – present) 

15 N/A 3/3 N/A 

 

Performance evaluation 
The Executive arm of the Board of Directors is monitored both collectively and individually 
on the delivery of key objectives, with the Chief Executive appraising the performance of 
Directors on an annual basis (but meeting with each Director on a one-to-one basis every 
month), and the Chairman reviewing the Chief Executive’s performance every six months. 

 
As a Foundation Trust, it is the role of the Council of Governors to ensure there is an 
effective and meaningful performance assessment and appraisal process in place for both 
the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors. 

 

Further information on individual Board Member performance evaluation processes is 
included within the Remuneration Report. 

 

All Board committees (and those groups reporting to them) conduct a formal ‘Review of 
Effectiveness’ on an annual basis. Each committee (and group) is required to demonstrate 
to the Board (and each group to its senior committee) that it has fulfilled its remit, remained 
within its terms of reference and has satisfactorily discharged its duties, adding value in 
terms of assurances and identifying and mitigating risk. This process is led by the Non- 
Executive Chair of the committee. The evaluation process incorporates the use of a survey 
assessment tool, which was sent to all members and regular attendees of each Committee 
to seek views on effectiveness. This then informs the overall assessment to ensure that the 
outcomes reflected broader feedback. 

 
A new governance structure for the Trust was introduced in September 2020 and therefore 
reflection on the effectiveness of the former structure and its committees / groups took 
place in the first six months of 2020/21 to inform the structural changes made. 

 

It should be noted that due to the COVID-19 pandemic the performance evaluation process 
for committees / groups for 2020/21 was due to be completed in Quarter 1 of 2021/22 
rather than commencing in Quarter 4 of 2020/21. This was in line with guidance issued by 
NHS England and Improvement which recommended that organisations free up capacity to 
respond to the latest wave of the pandemic and stand down non-essential activities and 
meetings. 
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Declaration of interests 
It is a requirement that the Chair and all members of the Board of Directors should declare 
any conflict of interest that arises in the course of conducting NHS business. Upon 
appointment, members of the Board of Directors are asked to declare any business 
interests, directorships, positions of authority in a charity or voluntary body in the field of 
health and any connection with contracting bodies for NHS services. All such declarations 
are entered in a register and are available for public scrutiny. 

 
The Code of Governance requires the Trust to explicitly disclose the interests of the 
Chairman as part of the Annual Report. Peter Strachan is the Director Rail for Serco Plc’s UK 
and Europe rail operation. He holds directorships in respect of Serco Caledonian Sleeper Ltd, 
Merseyrail Electrics Ltd, Transport for Wales Rail Ltd and Inverness Business Improvement 
District Ltd. Peter Strachan’s wife is an independent member of the Parole Board. 

 

A copy of the Board’s register of interests is available on the Trust’s website. Alternatively, 
you can obtain a copy of the register of interests by writing to our Trust Secretary using the 
contact information at the end of this report. 

 

Similar to our Board of Directors, all of the Trust’s Governors must declare details of any 
company directorships or other significant interests which could conflict with their 
responsibilities as a Governor of the Trust. A register of interests is maintained by the Trust 
and is available through request to the Trust Secretary. Address details can be found at the 
end of this report. 

 
Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee has primary responsibility for monitoring and reviewing financial and 
other risks and associated controls, corporate governance and financial assurance. The Chair 
of the Audit Committee until 31 January 2021 was Douglas Taylor with responsibility 
transferring to Catherine Young following the end of his second term as a Non-Executive 
Director. 

 

The Audit Committee is the Group Audit Committee in that it covers both the Trust and its 
subsidiary, NEASUS. 

 

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board of Directors and details of its meetings 
and member attendance are set out in the Board of Directors’ table earlier in this report. 

 
During 2020/21 the Committee: - 
➢ Reviewed regulatory submissions in accordance with its terms of reference and 

external requirements. This included: the annual accounts; annual report; annual 
governance statement; annual planning self-certifications; ISA260 and external audit 
reports; 

➢ Sought assurance regarding the robustness of risk management processes; 
➢ Reviewed the processes behind the development of the clinical audit plan, and 

sought assurance over progress made in implementing the plan; 

➢ Undertook a review of the Standing Financial Instructions and Scheme of Delegation 
in line with proposed changes to the Trust’s governance structure; 
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➢ Supported the Council of Governors in the appointment of the Trust’s external 
auditors; 

➢ Received assurance from the task and finish group set up during the year to review 
coronial reporting processes and controls; 

➢ Approved the terms of engagement in relation to the external audit, the subsidiary 
audit and the independent examination of the Charitable Fund; 

➢ Considered the risks contained within the external audit plan; 
➢ Evaluated the effectiveness of both internal and external audit functions; 
➢ Reviewed Internal Audit updates throughout the year, including providing input on 

the draft plans presented at the beginning of the year. Progress in implementing 
audit recommendations was reviewed at each meeting; 

➢ Approved the counter fraud annual work plan and received progress updates as well 
as updates on ongoing investigations; 

➢ Sought assurances regarding the processes and controls in place to appropriately 
investigate and act upon Freedom to Speak Up concerns; 

➢ Received an annual update on the Trust’s Business Contingency arrangements; 
➢ Received regular updates on losses and special payments; and 
➢ Received annual reports on compliance with policies falling within the remit of the 

Audit Committee. 
 

In line with requirements of the Code of Governance the Committee reviewed the 
effectiveness of the External Audit and Internal Audit functions. The assessment was 
conducted following the completion of the 2019/20 year-end audits. Audit Committee 
members completed a comprehensive survey and the results were reported to the 
Committee in July 2020. A similar process will be initiated in June 2021 to review the 
effectiveness of both functions for 2020/21. 

 
In October 2020 the Council of Governors re-appointed Mazars LLP as the Trust’s external 
auditors under a four-year contract. Mazars LLP’s fee for the core audit work for 2020/21 
was £58,000 excluding VAT. In line with 2019/20 there was no requirement for external 
audit assurance work to be undertaken in respect of the Quality Report. 

 

Mazars LLP undertake an independent examination of the Trust’s Charitable Fund, which in 
2020/21 is proposed to cost £440 excluding VAT. Mazars LLP also undertake the audit of the 
Trust’s subsidiary, NEASUS, and a fee of £12,500 (excluding VAT) is proposed for 2020/21. 

 
During the year no non-audit services were provided (with the exception of the audit of the 
subsidiary company and the independent review of the Charitable Fund accounts). These 
services are excluded from the National Audit Office’s 70% threshold for non-audit services 
work. 

 

The Internal Audit function for the Trust and NEASUS is provided by the NHS Audit 
Consortium AuditOne. 

 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
The Council of Governors decides on the remuneration of the Chairman and Non-Executive 
Directors. 
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The Board’s own Nomination and Remuneration Committee has delegated authority to set 
remuneration for all Executive Directors, monitor their performance, consider nominations 
for Executive Director vacancies and make recommendations on such appointments. The 
Committee sets the policy and authorises the remuneration packages and contractual terms 
that are sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Executive Directors whilst remaining cost 
effective. Proper regard to the Trust’s circumstances, performance and comparative 
information from within the NHS and other public sector organisations are considered. 

 
All Non-Executive Directors are members, including the Trust Chair, who is the Committee 
Chair. The Committee meets at least once per financial year, and details of its meetings and 
member attendance are detailed in the Directors’ table included earlier within this report. 

 
Council of Governors 
The Council of Governors is the accountability forum between the Board of Directors and its 
stakeholders. It represents local interests and holds the Non-Executive Directors to account, 
as well as exercising its statutory powers which include: 

➢ Appointing (and removing) the Chair and other Non-Executive Directors, deciding on 
remuneration and allowances; 

➢ Appointing (and removing) the Trust’s external auditors through a fair tendering 
process and receiving the annual accounts and the annual report; and 

➢ In preparing the Trust’s forward strategic plan, the Board of Directors must have 
regard to the views of the Council of Governors. 

 

The Council meets formally and in public on a quarterly basis and has constituted a number 
of Governor Committees to help it fulfil its role. The Council of Governors has established 
three substantive committees, namely the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, 
Governor Governance Committee and a Membership & Engagement Committee. There is 
also Governor membership on the Quality Report Task & Finish Group, and some Governors 
are members of the Trust’s Stakeholder Equality and Diversity Group. In 2020/21 a 
Governor Strategy Task and Finish Group was establishment to inform the development of 
the Trust’s five-year strategy, which was approved by the Board of Directors in March 2021. 

 
Governor engagement with members and the public was appropriately restricted during 
2020/21 due to the pandemic and the need to follow the government safety restrictions on 
contact and activity. 

 

The majority of Governor committees and development sessions were suspended in 
2020/21 to enable resource to be focussed on the pandemic response. Governor 
committees and development sessions were scheduled to recommence in Quarter 1 of 
2021/22. 

 
During 2020/21 the Governor Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Council of 
Governors led the process for the appointment of a new Non-Executive Director, Raman 
Sanghera. In addition, as outlined earlier in the Directors’ Report the Council met in private 
session to approve the reappointment of Peter Strachan, Catherine Young (as Non-Executive 
Director and Deputy Chair), John Marshall and Gerry Morrow. 
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North of Tyne Region 

Council of 
Governors
meetings 
(max 8) 

Term of appointment Governor name Region or 
organisation 

All Governor meetings took place virtually in 2020/21. The April 2020 Council meeting was 
in the form of a teleconference specifically focussed on briefing the Council on the 
pandemic response and addressing related Governor queries. From July 2020 the Council 
resumed its normal meeting cycle, using video conferencing technology. 

 

At the height of the pandemic the Trust ensured that Governors received bi-weekly briefings 
to ensure that they received key information and assurance regarding the Trust’s response. 
In addition, the Chairman maintained his regular meetings with the Lead Governor. 

 
An effectiveness review is planned for Quarter 1 2021/22 which will seek Governor views on 
how the Council operated over 2020/21 and the whether the support from the Trust was 
sufficient to provide Governors with assurance and the information needed to discharge 
their duties. 

 

Simon Walford served as the Council’s Lead Governor during 2021/22, supported by Violet 
Rook and Michael McNulty as Deputy Lead Governors. Simon, Violet and Michael 
commenced in post on 1 February 2020 for a period of two years (or until the end of their 
terms as Governors, whichever is soonest). 

 

Governor elections were held during 2020/21 and this resulted in a number of new public 
and staff Governors being elected into post, as outlined in the following table. A number of 
our long-standing Governors reached the end of their maximum tenure during 2020/21. The 
Board records its sincere thank you to all Governors who left the Council during 2020/21 for 
their contribution and commitment to the Trust. 

 
The following table shows the members of the Council of Governors, each Governor’s term 
of election, whether they were elected or appointed, including a description of the 
constituency or organisation that they represent, and their attendance at the Council of 
Governors’ meetings. Where a Governor was not in post for the full year, the table shows 
attendance against the number of Council meetings they were eligible to attend. During the 
year there were four public Council of Governors meetings (the regular quarterly meeting) 
and four private Council meetings (in respect of recruitment, reappointment and appraisal 
processes). 

 
 
 
 

 
Simon Walford 
(Lead Governor) 

2 years 5 months from 1 June 
2019 to 31 October 2021 

 

8 out of 8 

Violet Rook 3 years from 1 November 2016 to  

(Deputy Lead 31 October 2019 8 out of 8 
Governor) Re-elected 1 November 2019 to  

 31 October 2022  

Derek Bramley 3 years from 1 November 2016 to 
31 October 2019 

 
8 out of 8 
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Region or Governor name Term of appointment 

 
 

Re-elected 1 November 2019 to 
31 October 2022 

Council of 
Governors 
meetings 
(max 8) 

organisation 

 

 

Nik Ritchie 

2 years 5 months from 1 June 
2019 to 31 October 2021 

 

5 out of 8 

 

Ian Ellison 
2 years 5 months from 1 June 
2019 to 31 October 2021 

 

8 out of 8 

John Rawling 3 years from 1 November 2019 to 
31 October 2022 

 

8 out of 8 

South of Tyne Region Janice Chandler 3 years from 1 November 2020 to 
31 October 2023 

 
3 out of 3 

 Michael Glickman 3 years from 1 November 2011 to 
31 October 2014 
Re-elected 1 November 2014 to 
31 October 2017 
Re-elected 1 November 2017 to 
31 October 2020 
Left the Council on 31 October 
2020 

 

5 out of 5 

 Bill Laing 3 years from 1 November 2016 to 
31 October 2019 
Re-elected 1 November 2019 to 
31 October 2022 

 

6 out of 8 

 Nathan Carr 3 years from 1 November 2020 to 
31 October 2023 

 
0 out of 3 

  
Michael McNulty 

 
3 years from 1 November 2019 to 

 

 (Deputy Lead 31 October 2022 8 out of 8 
 Governor)   

  

Adam Skeen 

3 years from 1 November 2019 to 

31 October 2022 
Left the Council effective from 2 
September 2020 

 

2 out of 3 

VACANCY 

Durham Region Robert Alabaster 3 years from 1 November 2011 to 
31 October 2014 
Re-elected 1 November 2014 to 
31 October 2017 
Re-elected 1 November 2017 to 
31 October 2020 
Left the Council on 31 October 
2020 

 

3 out of 5 

 Adam Skeen 3 years from 1 November 2020 to 
31 October 2023 

1 out of 3 

 Stephen Dunn 3 years from 1 November 2019 to 
31 October 2022 

8 out of 8 

Alex Murray 3 years from 1 November 2016 to 
31 October 2019 

 
1 out of 8 
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Region or Governor name Term of appointment Council of 
Governors 
meetings 
(max 8) 

organisation 

  Re-elected 1 November 2019 to 
31 October 2022 

 

 Keith Ringer 3 years from 1 November 2020 to 
31 October 2023 

2 out of 3 

 Ann Workman 3 years from 1 November 2020 to 
31 October 2023 

2 out of 3 

Andrew Eales 3 years from 1 November 2017 to 
31 October 2020 
Left the Council on 31 October 
2020 

 

5 out of 5 

Teesside Region Ray Stephenson 2 years from 1 November 2011 

Re-elected 1 November 2013 to 
31 October 2016 
Re-elected 1 November 2016 to 
31 October 2019 
Left the Council on 31 October 
2020 

 

5 out of 5 

 Jean McKenna 3 years from 1 November 2011 to 
31 October 2014 
Re-elected 1 November 2014 to 
31 October 2017 
Re-elected 1 November 2017 to 
31 October 2020 
Left the Council on 31 October 
2020 

 

0 out of 5 

 Michael Daley 3 years from 1 November 2020 to 
31 October 2023 

0 out of 3 

  

Sue Francis 
3 years from 1 November 2019 to 
31 October 2022 
Left the Council on 25 September 
2020 

 

0 out of 3 

 Craig Jacques 2 years 5 months from 1 June 
2019 to 31 October 2021 

2 out of 8 

  

Graeme Smith 
2 years 5 months from 1 June 
2019 to 31 October 2021 

 

5 out of 8 

VACANCY x2 

North East  

Ambulance Service Matthew Potts 3 years from 1 November 2019 to 3 out of 8 

(Staff Governors) (Unscheduled Care) 31 October 2022  

 Chris Black 
(Support Services) 

3 years from 1 November 2014 to 
31 October 2017 
Re-elected 1 November 2017 to 
31 October 2020 
Left the Council on 18 January 
2021 

4 out of 6 

 James McCormack 3 years from 1 November 2018 to 0 out of 8 
 (Scheduled Care) 31 October 2021  
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Region or 
organisation 

Governor name Term of appointment Council of 
Governors 
meetings 
(max 8) 

Jebby Goodbrand 
(Emergency 
Operations Centre) 

2 years 5 months from 1 June 

2019 to 31 October 2021 

0 out of 8 

Voluntary VACANCY 

Organisations’ 
Network North East 
(Stakeholder 
Governor) 

Local Authority 
Governors 

Councillor Richard 
Dodd 

3 years from 1 November 2011 to 

31 October 2014 
Re-appointed 20 February 2015 to 
31 October 2017 
Re-appointed 1 November 2017 to 
31 October 2020 

Left the Council on 31 October 
2020 

 

2 of 5 

Councillor Oskar 
Avery 

3 years from 9 May 2017 to 31 
May 2020 
Reappointed 1 June 2020 to 31 
May 2023 

 

2 of 5 

Councillor Jeff 
Watson 

3 years from 1 November 2020 to 
31 October 2023 

1 of 3 

 

Councillor Lorraine 
Tostevin 

3 years from 30 August 2019 to 1 
August 2022 
Left the Council on 10 July 2020 

 

1 of 1 

Councillor Margaret 
Hall 

3 years from 30 August 2019 to 1 
August 2022 
Left the Council 15 December 
2020 

 

4 of 6 

Councillor Gary Bell 1 year 4 months from 26 March 
2020 to 1 August 2022 

0 of 0 

Tees, Esk and Wear 
Valleys NHS 
Foundation Trust 

VACANCY   

Teesside University Linda Nelson 1 year 10 months from 1 January 
2016 to 31 October 2017 
Re-appointed 1 November 2017 to 
31 October 2020 
Re-appointed 1 November 2020 to 
31 October 2023 

 

4 of 8 

Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group Representative 

VACANCY   

Acute Trust 
Representative 

VACANCY   

Local Resilience VACANCY  
Forum Representative VACANCY 
Local Resilience 
Forum Representative 
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The Board and Governor relationship 
Our Board of Directors recognises the importance of receiving and reacting to the views of 
our Council of Governors. The Board of Directors were well represented at Council meetings 
throughout the year. Council meetings included presentations from the Non-Executive 
Director Chairs of the Board’s committees, providing opportunities for the Council to 
develop its knowledge and understanding of the contributions of the Non-Executive 
Directors. 

 

Governor development sessions are usually held on a quarterly basis, with all Board 
Members invited to attend. It is noted that due to the pandemic the full development 
programme was not completed during the year, although a session was held to debate and 
discuss the Trust’s future strategy. 

 
Plans are in place to restart the development programme in 2021/22 and this will include an 
externally facilitated development session between the Board and the Council later in the 
year. 

 

The schedule of matters reserved for the Board of Directors includes a specific section 
detailing the roles and responsibilities of the Council of Governors. There is also a specific 
policy which outlines how the Council of Governors can raise serious concerns about the 
Board of Directors, should the situation ever arise. 

 
Foundation Trust membership 
There are no limits to how many members we can have as a Foundation Trust - anyone who 
is over 16 years old and lives in the North East region can join. We can request that certain 
people do not become members, for example, someone who has threatened, harassed, 
harmed or abused NHS staff, patients or visitors in any way, and members of staff who have 
submitted their notice of resignation (though if eligible they may apply to become a public 
member rather than a staff member). Our constituencies are as follows: 

• North of Tyne: Newcastle upon Tyne, Northumberland and North Tyneside; 

• South of Tyne: Gateshead, South Tyneside and Sunderland; 

• Durham: County Durham and Darlington; and 

• Teesside: Hartlepool, Stockton, Middlesbrough and Redcar & Cleveland. 
 

Our membership profile as at 31 March 2021 was as follows: 
 

Public constituency 

At 1st April 2020 9,054 

New members 40 

Members leaving -129 

At 31st March 2021 8,965 
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Public/ Staff Constituency Number of members 

Staff Unscheduled Care 1,448 

Scheduled Care 448 

Emergency 
Operations Centre 

596 

Support Services 324 

 

The following tables illustrates our membership profile. Please note that the figures do not 
necessarily total 8,965 members in all tables, as this is dependent upon the data disclosed at 
the point of registering. Please note the analysis section of this report excludes: 

• 752 public members with no dates of birth; 

• 243 members with no stated ethnicity; and 

• 59 members with no stated gender. 
 

Public Constituency Number 
of 
members 

Age 0-16* 0 

Age 17 - 21 17 

Age 22+ 8,196 

Not stated 752 

Total 8,965 

*Only individuals aged 16+ are eligible to become members. 

 
Gender 
(Public Constituency) 

Number of 
members 

Female 4,720 

Male 4,186 

Unspecified 59 

 
Public Constituency Number of 

members 

White 8,306 

Black or Black 
British 

48 

Asian or Asian 
British 

239 

Mixed 101 

Other 42 

Not stated 243 

  

Public Constituency Number of 
members 

AB 2,110 

C1 2,532 

C2 2,028 

DE 2,286 
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We held our annual members’ meeting in September 2020 online via Microsoft Teams. The 
event attracted a range of stakeholders including Governors, staff, members, the public and 
representatives from partner organisations. 

 

We provided a look back at the highlights and challenges during 2019/20 including how the 
Trust responded to the pandemic. 

 
Due to the pandemic our normal face-to-face membership activities were suspended, such 
as attendance at community events. 

 

Members who wish to contact their Governor should email governors@neas.nhs.uk or 
alternatively write to our Engagement and Membership Officer who will direct the contact 
to the appropriate Governor, using the address at the end of this report. 

 

Members who wish to contact a Director should address a letter to the Director concerned, 
at the address on the last page of this report. We operate in an open and transparent 
manner and members are welcome to get in touch if they have a query or comment. 

 
NHS Improvement’s Well-Led Framework 
The Board last undertook a detailed assessment against the joint CQC and NHS England and 
Improvement Well-Led Framework just prior to the pandemic in February 2020. 

 

Whilst the full self-assessment was not repeated in 2020/21, the Board has demonstrated 
its regard for the Framework throughout the year. This includes the completion of three 
workshops facilitated by NHS Providers on aspects of Board and organisational governance. 
The implementation of the new governance structure sought to apply the good practice 
principles outlined in the Well-Led Framework to ensure effective flows of information, risks 
and assurances through the structure. 

 
The Board will be undertaking a further self-assessment against the Well-Led Framework in 
2021/22, as well as completing the development programme delivered by NHS Providers. 

 

There are no material inconsistencies between the annual governance statement, corporate 
governance statement and reports from the Care Quality Commission (CQC). 

 
Patient care 
Delivering high quality and effective patient care continued to be a core priority for us 
throughout 2020/21 and we developed innovative ways to enable us to safely respond to 
patient needs during the pandemic. 

 

It is noted that the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) scheme was 
suspended nationally for all providers during 2020/21. 

 
Ambulance clinical quality indicators 
All UK ambulance services participate in the national ambulance clinical quality indicators. 
These measures benchmark the clinical care provided by ambulance services for cardiac 

mailto:governors@neas.nhs.uk
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arrest including post-return of spontaneous circulation (ROSC), stroke, Segment Elevation 
Myocardial Infarction (STEMI) and sepsis patients. 

• Stroke care bundle - this indicator defines those patients with a suspected stroke 
who receive the correct bundle of care. 

• STEMI care bundle - this indicator defines those patients with a STEMI / heart attack 
who receive the appropriate care bundle. 

• Sepsis care bundle - this indicator defines those patients with suspected severe 
sepsis who receive the correct bundle of care. 

• Post-ROSC care bundle - this indicator defines those 
patients who receive the correct bundle of care following a 
ROSC. 

• Survival to Discharge - this indicator measures the 
percentage of patients resuscitated by the Trust who were 
discharged from hospital. Survival to discharge Utstein is 
the percentage of patients with a witnessed cardiac arrest 
who were resuscitated by the Trust and then discharged 
from hospital. 

• ROSC at hospital - this indicator measures the percentage 
of patients who had a ROSC on arrival at hospital, 
following resuscitation. ROSC at hospital Utstein measures 
the percentage of patients with a witnessed arrest who 
had a ROSC on arrival at hospital, following resuscitation 
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Clinical audit 
We continued to deliver clinical audit services during the year, noting that the clinical audit 
team was redeployed for some of the year to support the pandemic response. Topics are 
identified through emerging clinical risks or incidents, patient or staff feedback, as well as 
actions from previous audits. Audits completed during 2020/21 included: 

• The management of patients during delayed hospital handovers; 

• Review of patient re-contacts following non-conveyance by our crews; 

• Conveying patients in cardiac arrest; 

• Drug overdose management; and 

• Management of head injuries. 
 

Learning points are identified from each audit and inform clinical staff training and 
development. 

 
Learning from deaths 
Reviewing the care provided to patients who pass away in our care or following contact with 
the Trust allows us to improve the quality of care provided to future patients. A two-stage 
structured judgement review (SJR) methodology is used to review cases and identify 
learning. The SJR is supplemented by several clinical audits and evaluations for specific 
conditions. 

 
Every death is reviewed the next working day as part of the cardiac arrest audit. In addition 
to these, 851 cases underwent a stage 1 SJR in 2020/21. Of these, 15 progressed to stage 2 
SJR review and 3 were declared serious incidents. 

 

The learning from deaths process has allowed us to identify a number of learnings, for 
example in relation to airway management, and communicate revised guidance to our 
clinical staff. 

 
Our quality priorities 
Our Board of Directors approved three quality priorities for 2020/21, informed by internal 
and external engagement. There was reduced external engagement due to the focussed 
efforts required to respond to the pandemic. 

 
Priority 1: patient safety – managing the deteriorating patient in the Emergency Operations 
Centre 
The aim of this priority is to ensure we have robust processes to manage the identification of 
deteriorating patients in the care of the EOC efficiently and effectively. This challenge is 
especially pertinent when resource levels or rapid peaks in demand mean we are unable to 
meet our ambulance response standards, set out nationally, and where the clinical 
performance standards for our 111 or Clinical Assessment Service are challenged. 

 
We have commenced a one-year study to gather information on cases where we receive 
multiple call backs from the patient or relatives to understand factors which relate to clinical 
deterioration of the patient. We plan to use the findings of this work to help us identify 
whether the frequency of call backs may relate to deterioration and whether any specific 
symptoms can help us identify that there is a concern regarding the patient’s condition. 
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Our intention was to 
undertake a detailed review 
of all current processes and 
procedures to determine if 
they support the timely 
identification of these 
identified factors. We have 
been unable to progress 
with this work as our team 
have been focused on 
responding to the pandemic. 
This has required our health 
advisors and clinicians 
working in the Emergency 
Operations Centre to 
implement clinical guidance, which changed frequently in response to understanding more 
about the COVID-19 virus and other countries affected by it. 

 

We have focused on our internal Demand Management Plan and actions we take, which has 
included reviewing when the service is under pressure those patients who could be advised 
to safely make their own way to hospital. This frees up an ambulance resource to respond to 
those patients in greater clinical need. 

 
Between January 2021 and March 2021 in line with our Demand Management Plan we 
invoked the ‘No send’ policy. In total for that time period there were 1,656 patients who 
were asked to make their own way to hospital or a healthcare facility (such as an urgent 
treatment centre). When reviewing the recontact clinical information there were no patient 
safety incidents reported as a consequence of this. 

 

We also commenced work with our clinicians to understand the actions taken if a patient is 
in peri-arrest (where a person is deteriorating and may go into cardiac arrest). We are also 
exploring how we can use technology to support clinical assessment such as the use of 
telemedicine to actually see the patient. 

 
Priority 2: clinical effectiveness – improving cardiac arrest care 
It is well known that survival for patients experiencing a cardiac arrest is dependent on their 
receiving treatment within a very short timeframe. The aim of this quality priority is to build 
on the work undertaken in 2019/20 and to ensure the care post-cardiac arrest is of a high 
standard to support a positive outcome for the patient. 

 
We have continued to support the purchasing of community public access defibrillators 
(CPADs) through our Charitable Fund. In the North East the average rate of bystander CPR is 
25%, dropping to 19% during the pandemic. The rate of survival from a cardiac arrest in the 
North East is less than 1 in 20 (5%). Nationally it is over 8%. 
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We know that prompt resuscitation 
and using a defibrillator (where this is 
required) helps to save lives. We have 
continued to support the increase of 
CPADs across our regional footprint, 
although progress this year has been 
slower than we would have liked 
there are now 905 CPADs registered 
with us compared to 769 in March 
2020, an increase of 106 CPADs. 

 

We are always looking to work with 
communities and organisations to 
increase the number of defibrillators available to the public. Our Charitable Fund is offering 
£500 to support the costs of purchasing a defibrillator in the postcodes identified by us as 
being an area of need. To find out more information on funding opportunities please click 
on the link below: 
Funding opportunities - North East Ambulance Service - NHS Foundation Trust 
(neas.nhs.uk) 

 

In late 2020/21 we partnered with Labman Automation’s Labmask initiative to help 
communities in the Tees Valley to purchase their own defibrillators and learn vital 
resuscitation skills. As communities in identified areas come forward, the Trust’s Charitable 
Fund and money from Labmask will partially fund the purchase of new defibrillators to be 
stored in weatherproof cabinets fixed to the outside of buildings. They will be available to 
the public 24 hours a day by calling 999. In addition, information and training for 
defibrillator use will be provided via familiarisation sessions, online videos and leaflets. 

 
Our Charitable Fund also worked with Red Sky Foundation to provide cabinets for public 
access defibrillators which had been purchased by the Foundation for the Sunderland area. 

 

We have reviewed the impact of specialist paramedics supporting the dispatch function in 
the EOC by deploying paramedics with advanced skills and experience to patients suffering a 
cardiac arrest. We have received positive feedback from our paramedics on this initiative, 
although we have not been able to access the patient outcome data to fully assess the 
impact of this initiative. 

 

We use smart technologies to activate the public and clinical staff to nearby cardiac arrests. 
In 2019/20 we rolled out the GoodSAM app to first responders and clinical staff to enable a 
prompt response to cardiac arrest by those trained to provide basic life support. We now 
have over 200 people registered. 

 
We have around 100 Community First Responders who are everyday members of the 
general public trained by the Trust in basic first aid and life support. They are provided with 
oxygen and a defibrillator and are deployed to life threatening emergencies, such as chest 
pain, breathing difficulties, cardiac arrest, and unconsciousness, if they are the nearest 
resource, followed by the next nearest emergency care crew. 
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We had planned to roll out the use of the GoodSAM app further in 2020/21, however due to 
COVID-19 we had to cease using the app. The use of the app has been reinstated from 
March 2021. 

 

We have undertaken clinical audits to review the care provided to patients suffering a 
cardiac arrest who were then conveyed to hospital with advanced life support ongoing. This 
demonstrated that 89% of patients in the sample were appropriately conveyed with 
advanced life support ongoing. 

 
We also reviewed the care we provided in line with our national standards for children who 
had a cardiac arrest. As a result of this work we have submitted a proposal nationally to 
consider using our audit tool and standards as a national clinical quality indicator for the 
ambulance service in England. We await feedback on this at the time of producing the 
Annual Report. 

 

We have reviewed the clinical care provided to patients in cardiac arrest and as a result of 
this have ensured the defibrillator data is available for review at our Learning from Deaths 
meetings. 

 

We have worked nationally to develop an agreed pre-alert document with the National 
College of Emergency Medicine and Lead Paramedic Group for Ambulance Trusts. We will 
now be able to capture our pre alerts undertaken, via our electronic Patient Care Record 
and have established key consultant leads in each emergency department to enable 
feedback on any learning. 

 
Priority 3: patient experience – improving end of life care 
We recognise the important part we play in striving to ensure patients who are at the end of 
their life have a calm and peaceful death, in their preferred place of care, wherever possible. 

 

In order to fulfil this priority, we need to have skilled staff within our EOC and throughout 
the operations department to support high quality assessment and care when caring for a 
patient at the end of their life and providing support to their loved ones by having access to 
information to support clinical decision making. 

 

Delivering face to face training has been challenging throughout 2020/21 due to the COVID- 
19 pandemic, however online training has been developed and introduced, with oversight 
from the Macmillan End of Life Facilitator. 279 members of staff had been trained by 
December 2020. 

 

The End of Life Facilitator has established excellent links with the Patient Safety Team, 
Patient Experience Team and Learning from Deaths leads. This has enabled specialist input 
for incidents, complaints or care review and any learning has helped to shape education and 
training programmes as well as providing feedback to staff regarding the care of the patient 
and their reflection and learning. 
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We have continued to work with GP practices to ensure we receive vital information 
regarding the patient’s resuscitation status, to ensure we provide appropriate care. There 
has been a 181% increase in the number of DNACPRs shared with us (to February 2021), 
when compared with information collected from November 2018. It is noted that a step 
change occurred in Aril 2020, which is likely to be in light of discussions held by healthcare 
professionals with patients who were requiring palliative or end of life care needs to 
establish what their views were about resuscitation, in light of COVID-19. 

 
There is a clear link between increased information sharing and a reduction in palliative and 
end of life care patients being conveyed to hospital after an ambulance has arrived on 
scene. 

 

We have updated the commissioners of the work we do to care for patients at the end of 
their life, working in partnership with St Johns Ambulance Service in providing dedicated 
vehicles for this service alongside staff we have trained in providing compassionate and 
sensitive care for patients and their family at such a difficult time. 

 

We are in the process of developing a business case to identify the need to have this 
dedicated transport facility at weekends also. 

 

You can find out further information about our progress against the three quality priorities 
in the Trust’s Quality Report for 2020/21. 

 
Care Quality Commission compliance 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic the CQC paused all routine inspections and as such, we have 
not been subject to a full inspection during 2020/21. This section therefore refers to the 
most recent comprehensive inspection. 

 
The Trust was subject to an Unannounced Inspection during September 2018. The two core 
services inspected were the Emergency Operations Centre and our NHS111 Service. The 
outcome of this inspection was as follows: 
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The Emergency Operations Centre had significantly improved from the 2016 CQC inspection 
and was awarded a ‘Good’ rating within the Well Led Domain and subsequently a ‘Good’ 
rating overall. The NHS111 service retained its previous rating (2016) of ‘Good’ overall and 
‘Good’ within each of the five domains. 

 

The Trust was also subject to an announced Well Led Inspection by the CQC in October 2018 
and the outcome was as follows: 

 
 

 
 

As a result of this comprehensive inspection, the CQC issued the Trust with two 
Requirement Notices: 

• Regulation 12 Health and Social Care Act 2014 – Safe Care and Treatment 

• Regulation 18 Health and Social Care Act 2014 – Staffing 
 

The Trust developed an improvement action plan in response to the areas identified by the 
CQC and this action plan was completed and closed during 2020. 

 

Unfortunately, due to the CQC internal governance processes having not yet being reviewed 
and updated during the COVID-19 pandemic, the CQC cannot ‘formally’ close down the 
action plan – this can only be done at the time of the next formal CQC inspection. 

 

With regards to a CQC investigation into Regulation 13 (Safeguarding), Regulation 17 
(Governance) and Regulation 19 (Fit and Proper Persons), the Trust was issued with a 
Section 29A Warning Notice on 5th August 2020. It was a requirement that we made 
significant improvements identified regarding the quality of healthcare by 1st October 2020. 

 

A detailed review of the relevant policies was undertaken within this timeframe and the 
Section 29A Warning Notice was formally closed down with the CQC. 

 

With effect from October 2020, the CQC rolled out a Transitional Regulatory Approach 
which brought together the best of CQC existing methodologies and clear areas of focus for 
monitoring. This new approach was based on existing Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE). 

 
The Trust was issued and populated the CQC Transitional Monitoring Framework for 
Ambulance Trusts in December 2020. A formal meeting took place with the CQC on 5th 
January 2021 to review our submission and the outcome concluded that we were 
considered as low risk. 
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The CQC are proposing changes to move towards more flexible and responsive inspections 
and to completely move away from comprehensive inspections. This is to be consulted on 
and implemented during 2021. 

 
New services and developments 
One of the national 
priorities emerging from 
the first wave of the Covid 
pandemic, referred to as 
‘111 First’, sought to 
embed patient behaviour 
observed during the 
outbreak where people 
were calling 111 in greater 
volumes before deciding 
to self-present anywhere 
in our urgent and 
emergency care 
system. This meant that 
services across primary 
and secondary care were supported by this initial triage over the phone and that patients 
were signposted to the right services for their need, reducing unnecessary footfall to parts 
of our system that were struggling to meet the pressures of operating within a pandemic 
environment. 

 

This national initiative was supported by NHS England and Improvement funding, allowing 
our 111 service to increase call handling capacity in order to manage the anticipated 
increase in call traffic. National funding was also made available to help us expand the 
range of partnership arrangements we have in place across the North East to provide 
additional clinical support to the 111 CAS. The CAS is vital to ensure that there is capacity 
for 111 calls which require a clinician to speak to the patient before a final determination is 
made as to the service they require. 

 
As such, over the last six months of 2020/21 we were able to expand on pre-existing clinical 
support arrangements for the CAS, provided by County Durham and Darlington NHS 
Foundation Trust. Working with Vocare LTD, Gateshead CBC, and Eston, Langbaurgh and 
Middlesbrough GP Alliance, we now benefit from clinical support capacity across the region 
– with our partners concentrating on primary care level activity, this has freed up capacity 
within our CAS resource to focus on providing enhanced clinical assessment for those 
patients identified as potentially requiring a visit to an emergency department. In this way, 
over 80% of patients identified by the initial 111 assessment as appropriate for an 
emergency department are being ‘downgraded’ to more appropriate community-based 
services, or with self-care advice and information. 

 
As we head into the next financial year, discussions are underway with our commissioners 
as to how this additional capacity for our CAS service can be sustained in 2021/22, enabling 
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us to continue this positive service for our patients, and supporting a viable and sustainable 
urgent and emergency care system across the North East. 

 
Service improvement initiatives 
A significant number of service improvement initiatives were implemented during 2020/21 
to support the Trust to be able to deliver an effective and responsive service to patients 
during the pandemic, as well as keeping our staff safe. 

 

Some of our main service improvements are outlined below: 
 

• During 2020, we have been able to trial home working for Clinical Advisors and 
Senior Clinicians in the CAS, something that the Trust had previously considered. 
Clinicians were provided with technology and system access that enabled them to 
take calls and work on our system from their home location allowing them to 
continue to provide patient care remotely. This functionality has been kept in place 
to support a working from home solution for our clinicians for the future. This has 
provided contingency for periods of surge in activity to enable workforce capacity to 
be increased. 

 

• Emerging from the 111 First initiative was a national requirement for 111 services to 
be able to refer patients into specific arrival times within Emergency Departments 
(Emergency Department Digital Integration). Working with our operating system 
supplier, Cleric, we now have the capability to send information via the ‘Care 
Connect’ standard (a specific way of packaging and sending information). This 
means that we can advise patients on specific arrival times within emergency 
departments, helping to reduce the time that patients will need to wait before being 
seen and the footfall to some of the busiest parts of our urgent and emergency care 
system at a time where it is vital that overcrowding in emergency departments is 
minimised. 

 

• We introduced video consultation facilities to EOC and frontline staff providing 
additional functionality in the provision of advice and supporting clinical and 
operational decision making. The use of video consultation brings improvements to 
patient choice, agenda, access to services and outcomes for patients through remote 
communication and reducing some risk relating to phone/remote assessments 
allowing practitioner to use visual cues. It also enables access to clinical support for 
newly qualified staff and where additional support is required by front line crews. 

 

• During times of pressure during the pandemic, support service clinicians and those 
clinical colleagues who were shielding, were trained in the Manchester Triage 
System (MTS). MTS is a tried and tested standalone clinical triage tool for face to 
face and telephone triage. Once trained, these staff were deployed to help in the 
EOC to support demand by using their new and existing skills to ensure that patients 
that were yet to be seen by an ambulance resource were getting the correct care. 

 

• During 2020/21 we have fully mobilised a team to respond to complex lifting and 
provide increased bariatric capability. This minimises the need to additional crews 



51  

on scene or the fire service and the team have also trialled a stair chair for potential 
future use. In year the team have responded to over 3,500 incidents across both 
Unscheduled and Scheduled care. 

 

• During lockdown it became clear that a new cohort of frequent callers were 
emerging due to Covid 19 and the newly enforced restrictions and reduction in 
community services. The Frequent Caller Team made the decision to manage these 
patients proactively contacting their registered GPs either by telephone or via a 
letter composed specifically for this cohort. At the end of July 2020 which was 4 
weeks after initial GP contact, we saw 11 of the 17 patients which made up the 
newly identified frequent callers significantly reduce their number, a trend which 
continued across the whole group throughout the year. 

 

• Over the past 12 months the mobile communications team have upgraded all the in- 
vehicle mobilisation devices (Terrafix) and installed wifi update servers at key 
locations, to allow for the automated updating of maps on the vehicles. This 
previously required staff to individually visit each vehicle and manually transfer map 
files, often taking over an hour per vehicle plus travel time. This will allow the 
frequency of updates to be increased ensuring staff have more up to date mapping 
information in the field. 

 

• We have implemented the Transfer of Care project within all relevant Primary Care, 
Acute and Urgent Care settings, producing common messages to allow ambulance 
systems to digitally pass patient information to referring healthcare provider 
systems. This improves the efficiency of the handover process between the 
ambulance service and receiving locations, removing time consuming processes and 
duplication of work. 

 

• We have introduced a number of technological changes which have supported our 
staff to be able to undertake their roles effectively, including from home. We 
replaced our security mechanisms and increased capacity for usage of our virtual 
private network (VPN). The replacement of these devices ensures we can monitor 
and protect our critical infrastructure whilst reducing the risk of home working. 
Some of our teams who have patient contact but are now home working, such as the 
Patient Experience Team, have been provided with mobile phones and softphones to 
enable them to continue to provide a responsive service. 

 

• Our entire telephony system for the EOC and corporate services was replaced. This 
involved significant work with the EOC management team so that changeover was 
delivered in a way that ensured uninterrupted service for patients. The new system 
increases resilience in the EOC and opens up chances for new ways of working in the 
future. 

 
Service improvements from patient feedback 
We have faced challenges engaging with communities in 2020/21 due to the pandemic. We 
have maintained contact with HealthWatch groups through the regional Ambulance 
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HealthWatch Forum and the Stakeholder Equality Forum and have with these groups to 
ensure services are appropriate and gather feedback throughout the year. 

 

Community stakeholders have been involved in the review of our communication support 
guide to help staff communicate with people with a variety of communication needs. They 
have also provided feedback and supported the implementation of our new patient survey 
process ensuring we can collect data and information by patients and breakdown this data 
by patient demographics and localities. 

 
During early 2021 we have awarded a contract to a national provider to help us to improve 
our external engagement online and through social media. 

 

The challenges of the pandemic have meant it has been difficult to reach out into 
communities and we have had had to think more imaginatively about what our offer will be 
during 2021 and beyond when restrictions may prevent us from undertaking face-to-face 
engagement. 

 

We are working with the supplier to develop a range of options that will improve our online 
engagement offer and will be implemented by mid-2021. 

 

As mentioned earlier, this year we have fully implemented our new patient survey system 
which allows us more comprehensive analysis of data by protected characteristics and 
localities and provides greater analysis of free text data. 

 
In respect of Scheduled Care 
95.3% of those surveyed rated the 
service good or very good, an 
increase of 6.7% compared to 
2019/20. Responses have 
increased from 246 in 2019/20 to 
707 in 2020/21. Four indicators 
have increased by more than 5%, 
compared to 2019/20: overall 
experience (+6.7%); attitude of 
the call talker (+5.2%); overall 
booking process (+6.2%); and 
overall condition of the 
ambulance (+6.4%). No indicators 
decreased by more than 5% 

 
In respect of NHS 111, 88.1% of those surveyed rated the service good or very good, 0.7% 
less than last year and within 1% of the previous two years. Responses have increased from 
751 in 2019/20 to 2,625 in 2020/21. One indicator has increased by more than 5%, if called 
back the advice and guidance given was useful, very good/ good (+6.9%). No indicators have 
decreased by more than 5%. 
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In respect of those patients we see & treat on scene 98.5% rated the service good or very 
good, 1% more than 2019/20 and within 1.3% of the previous two years. Response rates 
have decreased in 2020/21 to 707 from 1,700-1,750 between 2017 - 2020 due to the 
pandemic and the introduction of new system. 

 

In respect of those patients we see & convey to a healthcare setting 94.6% rated the service 
as good or very good. The response rate was extremely high compared to other service 
lines with 6,241 responses. No comparative data is available as this is a new survey. 

 
Making services accessible to our patients 
We continue to make progress towards ensuring our services are accessible to patients with 
a wide range of communication needs. 

 
We continue to provide: 

• A range of communication mechanisms to contact our services including British Sign 
Language relay, Text Relay and telephone. 

• A range of communication support providers for employees to use and access. 

• Advice and guidance to all staff on meeting the specific communication needs of 
patients through statutory and mandatory training and factsheets 

• The Recite Me accessibility tool to our website giving users access to a range of 
accessibility features for disabled people and people whose first language is not 
English. 

• The Communications Support Guide to assist staff to communicate with people with 
a variety of communication needs. 

• A learning disability web zone and a young persons’ learning web zone improving 
information about how and when to use our services to these groups of people. 

 

We continue to work with commissioners, regional and national partners and NHS England 
and Improvement to explore how we can meet the Accessible Information Standard. 

 
We continue to provide information in a range of formats on request. We provide a range of 
literature in easy read format for people with learning disabilities and we can provide 
information in large print, Braille, audio and other formats on request. Our website is 
compatible with national W3C accessibility features to ensure people with a range of 
different needs are able to access information contained on our website. 

 
Learning from complaints 
Every complaint provides a valuable opportunity to learn what went wrong and make 
changes in order to improve the service in future. Learning for staff is included in the 
monthly Patient Safety and Patient Experience Learning Bulletin which is distributed to all 
staff using the Trust’s intranet and our new Workplace forum. Operational managers are 
also encouraged to display the bulletins on Trust premises where possible. 

 

The year has seen the lowest levels of complaints received by the Trust since electronic 
records were compiled. 
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 2020/21 2019/20 Difference +/- 
Total complaints 271 436 -38% 

Total 999, 111, Urgent 
Calls, Calls Answered 

1,481,540 1,751,720 -15.4% 

Complaints as a % 
Total calls for 999, 
111, Urgent Calls, and 
Scheduled Care 
Journeys (Patients 
and Escorts) 

0.0002% 0.025% -0.0248% 

Total Number of 
upheld Complaints 

76 181 -105 

Total Number of Part 
Upheld Complaints 

73 111 -38 

 

The key reasons that members of the public had cause to complain in 2020/21 are shown 
below. These are the elements to each complaint, so one complaint may feature several of 
these elements: 

 
Complaint element 2020/21 2019/20 Difference +/- 

Quality of Care 195 264 -69 

Staff Attitude 82 140 -58 

Timeliness of 
Response 

58 135 -77 

Quality of 
Communication 

30 63 -33 

Driving Incident 5 21 -16 

Standards/ 
Compliance 

2 18 -16 

Covid-19 4 N/A +4 

Total 372 641 -269 

 
Each complaint is investigated and if there is any learning identified this is monitored and 
delivered to reduce the likelihood of recurrence of a similar incident in future. There have 
been 78 learning and reflection actions identified from complaints during 2020/21. Often 
the actions have already been implemented before the response to the complaint is 
delivered, and these are not electronically recorded but would make the total learning and 
reflection actions substantially higher. There were 13 learning and reflection actions still 
open at the end of the year which will continue to be monitored into 2021/22 and any 
learning actioned so they can be closed. 

 
Individual staff learning that is identified from complaints is addressed as soon as possible 
with the relevant staff member(s). Often there can be wider learning which is beneficial to 
other staff. 
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Some key learning from 2020/21 includes: 
• Focus on documentation and quality of clinical record-keeping – there were several 

complaints where the rationale for decision-making was not sufficiently 
documented. Whilst record-keeping may not necessarily directly impact on patient 
care, documentation is a vital part of the patient record and this has featured in 
multiple learning bulletins throughout the year. 

• Use of alternative pain scales – the traditional 1-10 pain scale may not be suitable 
for patients with dementia, learning disabilities, or some other neurodiverse 
conditions. We have circulated information within the learning bulletin on assessing 
pain in patients with cognitive impairment. We have identified a preferred tool for 
assessing pain in this cohort of patients in prehospital settings and are working to 
embed this into Trust technology used by operational crews. 

• Changes to defibrillator options for callers to 999 – system changes were made to 
how defibrillators are offered to callers. Previously, public access defibrillators would 
be notified to callers, where it was safe for someone to be asked to retrieve one. This 
led to a caller being asked to retrieve a defibrillator from a school when the school 
was closed. The system changes made mean that school defibrillators will only 
present as an option if the patient is on the school premises, with other public 
defibrillators being amended to ensure that they all have clear hours of access 
noted. 

• Removal of bars prior to transferring patient to a stretcher – there was a complaint 
where a crew used a patient’s personal hoist to transfer them to a stretcher and the 
patient suffered injury. The Trust responded with a health and safety bulletin which 
went to all staff with guidelines to remove the bars before transferring patients. 

• Increased communication with staff about appropriate patient mobilisation – 
crews have been reminded of the importance of conducting dynamic risk 
assessments before mobilising patients and requesting assistance if they are unable 
to safely move their patient. Whilst crews are supported to engage in unnecessary 
manual handling, it is important to ensure patient safety at all times and maintain 
patient dignity during any manoeuvres. 

• Increased promotion of equality training – unfortunately, we received several 
complaints over the course of the year where patients or their family members felt 
that they had received care or had an interaction which was influenced by prejudice 
or unconscious bias. The Trust takes such complaints extremely seriously and has 
promoted HIV awareness training, as well as providing advice and information to 
staff as part of AIDS awareness day, Transgender Day of Visibility, International Day 
for the Elimination of Racial Discrimination, International Women’s Day, LGBT 
History Month, and other dates in the calendar to raise focus and information on 
equality. We have signed up to the Positive Allies Programme in partnership with 
Sunderland University and we are working through the framework to be formally 
accredited by November 2021. 

• Focus on the impact of conversation from the crew – several complaints related to 
comments that staff had made which they perceived as unprofessional, or made 
them worried or seemed inappropriate, such as suggesting that their condition was 
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not an emergency or discouraging them from attending hospital. Learning bulletins 
have focussed on the impact of words to people when they are feeling vulnerable, 
and how important it is to be compassionate, empathetic and professional to 
everyone at a scene. 

• Review of processes for on-scene time and allocation of emergency back-up - 
following a complaint involving extended time on scene waiting for back-up, a new 
procedure has been established to manage this and minimise delay in conveying a 
patient to hospital. Improvement of information sharing with third party providers 
working on our behalf is also underway to ensure consistency for all emergency 
responders. 

 

Stakeholder relations 
Much of our usual community engagement and attendance at physical events and activities 
has been paused for the year due to the pandemic and associated restrictions. We 
continued to meet with the HealthWatch Ambulance Forum. Last year we held four 
meetings. We gathered useful information on our services and received updates from 
HealthWatch Groups and PALs. We engaged on: 

• Our pandemic response; 

• Access to services; 

• Our new survey system and quarterly reports; 

• Patient transport service eligibility criteria; 

• Patient experience annual report; 

• Research updates; 

• Performance; 

• Message in a bottle; 

• Our equality plan; 

• Quality priorities and account; 

• Talk before you walk campaign; 

• Video consultation process; and 

• Trust Strategy 2021-2026. 
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We attended a range of online events across the region throughout the year to promote our 
services, and answer queries from community organisations. However, this was limited as 
some participants did not have 
online access or organisations and 
their employees were furloughed 
for long periods of the year. 

 

As lockdown restrictions eased in 
July 2020, our crews experienced 
some shocking attacks, including 
the worst night of physical violence 
in living memory which saw three 
separate attacks, all fuelled by 
alcohol and drugs, resulting in two 
staff needing hospital treatment 
and two vehicles badly damaged 
and off the road for weeks for repairs. 

 

Members of the public and politicians contacted us to pledge their support and ask what 
they could do. This display of solidarity was an enormous comfort to our crews and was 
greatly appreciated. 

 
In an extraordinarily difficult year, we were able to engage with several overview and 
scrutiny committees to discuss: 

• Mental health of ambulance staff; 

• Trends in opioid use and our responses to it; 

• Response performance standards; and 

• Quality priorities and account. 
 

Helen Ray 
Chief Executive 
10 June 2021 
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Remuneration Report 

 
Annual statement on remuneration 
The Board’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee met three times during 2020/21 to 
fulfil its appointment and remuneration role. 

 

The Committee’s main work areas and achievements in relation to remuneration and 
Director performance during the year included: 

• Leading on the recruitment of the Director of Quality, Patient Safety, Innovation and 
Improvement. The Committee approved the appointment of Sarah Rushbrooke to 
this post; 

• Receiving assurance over the performance of the Executive Directors for 2019/20 
and 2020/21; 

• Receiving assurance over the performance of the Chief Executive for 2019/20 and 
the 2020/21, including performance-related elements of remuneration. As such the 
Committee approved the award of the earn-back element of the Chief Executive’s 
salary, as the appraisal objectives set for the year had been met; and 

• Reviewing and approving the recommendations to apply the national inflationary 
uplift to Executive Director remuneration for 2020/21. 

 

 
Peter Strachan 
Chairman 
10 June 2021 

 
Senior managers’ remuneration policy 
For the purposes of this policy and this report, senior managers are defined as those 
individuals who hold Board positions, namely the Chief Executive, Chairman, Executive 
Directors and Non-Executive Directors. 

 

As outlined in the Directors’ Report the Council of Governors decides on the remuneration 
of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors. 

 
In line with best practice and regulatory guidance, the Governor Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, on behalf of the Council, reviews the latest NHS England and 
Improvement guidance and benchmarking on basic pay and enhancements for the Chair and 
Non-Executive Directors. 

 

For Executive Directors, the Board’s own Nomination & Remuneration Committee, 
consisting of Non-Executive Directors, sets the policy and authorises the remuneration 
packages and contractual terms that are sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Executive 
Directors whilst remaining cost effective. 
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Proper regard to the Trust’s circumstances, performance and comparative information from 
within the NHS and other public sector organisations are considered. 

 
 

Pay and conditions of other Trust employees are considered when setting the remuneration 
for senior managers. Only Board Members are paid outside of the Agenda for Change pay 
framework. 

 
Executive Director salaries are market-tested, and benchmarking is a key factor in 
determining appropriate salaries, alongside the regulatory remuneration scales. 

 

We have reviewed our approach on Executive remuneration to determine whether the 
amounts paid are necessary and justifiable. This has involved undertaking both regional and 
national benchmarking to ascertain how our rates of Executive pay compare to others. 

 

Board-level recruitment is undertaken in line with the Trust’s equality and diversity policies 
and the principles used for all staff recruitment. The Board and its Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee are committed to ensuring that the Board of Directors is as 
representative as possible of the communities the Trust serves. 

 

We have two very senior managers with basic earnings greater than £150,000 during 
2020/21. The Committee utilised the NHS England and NHS Improvement Very Senior 
Manager pay scales for ambulance trusts to inform their view. The Committee balanced 
salary level considerations with the need to attract high-calibre candidates to vacancies and 
ensure that salary packages were sufficiently but not excessively competitive in order to 
secure individuals with significant relevant experience. 

 
We understand and fully support the need to critically assess Executive remuneration levels 
in order to ensure they are necessary and justifiable, particularly in the current financial 
climate. It is critical that we are able to attract the right calibre of candidates within our 
local market, and our salaries therefore need to be within a reasonable range when 
compared to other local trusts. We need to ensure that we are able to attract and retain 
good calibre candidates for the benefit of the Trust, our patients and our staff. 

 

The Trust is committed to ensuring that Director’s pay is considered in line with the Trust’s 
performance, delivery of our Strategic Plan, together with the national context. This is 
shown within the future policy table below. 

 
COMPONENT 
OF PAY 

LINK TO 
STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES 

HOW THE 
TRUST 
OPERATES THIS 
IN PRACTICE 

MAXIMUM 
LIMIT 

PERFORMANCE 
MEASURES 

BASIC SALARY To enable the 
Trust to attract 
and retain the 

Executive 
Director salaries 
are monitored 

No prescribed 
maximum limit, 
however 

Annual 
appraisal of 
performance 
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 highest calibre 
of senior 
leaders in a 
competitive 
market place 
through 
offering 
appropriate but 
attractive 
salary packages 

using market 
testing and 
benchmarking. 

 

Non-Executive 
Director salaries 
are also 
benchmarked 
to provide 
assurance that 
salaries remain 
appropriate. 

salaries over 
£150,000 are 
subject to 
external 
opinion 

against agreed 
personal and 
corporate 
objectives. 

TAXABLE 
BENEFITS 

 Directors are 
given a car 
allowance / 
lease car 

No prescribed 
maximum limit 

Not applicable 

 Depending on 
job role, some 
Directors are in 
receipt of a 
phone 
allowance. 

  

 Non-Executive 
Directors do not 
receive any 
benefits. 

  

PENSION  Via the NHS 
Pension Scheme 

Standard NHS 
Pension 
Scheme 

Not applicable 

BONUS  The Trust has 
no annual 
bonus 
arrangements in 
place. 

No prescribed 
maximum limit. 

Exceptional 
performance, as 
defined by the 
Remuneration 
Committee 

 However:   

 The 
Remuneration 
Committee 
reserves the 
right to approve 
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  one-off, non- 
recurring 
payments to 
recognise 
exceptional 
performance, or 
delivery of 
specific 
projects. 

  

EARN-BACK   Where salary 
levels are 
pitched in 
excess of 
£150,000 

Annual 
appraisal of 
performance 
against agreed 
personal and 
corporate 
objectives. 

  

Role Basic salary        Salary 
per annum (£)    enhancement 

per annum in 
respect of the 
role (£) 

Fees payable Other items 
for any other considered in 
duty (£) respect of 

remuneration 

Chair 44,000 - - - 

Existing Non- 
Executive 
Directors 

14,000 - - - 

Newly 
appointed Non- 
Executive 
Directors* 

13,000 - - - 

Deputy Chair 14,000 - - - 

Audit 
Committee 
Chair^ 

14,000 1,500 - - 

Senior 
Independent 
Director 

14,000 1,500 - - 

 

For Non-Executive Directors, the components of their remuneration are set out in the 
following table. NHS England and Improvement released new requirements regarding Chair 
and Non-Executive Director remuneration in November 2019. The aim of this new 
publication was to align remuneration for Chairs and Non-Executive Directors in both trusts 
and foundation trusts by April 2022. The Governor Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee therefore reviewed the proposed national remuneration structures set by NHS 
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Improvement and determined that no immediate changes were required to current 
remuneration levels for existing post-holders. 
*In line with the single uniform rate recommended by NHS England and Improvement. 
^Since February 2021 the Deputy Chair/ Senior Independent Director has assumed the Audit 
Committee Chair role but has declined to accept the uplift of £1,500. 

 
Performance conditions 
The Council of Governors approved a performance assessment and appraisal process for the 
Chair and Non-Executive Directors and the Governor Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee decided on some of the key elements of that. The performance appraisal 
process considers best practice and enables all Governors and fellow Board Members to 
provide feedback on a non-attributable basis in the form of a survey. The survey was 
developed to enable assessments of performance to be made against the core 
competencies for the Chairman and Non-Executive Director roles. 

 
The Chair agrees objectives with each Non-Executive Director and develops their own 
personal objectives. The Senior Independent Director conducts the Chairman’s appraisal, 
with input from the Lead Governor. 

 

In respect of the Chairman’s appraisal the Senior Independent Director put in place plans to 
follow the new NHS England and Improvement requirements. This included utilising 
standardised competencies and seeking views from stakeholders on performance against 
these competencies. The appraisal was completed in March 2021. 

 

The Executive arm of the Board of Directors is monitored both collectively and individually, 
on delivery of key objectives. The Chief Executive meets with each Director on a monthly 
basis which assists in preparation for the year-end appraisal. The Chairman meets with the 
Chief Executive on a weekly basis and conducts performance reviews every six months. 

 
The Trust’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee (consisting of Non-Executive 
Directors) takes account of the performance of each Director and that of the Executive arm 
of the Board as part of its annual salary review discussions. 

 

All 2020/21 appraisals for Board Members have been completed. 

 
Service contracts for senior managers 
Our Executive Directors’ contracts are subject to a notice period of 6 months. Agreement to 
any lesser period of notice must be approved by the Trust Board, subject to an assessment 
of the risk to the continuity of the business. Non-Executive Directors can terminate their 
contract at any time. 

 

Senior managers’ remuneration and pension benefits are detailed in the tables on the 
following pages. Accounting policies for pension and other retirement benefits are set out 
within the accounts. No compensation for loss of office payable or receivable has been 
made under the terms of the approved Compensation Scheme, and there have been no 
payments to past senior managers (this aspect of the remuneration report is subject to 
audit). 
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The key components of the remuneration package for senior managers include: 

• Salary and fees; 

• All taxable benefit; and 

• Pension related benefit. 
 

Some terms are specific to individual senior managers, which is assessed on a case by case 
basis, such as: 

• Vehicles; 

• On call arrangements; and 

• Earn-back – in response to NHS England and Improvement’s guidance on Very Senior 
Manager Pay. 

 
Annual report on remuneration 

 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is chaired by the Chair of the Board, and all 
Non-Executive Directors are members of the Committee. There have been three meetings 
of the Committee during 2020/21 and Board Member attendance can be seen in the table 
within the Directors’ Report. 

 
Professional advice to the Committee was provided by the Director of People and 
Development for the meetings held in May and June 2020. 

 

Further information about the remit of the Committee can be found in the Senior Manager 
Remuneration section of this report. The term dates for senior managers can be seen 
within the Board composition table in the Directors’ Report. 

 
Expenses payments to Governors and Directors 
Expenditure on Governors’ travel expenses amounted to £24.60 (£3,809 2019/20). The total 
number of Governors claiming was 1. The number of Governors in post during the year 
varied due to a number of new appointments, resignations and changes in our appointed 
Governors. The year commenced with 28 Governors and ended with 27 Governors in post. 

 

Directors’ expenses for the reporting period were £1,589 (£2,866 2019/20). The total 
number of Directors claiming was 5 out of a maximum of 15 Directors who served on the 
Board during the year. 

 
The remuneration tables on the following pages are subject to audit. 
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 Period 1st April 2020 - 31 March 2021 

 
 

Name and Title 

Salary Taxable 
Benefits 

Annual 
Performance 

Related 
Bonus 

Long Term 
Performance 

Related 
Bonus 

All Pension 
Related 
Benefits 

Total 
Remuneration 

 (bands 
of 

£5,000) 

(nearest 
£100) 
Note 1 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 
Note 2 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

 £'000 £ £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Helen Ray - Chief Executive 
Note 7 

 
145-150 

 
5,300 

 
10-15 

 
0 

 
30-32.5 

 
190-195 

Kevin Scollay - Group 
Director of Finance and 
Contracting 

 

100-105 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

25-27.5 

 

130-135 

Paul Liversidge - Chief 
Operating Officer and 
Deputy Chief Executive 

 

115-120 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

115-120 

Karen O'Brien - Director of 
People and Development 

 
105-110 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
92.5-95 

 
200-205 

Sarah Rushbrooke - Director 
of Quality and Patient 
Safety, Innovation and 
Improvement (from 
03/08/20) 

 
 

 
70-75 

 
 

 
0 

 
 

 
0 

 
 

 
0 

 
 

 
70-72.5 

 
 

 
140-145 

Joanne Baxter - Director of 
Quality and Safety, 
Executive Nurse (to 
30/06/20) 

 
 

25-30 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

157.5-160 

 
 

180-185 

Caroline Thurlbeck - Director 
of Strategy, Transformation 
& Technology (to 24/02/21) 
Note 5 

 
 

130-135 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

12.5-15 

 
 

145-150 

Mathew Beattie - Medical 
Director 
Note 4 

 

155-160 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

155-160 

       

Peter Strachan - Chairman 40-45 0 0 0 0 40-45 

Douglas Taylor - Non- 
Executive Director (to 
31/01/21) 

 

10-15 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

10-15 

Catherine Young - Non- 
Executive Director 

 
15-20 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
15-20 

Helen Suddes - Non- 
Executive Director 

 
5-10 

 
3,400 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
5-10 

Carolyn Peacock - Non- 
Executive Director 

 
10-15 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
10-15 

John Marshall - Non- 
Executive Director 

 
10-15 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
10-15 

Gerry Morrow - Non- 
Executive Director 

 
10-15 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
10-15 

Chris Fairs - Associate Non- 
Executive Director 

 
5-10 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
5-10 

Raman Sanghera - Non- 
Executive Director (from 
18/01/21) 

 

0-5 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0-5 

Note 1 – taxable benefits refer to a lease car 
Note 2 - this is the annual increase in pension entitlement determined in accordance with the HMRC method. 
Note 3 - there have been no payments made to past senior managers in the year. 
Note 4 - Mathew Beattie is not a member of the NHS Pensions Scheme so will not be included within the pension tables on 
the following pages. 
Note 5 - Caroline Thurlbeck commenced a 12-month secondment in February 2020. 
Note 6 – In 2029/20 Dr Mathew Beattie’s pay was composed of a number of different elements relating to clinical duties, as 
well as his salary as the Trust’s Medical Director. There was no additional income in 2020/21 and therefore the following 
table only shows the prior year figures. 
Note 7 – in accordance with the contract of employment, an element of the Chief Executive’s pay is on an earn-back basis 
dependent upon performance (£15,000 per annum). This is shown separately in the table. The payment is dependent upon 
the achievement of specific performance objectives set by the Chairman as part of the annual appraisal process. Further 
information is included in the Chairman’s annual statement on remuneration. 



65  

 

Income Source 19/20 

 £ 

Income associated with Medical Director position 124,120 

Income from GP sessional work in the Clinical Assessment Service 
and as part of the GP Out of Hours contracts 

 
43,338 

TOTAL 167,458 

 
 Period 1st April 2019 - 31 March 2020 

 
 

Name and Title 

Salary Taxable 
Benefits 

Annual 
Performance 

Related 
Bonus 

Long Term 
Performance 

Related 
Bonus 

All Pension 
Related 
Benefits 

Total 
Remuneration 

 (bands 
of 

£5,000) 

(nearest 
£100) 
Note 1 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£2,500) Note 

2 

(bands of £5,000) 

 £'000 £ £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Helen Ray - Chief Executive 
(from 16/09/19) 

 
85-90 

 
4,200 

 
0 

 
0 

 
40-42.5 

 
130-135 

Yvonne Ormston - Chief 
Executive (to 02/06/19) 

 
25-30 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

  
25-30 

Kevin Scollay - Group 
Director of Finance and 
Contracting (from 04/06/19) 

 

85-90 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

90-92.5 

 

175-180 

Lynne Hodgson - Director of 
Finance and Resources (to 
12/05/19) 

 

15-20 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

  

15-20 

Paul Liversidge - Chief 
Operating Officer and 
Interim Chief Executive 
(03/06/19 - 15/09/19) 

 
 

120-125 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

112.5-115 

 
 

235-240 

Victoria Court – Interim Chief 
Operating Officer (03/06/19 - 
15/09/19) 

 

85-90 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

85-90 

Jason Emerson - Director of 
People & Development (from 
04/06/19 to 27/03/20) 

 

80-85 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

80-85 

Joanne Baxter - Director of 
Quality and Safety, 
Executive Nurse 

 

110-115 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

2.5-5 

 

110-115 

Caroline Thurlbeck - Director 
of Strategy, Transformation 
& Technology 
Note 5 

 
 

105-110 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

7.5-10 

 
 

110-115 

Mathew Beattie - Medical 
Director 
Note 4 & 6 

 

165-170 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

165-170 

       

Peter Strachan - Chairman 40-45 0 0 0 0 40-45 

Douglas Taylor - Non- 
Executive Director 

 
15-20 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
15-20 

Catherine Young - Non- 
Executive Director 

 
15-20 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
15-20 

Helen Suddes - Non- 
Executive Director 

 
5-10 

 
5,900 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
10-15 

Carolyn Peacock - Non- 
Executive Director 

 
10-15 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
10-15 

John Marshall - Non- 
Executive Director 

 
10-15 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
10-15 

Gerry Morrow - Non- 
Executive Director 

 
10-15 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
10-15 

Chris Fairs - Associate Non- 
Executive Director (from 
01/09/20) 

 

0-5 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0-5 
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Name and title 

Period Real 
increase 

in 
pension 
at age 60 
(bands of 
£2,500) 

Real 
increase 

in 
pension 

lump sum 
at age 60 
(bands of 
£2,500) 

Total 
accrued 
pension 
at age 

60 at 31 
March 
2021 

(bands 
of 

£5,000) 

Lump 
sum at 
age 60 
related 

to 
accrued 
pension 

at 31 
March 
2021 

(bands 
of 

£5,000) 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 31 
March 2021 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 31 
March 2020 

Real 
increase 

in 
Employer 
Funded 

Cash 
Equivalen 
t Transfer 

Value 

Employers 
Contribution 

to 
Stakeholder 

Pension 

  
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 

Helen Ray - 
Chief Executive 

01/04/20 
- 
31/03/21 

 

2.5-5.0 

 

0 

60-65 145-150 1,325 1,239 45  

Kevin Scollay - 
Group Director 
of Finance and 
Contracting 

 

01/04/20 
- 
31/03/21 

 
 

0.0-2.5 

 
 

0.0-2.5 

 
 

15-20 

 
 

30-35 

 
 

218 

 
 

191 

10  

Paul Liversidge 
– Chief 
Operating 
Officer 

 

01/04/20 
- 
31/03/21 

 
 

0.0 

 
 

0 

 
 

50-55 

 
 

150-155 

 
 

1,217 

 
 

1,249 

0  

Karen O'Brien - 
Director of 
People and 
Development 

 

01/04/20 
- 
31/03/21 

 
 

5.0-7.5 

 
 

7.5-10.0 

 
 

20-25 

 
 

40-45 

 
 

304 

 
 

228 

58  

Sarah 
Rushbrooke - 
Director of 
Quality, Patient 
Safety, 
Innovation & 
Improvement 

 
 

 
03/08/20 
- 
31/03/21 

 
 
 
 

 
2.5-5.0 

 
 
 
 

 
2.5-5.0 

 
 
 
 

 
45-50 

 
 
 
 

 
115-120 

 
 
 
 

 
953 

 
 
 
 

 
859 

45  

Joanne Baxter - 
Director of 
Quality and 
Safety 

 
01/04/20 
- 
27/06/20 

 
 

0.0-2.5 

 
 

2.5-5.0 

 
 

40-45 

 
 

120-125 

 
 

66 

 
 

727 

0  

Caroline 
Thurlbeck - 
Director of 
Strategy, 
Transformation 
& Technology 

 
 

01/04/20 
- 
24/02/21 

 
 
 

 
0.0-2.5 

 
 
 

 
0 

 
 
 

 
40-45 

 
 
 

 
95-100 

 
 
 

 
853 

 
 
 

 
803 

19  
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Name and title 

Period Real 
increase 

in 
pension 
at age 60 
(bands of 
£2,500) 

Real 
increase 

in 
pension 

lump sum 
at age 60 
(bands of 
£2,500) 

Total 
accrued 
pension 
at age 

60 at 31 
March 
2020 

(bands 
of 

£5,000) 

Lump 
sum at 
age 60 
related 

to 
accrued 
pension 

at 31 
March 
2020 

(bands 
of 

£5,000) 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 31 
March 2020 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 31 
March 2019 

Real 
increase 

in 
Employer 
Funded 

Cash 
Equivalen 
t Transfer 

Value 

Employers 
Contribution 

to 
Stakeholder 

Pension 

  
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 
£000 

 

Helen Ray - 
Chief Executive 

16/09/20 
19 - 
31/03/20 

 

0.0-2.5 

 

0.0-2.5 

55-60 145-150 1,239 1,175 24  

Yvonne Ormston 
- Chief 
Executive 

01/04/20 
19 - 
06/06/19 

 

0 

 

0 

60-65 185-160  

1,459 

 

1,450 

0  

Paul Liversidge 
– Chief 
Operating 
Officer 

 
01/04/20 
19 - 
31/03/20 

 
 

5.0-7.5 

 
 

15-17.5 

 
 

50-55 

 
 

155-160 

 
 

1,249 

 
 

1,089 

144  

Kevin Scollay - 
Group Director 
of Finance and 
Contracting 

 

03/06/20 
19 - 
31/03/20 

 
 

2.5-5.0 

 
 

5-7.5 

 
 

10-15 

 
 

30-35 

 
 

191 

 
 

127 

41  

Lynne Hodgson 
- Director of 
Finance and 
Resources 

 

01/04/20 
19 - 
16/05/20 

 
 

0 

 
 

10-12.5 

 
 

45-50 

 
 

245-250 

 
 

0 

 
 

1,152 

0  

Caroline 
Thurlbeck - 
Director of 
Strategy, 
Transformation 
& Technology 

 
 

01/04/20 
19 - 
31/03/20 

 
 
 

 
0.0-2.5 

 
 
 

 
0.0-2.5 

 
 
 

 
40-45 

 
 
 

 
95-100 

 
 
 

 
803 

 
 
 

 
775 

14  

Joanne Baxter - 
Director of 
Quality and 
Safety 

 

01/04/20 
19 - 
31/03/20 

 
 

0.0-2.5 

 
 

0.0-2.5 

 
 

35-40 

 
 

100-105 

 
 

727 

 
 

702 

11  

 

Mathew Beattie - 
Medical Director 

01/04/20 
19 - 
31/03/20 

 

0.0-2.5 

 

0.0-2.5 

 

30-35 

 

65-70 

 

524 

 

514 

4  

 

 

Fair pay multiple 
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest-paid Director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the 
organisation’s workforce. The banded remuneration of the highest paid Director in North 
East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust was £160k - £165k (2019/20: £167k). This 
was 6 (2019/20: 8) times the median remuneration of the workforce which was £27,514. 
Total remuneration includes, salary and non-consolidated performance related pay. It does 
not include employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of 
pensions. 

 

 2020/21 2019/20 

Band of highest paid 
Director’s total remuneration 
(£'000) 

160-165 165-170 

Median total (£) 27,514 20,794 

Remuneration ratio 6 8 
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In 2020/21 4 (2019/20: 1) employees received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid 
Director. Remuneration ranged from £212.85 to £227,265.11 (2019/20: £44.25 to 
£267,457.46). 

 
Cash equivalent transfer value 
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the 
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits 
valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable 
from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme, or arrangement to 
secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member 
leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The 
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a 
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a 
senior capacity to which the disclosure applies. The CETV figures, and from 2004-05 the 
other pension details, include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or 
arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also 
include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing 
additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated 
within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries. 

 
Benefits and related CETVs do not allow for any potential future adjustment arising from the 
McCloud judgment”. The method used to calculate CETVs has changed to remove the 
adjustment for Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) on 8 August 2019. If an individual was 
entitled to a GMP, this will affect the calculation of the real increase in CETV which has been 
reported. This is more likely to affect individuals who are members of the 1995 Section and 
2008 Section of the NHS Pension Scheme. 

 
Pensions and retirement benefit 
The provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme cover past and present employees. The scheme 
is an unfunded defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and 
other bodies allowed under direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. The 
scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost of participating 
in the scheme for an NHS body is taken to equal the contributions payable to the scheme for 
the accounting period. The total employer contribution payable for 2020/21 was 
£10,828,658. On advice from the scheme actuary, scheme contributions may be varied from 
time to time to reflect changes in the scheme’s liabilities. A more comprehensive accounting 
policy note on pension liabilities is included in the full set of the accounts. 

 

 
Helen Ray 
Chief Executive 
10 June 2021 
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Staff Report 
 

Looking after our staff is one of the cornerstones of our new Trust strategy and will be 
supported by our People Plan which will provide the foundations for the delivery of our 
people priorities over the next five years. 

Our first ambition is for the Trust to be a great place to work and grow. 

We will do this by: 

• Looking after our people now, supporting a period of recovery by creating a 
compassionate and inclusive culture, that promotes staff wellbeing; 

• Growing and empowering our workforce for the future, providing opportunities for 
learning and development in order to deliver the best possible care for our patients; 

• Strengthening our team ethos as #One team. We know from feedback, that in our 
response to the coronavirus pandemic we are stronger together whether that is 
front line, corporate and support staff at NEAS or working with our partners both 
regionally and on a national footing; and 

• Supporting our staff to work flexibly, building on our learning from 2020, with the 
appropriate support to feel safe, healthy, effective and connected. 

 

Our People plan will underpin our ambition for the Trust to be a great place to work and 
grow will be aligned to the NHS People Promise and will detail the actions we will take over 
the next five years to achieve this. 

 

 
Our People priorities will be: 

• To develop supportive Health and Well-being plans that look after our people, 

promoting a healthy culture; 

• Planning how we will integrate into the Integrated Care system; aligning roles and 

having the right structure in place; 

• To be responsive and integrated into our operational model through effective 

business partnering; and 

• To adopt flexible and agile ways of working. 

Workforce headlines – recruitment and retention 
We have continued to work hard to recruit and retain high calibre staff, both in relation to 
the front line and supporting functions. The Trust’s monthly turnover rates remained below 
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the local threshold of 1.25% in every month and for most months was less than 1%; 
averaging 0.63%, with an average turnover rate of 8.53%. 

 

The Trust increased its headcount by 141 staff over the year (112.18 whole time 
equivalents). This has included increasing the paramedic establishment in line with the 
output of our demand and capacity review. 

 
Workforce headlines - -staff engagement and wellbeing 
There has continued to be a focus on sickness absence and supporting the wellbeing of our 
staff in 2020/21, particularly to adjust and support staff throughout the unprecedented 
pandemic including staff within clinical extremely vulnerable groups. The sickness absence 
rate for the year ended 31 March 2021 was 7.74%. 

 
In April 2020 we launched the ‘Help Hub’, a section on the intranet where all employees can 
find a range of useful information provided by inhouse experts on wellbeing support whilst 
at work and at home. Working in collaboration with the Help Hub is the People Pulse 
Survey which is available for completion on a monthly basis. It asks our employees a number 
of questions about how they are feeling in terms of mood, if they feel supported and what 
additional support they would like to see in place. The data from the People Pulse is 
analysed and informs the information that is designed and cascaded through the Help Hub 
so that we are ensuring that the right support is available at the right time for all staff. 

 

As a result of COVID-19 many of our 
teams have adapted to home working 
over the last 12 months to allow us to 
utilise some of our estates in a different 
way and allow social distancing and 
infection control and prevention 
measures. We have supported staff 
working from home through surveys, 
online events, check-ins, providing 
equipment and workstation items, and 
supporting more flexible ways of 
working, as well as development for line 
managers managing remote teams. 

 
Workforce headlines – Freedom to Speak Up 
We continued to promote Freedom to Speak Up and the role of the Freedom to Speak Up 
Guardian to staff across the Trust during 2020/21. During the year the Guardian received 
sixteen concerns, which was an increase on the previous year’s figure of nine. 

 

Most cases raised concerns about staff behaviour, primarily relating to individual staff 
members. Where concerns related to the culture of a particular team / location, longer term 
pieces of work have been commissioned to address these areas and behaviours. 

 

Only minimal patient safety issues were raised through Freedom to Speak Up and where 
this had occurred, there was immediate escalation and investigation to identify and act on 
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potential risks. Only one concern was raised in relation to the pandemic and this was 
investigated and resolved successfully. 

 

In some cases it was concluded that there was no case to answer and the person raising the 
concern received feedback to explain the outcome of the investigation. In other cases 
elements of the concerns were upheld and this resulted in recommendations being made to 
either strengthen a process / policy or to support an individual in improving their 
competency or management skills. 

 
It is recognised that Freedom to Speak Up is only one mechanism for raising concerns within 
the Trust. The Trust is also a high reporter of incidents, which again provides assurance that 
staff feel confident in reporting issues through the formal incident reporting channels. 

 

The People and Development Committee and Board of Directors have been appraised of 
Freedom to Speak Up activity during the year. The Guardian has provided briefings on 
emerging National Guardian’s Office publications and best practice. The Board undertook a 
self-assessment against the Freedom to Speak Up review tool published by NHS England and 
Improvement as part of the Board development programme for 2020/21. 

 
Analysis of staff costs and numbers (subject to audit) 
An analysis of our average staff numbers for the year is shown below (in respect of whole- 
time equivalent numbers). The ‘other’ category includes staff engaged by the Trust that do 
not have a permanent employment contract. This includes employees on short-term 
contracts of employment, agency/temporary staff and inward secondments from other 
organisations. 

 

Staff group Permanent 
staff 
2020/21 

Other 
 
2020/21 

Total 
 
2020/21 

Permanent 
staff 
2019/20 

Other 
 
2019/20 

Total 
 
2019/20 

Ambulance staff 2,203 24 2,226 2,132 3 2,135 

Medical and 
dental 

10 0 10 5 0 5 

Administration 
and estates 

370 3 374 352 10 362 

Healthcare 
assistants and 
support staff 

66 6 71 65 2 68 

Nursing, 
midwifery and 
health visiting 
staff 

51 17 68 51 11 62 

Scientific, 
therapeutic and 
technical staff 

1 0 1 1 0 1 

Other 2 0 2 2 0 2 

Total average 
numbers 

2,703 50 2,752 2,609 26 2,635 

*Please note that due to rounding differences some of the above figures do not exactly cast to the 
totals shown. 

 
As at 31 March 2021 the gender split of the Trust’s workforce was as follows (this table is 
not subject to audit): 
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Staff Group Assignment 

Category 

Male 

2020/21 

Female 

2020/21 

Male 

2019/20 

Female 

2019/20 

Directors Full time 3 3 2 4 

Part time 4 3 6 3 

Other Senior 

Managers 

(Agenda for Change 

Bands 8a to 8d) 

Full time 22 21 25 22 

Part time 1 4 0 3 

Employees Full time 1,249 918 1,231 924 

Part time 202 437 186 392 

 

An analysis of our staff costs for the year is shown in the following table (subject to audit): 
 

Staff group Permanent 
staff 
2020/21 
£000 

Other 
 

2020/21 
£000 

Total 
 

2020/21 
£000 

Permanent 
staff 
2019/20 
£000 

Other 
 

2019/20 
£000 

Total 
 

2019/20 
£000 

Salaries and 
wages 

99,381 123 99,504 85,498 0 85,498 

Social security 
costs 

9,163 0 9,163 8,140 0 8,140 

Apprenticeship 
levy 

439 0 439 400 0 400 

Pension cost – 
employer's 
contribution to 
NHS pensions 

15,476 6 15,482 9,840 0 9,840 

Pension cost – 
employer 
contributions paid 
by NHSE on 
provider’s behalf 
(6.3%) 

0 0 0 4,221 0 4,221 

Pension cost – 
other 

60 0 60 55 0 55 

Termination 
benefits 

0 0 0 32 0 32 

Temporary staff – 
agency / contract 
staff 

0 3,000 0 0 1,178 1,178 

TOTAL GROSS 
STAFF COSTS 

124,519 3,129 127,648 108,186 1,718 109,904 

Recovery from 
Department of 
Health group 
bodies in respect 
of staff cost netted 
off expenditure 

(148) - (148) (233) - (233) 

TOTAL STAFF 
COSTS 

124,371 3,129 127,500 107,953 1,718 109,671 
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Sickness absence 
The health and wellbeing of our employees is of vital importance and we recognise that 
sickness absence is an important indicator in this respect. Our sickness absence levels have 
traditionally been high and as such have been an area of significant focus over the last few 
years. 

 

More statistics in relation to sickness absence can be found on the NHS Digital website: 
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-sickness-absence- 
rates 

 

Staff policies and actions 
Our policies are formally reviewed every three years, or more frequently if required, in 
order to ensure that they are fit for purpose and reflect the latest requirements and good 
practice. 

 
Staff diversity and inclusion 
We continue to provide a suite of diversity and inclusion policies such as our EDI Code of 
practice, Trans inclusion Guidance and Equality Analysis Assessment (EAA) Policy. We 
support colleagues to undertake EAAs across the business on major decision and policies to 
identify any decision which may adversely impact on various groups of people. 

 
Over the last 12 months we have launched our new Equality, Diversity and inclusion plan – 
One Service for All. This and the accompanying action plan sets our direction for the next 3 
years and identifies 5 objectives: 

1. Improve the consistency and accessibility of services and information for patients; 

2. Encourage patients from all diverse groups to provide feedback on their experiences 

of our services and improve positive responses; 

3. Promote equality and inclusion through enhanced involvement of our community 

and stakeholders; 

4. Develop a modern and diverse workforce that is inclusive and representative of the 

patients we deliver services to; and 

5. Ensure our leadership is committed to creating an environment that promotes and 

values equality and diversity and this is embedded in all we do. 

 

Progress on delivery of these actions is monitored through the EDI group and reported to 
the People and Development Committee and Board quarterly. 

 
We have made good progress with our EDI Action Plan over the last 12 months. We have 
identified the actions to complete over the next 12 months and we are working with 
managers and teams to support managers to deliver them and adapt to the changing 
external environment. 

 

We are a Disability Confident Scheme employer and have been assessed by the Department 
of Work and Pensions and an external organisation as a leader organisation. We continue to 
work to this framework and will undertake a further accreditation in 2022 to maintain this 
status 
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We have a range of tools and guidance in place to support people in the workplace including 
our EDI Code of practice, Trans inclusion guidance and dyslexia guidance. 

 

We are working with the Able@NEAS staff group (our disability staff network) to strengthen 
our work on Dyslexia further and develop a health and carers passport to support disabled 
people in the workplace. 

 
We have been proactive during the recent pandemic to ensure those most at risk including 
BAME and disabled people have been supported to shield, undertook risk assessments with 
managers and adjustments have been made to support people to continue to work where 
appropriate. We have also encouraged and supported more flexible and agile working and 
provided equipment and support at home where needed. 

 

In 2021 we signed up to a national reciprocal mentoring programme and we are currently 
working with NHS England and Improvement to roll this out to support people from under- 
represented groups through their careers. 

 
Our staff networks 
Staff networks continue to grow and develop. We have three networks in place: 

• Proud@NEAS, our LGBT staff network 

• Together@NEAS, our BAME staff network 

• Able@NEAS, our disability staff network 

 
They have been supported this year by 
a growing number of allies who took 
part in out ‘Be the Change’ Equality 
allies programme. Each staff network 
has a chair and two vice chairs who 
receive up to two days dedicated time 
per month and at least one Executive 
Director and one Non-Executive 
Director are involved in each group to 
provide support and feedback into 
corporate decision making. They have 
all developed three priority actions to 
deliver over the next 12 months and 
have a communications plan. 

 
Key statistics 
In terms of our workforce profile the number and proportion of BAME colleagues continues 
to grow with a small increase of 0.1% to 1.6%. We have experienced a 0.1% drop in the 
number of disabled staff to 6.5% and a 0.5% increase in LGBT staff to 4.9%. The number of 
BAME, LGBT and disabled people applying for jobs is in line with community profiles and 
greater percentages are securing employment than the overall number of applicants. We 
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have also seen some improvement in our Board BAME profile over the last 12 months 
recruiting one new BAME Board Member 

 

Our gender pay gap, WDES data, WRES data and our response to our Public Sector Equality 
Duty in the form of our Equality and Diversity Annual report can be found on our website at 
https://www.neas.nhs.uk/about-us/equality-and-diversity.aspx. Further information on 
gender pay gap reporting can also be found on the Cabinet Office website https://gender- 
pay-gap.service.gov.uk/. 

 

Staff engagement 
In the most recent Friends and Family Test score, as measured in our NHS Staff Survey, 56% 
of staff said they strongly agreed or agreed with recommending the Trust as a place to work. 
This compares with 59% the previous year. 

 

In the same survey, 77% of staff said they strongly agreed or agreed with recommending the 
Trust for our care and treatment. This compares with 81% the previous year. 

 
Engagement with staff representatives 
We remain fully committed to working in partnership with our Trade Union colleagues to 
ensure the views of employees are taken into account in making decisions which are likely 
to affect the interests of our employees. Regular consultation on key issues takes place at 
our Joint Consultative Committee, attended by both staff representatives and senior 
managers, on a bi-monthly basis. 

 
All policies with an HR-related impact are reviewed by staff representatives. Consultation 
on key service changes takes place to ensure the impact on our workforce is properly 
addressed. 

 
Occupational health 
Our Occupational Health Service (OHS) continues to provide a specialist nurse-led clinical 
service that benefits both staff and patients and as one of only two in-house Occupational 
Health Services within an ambulance trust in the UK, is seen as an investment in the health 
and wellbeing of our people. 

 

In maintaining Safe, Effective Quality Occupational Health Service (SEQOHS) accreditation 
since 2013 the team’s delivery continues to be underpinned by the following principles: 

• Strong focus on a high quality, clinically-led, evidence-based service; 

• An equitable and accessible service for the whole workforce; 

• Impartial, approachable and receptive to both clients and employer; 

• Articulates the range of services required; 

• Contributes to improved organisational productivity; 

• Works in partnership with all NHS organisations and within the community; 

• Strives for innovation and excellence; and 

• Offers diversity and depth of specialisation and training opportunities. 
 

Contributing to the prevention of ill health or injury at work, the team provides timely 
interventions focussed on addressing the main causes of sickness absence (musculoskeletal 

http://www.neas.nhs.uk/about-us/equality-and-diversity.aspx
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and mental ill health). It prides itself on offering all staff access to Rapid Access 
Physiotherapy Service, Psychological Service and an Occupational Health Consultant who 
provide a wealth of evidence-based treatments, guidance and support. Working alongside 
the Trust management teams, Human Resources and union colleagues, particularly in 
undertaking Case Review Meetings, the service is instrumental in supporting staff to return 
and/or remain at work. 

 

The service engages with all staff at any stage of their employment by actively participating 
in the corporate induction, undertaking mobile clinics in a well-equipped purpose-built 
vehicle, responding to daily referrals and working with staff who are due to retire. 

 
Annual health surveillance is undertaken with specific staff groups within the Trust. All 
Operational staff have a Fitness to Drive to Group 2 DVLA Standards medical undertaken 
during Statutory & Mandatory training, NEASUS have hand vibration screening and HART 
have a customised medical in relation to their role. 

 

During the COVID pandemic, the team continued with their business as usual and provided a 
wealth of support ensuring that there was no delay in response. Information and practical 
guidance were offered to those staff who had to shield as well as to those who remained at 
work or were deployed to alternative employment within the Trust as well as to 
management teams and colleagues. 

 
Face to face appointments have been maintained both within the Occupational Health 
department and at mobile clinics and the service has embraced the use of PPE, assisted in 
co-ordinating and participating in both the staff COVID-19 asymptomatic/symptomatic 
screening and vaccination programme. Over 2000 staff and volunteers have taken the 
opportunity to have COVID-19 antibody testing and 148 COVID-19 volunteer pre- 
employment medicals were completed. 

 

The service continues to play a 
pivotal role in the annual flu 
vaccination campaign. By training 
and working alongside Peer 
Vaccinators, the Trust offered 
Super Clinics and Drive Thru 
Clinics, vaccinating over 65% of 
our front-line staff during the 
Seasonal Flu Campaign 2020/21 
our largest uptake in over a 
decade. 

 
Health and safety 
The Health and Safety team significantly supported the Trust’s response to COVID-19 from 
March 2020 onwards whilst maintaining business as usual to ensure Trust compliance with 
relevant statutory provisions. 

 

Some of the key areas of work included: 
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• Sourcing and liaising with a major UK PPE supplier to ensure the Trust had enough 
provision of Filtering Face Pieces 3 (FFP3) masks, coveralls, eye protection and 
powered air purifying respiratory systems for the pandemic; 

• Conducting COVID secure assessments, inspections and reviews at Trust outbreak sites 
throughout the pandemic; 

• Supporting the effort to ensure front line staff were fit tested for suitable FFP3 masks 
and collaborating with the Training School to meet face-fit testing needs. This was also 
facilitated through external providers to ensure appropriate PPE was provided; 

• Providing training and instruction to employees and the training department who 
were issued with powered air purifying respirators; 

• Research and assistance with procurement on replacement chlorine-based cleaning 
products to safer alternative; 

• Identifying new and innovative equipment to reduce manual handling; 
• Sourcing re-useable FFP3 half masks for Unscheduled Care staff ensuring 

sustainability, waste reduction and cost saving; 

• Conducting approximately 100 personal risk assessments for individual staff members 
to ensure staff safety; 

• Working closely with the Vehicle Design Group to provide expert safety advice on 
specifications and conversions; 

• Designing and maintaining a Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) 
system negating the requirement to use an external company saving the Trust 
approximately £9900 over three years; 

• Working with the finance department to secure the delivery into the Trust of the new 
improved helmets for all Unscheduled Care staff and university students; and 

• Supporting the uniform user group to conduct roadshows around new and improved 
uniform, sourcing new safety boots for trial. 

 

The Health and Safety and Risk teams have also played 
a key role in the introduction of body-worn cameras at 
the Trust. We began a trail in October 2018 with Body 
Worn Video cameras (BWV) based at 3 stations. 
Further funding was obtained, the trial expanded in 
2020 to cover 15 additional stations. 

 

Funding had been provided to expand the trial further 
and throughout 2021 there is a plan to provide body 
worn coverage to a further 6 stations. 

 
The initial trial showed that when BWV cameras were 
activated, aggressors were less likely to continue 
abusive and/or coercive behaviour due to captured 
evidential footage. Further expansion of the trial has 
shown that BWV is also useful for both Scheduled Care 
and Unscheduled Care staff to gather evidence for 
assaults on, and threats made to staff to pass on to 
police for further investigation. 
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BWV also supports the Risk team where decisions are made to identify and flag individuals 
for their unacceptable, aggressive, threatening or abusive behaviour. 

 

The ongoing use and support of BWV will assist in our efforts to reduce the number of 
Violence, Assault and Aggression incidents on our staff. 

 
Fraud and corruption 
Local Counter Fraud Specialist Services (LCFS) were provided to the Trust via contract 
arrangements with AuditOne. 

 

The LCFS team has delivered a programme of fraud awareness sessions throughout the year 
to ensure that all staff understand their roles and responsibilities in countering fraud. All 
staff are required to complete fraud awareness e-learning as part of their annual statutory 
and mandatory training. 

 
An annual plan, updates on progress against the plan and an annual report on compliance 
against the Counter Fraud arrangements are presented to the Audit Committee regularly. 
The Trust’s newly revised Counter Fraud Policy is available on the Trust’s website. 

 
Trade union facility time disclosures 
In accordance with the requirements of the Trade Union Facility Time Publication 
Requirements Regulations 2017 and the guidance issued by the Cabinet Office, there is a 
requirement to include trade union facility time disclosures within the Annual Report. 

 

The government has confirmed that the deadline for reporting on trade union facilities time 
has been extended until 30 September 2021. This date will be kept under review owing to 
the current pressures faced by COVID-19. As such the report is not available in time to 
incorporate into the annual report but will be publicly disclosed as required once this has 
been prepared. 

 
Staff survey results 2020 

 
Statement of approach 
The national annual NHS Staff Survey aims to collate employee views on their experience at 
work in a number of key areas. These views are analysed and improvements are made. 

 

We are a very diverse organisation in terms of our staff groups and the survey allows us to 
understand their individual workplace experiences. 

 
Each year the survey produces a set of results which the Organisational Development Team 
analyse and breakdown into bespoke data for use Trust wide and by department. This 
allows areas of concern to be highlighted, and specific actions to be implemented. These 
actions are actively communicated as it is vital that our employees know that we are 
continuously aiming to improve their working life. 

 
The following tables provide an overview of our survey performance over the last four years 
in comparison to our national benchmarking group, namely other ambulance trusts. 
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Response rate 
Our response rates for the staff survey over the last four years are shown in the table below: 

 

Year Trust 
Response Rate 

Best Response Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Average Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Worst Response 
Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

2016 49% = (1,147) 60% 37% 28% 

2017 54% = (1,325) 61% 42% 34% 

2018 49% = (1,204) 65% 49% 34% 

2019 47% = (1,225) 71% 50% 41% 

2020 45% = (1,257) 73% 56% 37% 

 
Our response rate has increased this year from 1,225 to 1,257. 

 

All employees were counted in the survey this year and we distributed electronic surveys to 
the different groups direct to their Trust email address. 

 
Results – organisational themes 
The survey results have been themed nationally into ten indicators and the following table 
demonstrate our performance against these indicators compared to the historic scores and 
the rest of the sector. 

 

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 
 

Year Trust score Best Response Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Average Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Worst Response 
Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

2016 8.4 9.0 8.4 7.9 

2017 8.6 8.8 8.3 7.8 

2018 8.6 8.7 8.4 8.0 

2019 8.6 9.5 8.5 8.1 

2020 8.4 9.2 8.5 7.9 

 
Our scores are slightly below average by 0.1 in the ambulance sector. The overall score for 
this theme has decreased since the 2019 survey. 

 

Staff survey results are used heavily in this area to understand how our employees feel 
about our approach. Currently there are three active staff network groups, our Disability 
group Able@NEAS, LGBT Group Proud@NEAS and our BME group Together@NEAS, all of 
which do some excellent work in promoting awareness. 

 

Equality, Diversity & Inclusion training has been run on a bespoke basis, in collaboration 
with the OD Team, to increase awareness and understanding and will continue to be 
delivered across the Trust. 
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Health and Wellbeing 
 

Year Trust score Best Response Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Average Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Worst Response 
Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

2016 4.9 5.2 4.8 3.9 

2017 5.1 5.2 5.1 4.3 

2018 5.3 5.3 5.3 4.5 

2019 5.0 5.3 5.0 4.6 

2020 5.2 5.6 5.5 4.8 

 
The overall score for this theme has increased since the 2019 survey, however has dropped 
to below average in the ambulance sector. Health and wellbeing have been a solid focus this 
year as we have worked through the pandemic and the faced many challenges as a Trust. 

 

Immediate Managers 
 

Year Trust score Best Response Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Average Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Worst Response 
Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

2016 6.6 6.8 5.8 5.2 

2017 6.5 6.9 5.8 5.4 

2018 6.6 6.9 6.2 5.3 

2019 6.2 6.9 6.3 5.4 

2020 6.4 7.0 6.4 5.4 

 
We achieved the average for the sector in this theme. The score for this theme has 
increased since 2019. 

 

The pandemic has required our leaders to work with greater agility. Working in an agile way 
creates flexibility and work life balance but leading and managing in this way requires a new 
set of skills. Learning opportunities have been developed to ensure that leaders and 
managers are able to develop their competence and capabilities to manage staff from a 
distance, and to support their colleagues and teams. 

 
Morale 

 

Year Trust score Best Response Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Average Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Worst Response 
Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

2016 No score No score No score No score 

2017 No score No score No score No score 

2018 5.8 5.8 5.7 4.9 

2019 5.5 6.0 5.7 5.1 
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2020 5.8 6.2 6.0 5.2 
 

This theme has increased since 2019 by 0.3 however we are currently below average for the 
sector. 

 

Quality of Care 
 

Year Trust score Best Response Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Average Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Worst Response 
Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

2016 7.6 7.7 7.3 7.1 

2017 7.8 7.8 7.2 6.8 

2018 7.8 7.8 7.4 7.0 

2019 7.5 7.7 7.4 7.0 

2020 7.5 7.7 7.5 7.2 

 
This theme has remained the same compared to 2019. Employees are generally satisfied 
with the level of care that they can deliver, and the Trust continues to share patient 
experience data to highlight positive areas to instil confidence in day to day practice. 

 

Safe Environment – Bullying and Harassment 
 

Year Trust score Best Response Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Average Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Worst Response 
Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

2016 7.4 8.1 7.1 6.3 

2017 7.6 7.6 7.1 6.5 

2018 7.6 7.6 7.3 6.9 

2019 7.3 7.5 7.4 7.0 

2020 7.4 7.8 7.4 6.6 

 
We achieved the average score for the sector and 0.4 behind the highest performing 
ambulance trust. 

 
We are continuing with a zero-tolerance approach to bullying and harassment. The 
mediation service is continuing to be used and strengthened to ensure that it can deal with 
situations and issues early before to becomes a formal process. 
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Safe Environment – Violence 
 

Year Trust score Best Response Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Average Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Worst Response 
Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

2016 8.7 9.0 8.8 8.5 

2017 8.8 9.0 8.7 8.5 

2018 8.8 9.0 8.8 8.1 

2019 8.8 8.9 8.8 8.7 

2020 8.9 9.0 8.8 8.7 

 
The staff survey results around violence remain largely static and we held a Staff Safety Task 
& Finish Group in 2020 to focus on this critical aspect to protect our staff where possible. 
We continue to work with the police and media to raise public awareness that violence will 
not be tolerated. 

 

Safety Culture 
 

Year Trust score Best Response Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Average Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Worst Response 
Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

2016 6.1 6.3 5.9 5.1 

2017 6.3 6.4 5.9 5.4 

2018 6.5 6.5 6.1 5.8 

2019 6.2 6.5 6.2 5.9 

2020 6.4 9.6 6.4 5.7 

 
The safety culture theme has increased since 2019 however remains on a par with the 
average in the sector. There have been continuous developments and awareness raising of 
incident reporting. This is so that staff are fully aware of when to raise a concern, how to do 
this and ensuring that outcomes are fed back and change is implemented in the appropriate 
areas. 

 
Staff Engagement 

 

Year Trust score Best Response Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Average Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Worst Response 
Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

2016 6.3 6.4 6.0 5.5 

2017 6.4 6.4 6.1 5.5 

2018 6.5 6.5 6.2 5.7 

2019 6.2 6.6 6.3 5.8 

2020 6.3 6.7 6.3 5.8 
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Our staff engagement theme is in line with the sector average and has increased by 0.1 
since 2019. Our staff engagement score is extremely important as it steers the direction of 
where we need to focus and implement change. 

 

Team working 
 

Year Trust score Best Response Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Average Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

Worst Response 
Rate 
(Ambulance Sector) 

2016 5.1 5.9 5.1 4.5 

2017 5.3 5.9 5.1 4.6 

2018 5.4 6.1 5.3 4.5 

2019 5.3 6.2 5.3 4.7 

2020 5.2 6.1 5.2 4.6 

 
The team working theme is in line with the sector average with a slight decrease since 2019. 
We are committed to maintaining a strong focus on team working. 

 
Conclusion 
Of the questions asked we have significantly improved our results in 18% of areas, retained our 
performance in 77% and deteriorated in 5%, with no results categorised as significant declines. 
These findings are particularly significant following the turbulent year of 2020/21. 

 

As a Trust we continually identify ways in which we can improve our results year on year to 
create a better workplace. Importantly, we learn from the findings annually and this year is no 
exception. 

 
We have agreed to take a holistic, collaborative approach to action these learning points. We 
are acting on areas requiring improvement, or where we strive to sustain positive results in a 
practical manner, empowering leaders to make direct changes in their own areas. We have 
committed to integrate and align actions into the People Plan, involving staff networks, staff 
and trade union colleagues in shaping plans. 

 

Some of our key areas of focus following the detailed analysis will include: 

• Continuing to implement the health and wellbeing strategy to improve wellness at 
work; 

• Continuing to encourage employees to report incidents, accidents and near misses; 

• Continuing to improve communication between senior managers and all staff; 

• Involving staff increasingly in decision-making or change that affects their work and 
providing regular feedback – the frequency and speed of this increased during the 
pandemic and staff are keen to retain and build from this; and 

• Increasing flexible working opportunities. 

 
Expenditure on consultancy 
The Trust spent £12k on consultancy services during 2020/21. 
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Off-payroll engagements 
The Trust makes every effort to minimise the use of off-payroll arrangements, which are 
only used as a last resort, for example where recruitment has failed for critical posts. Only in 
very exceptional circumstances would off-payroll engagements be undertaken for highly 
paid staff. When off-payroll engagements arise we strictly apply NHS Improvement 
requirements to ensure proper protocols are followed and disclosures made. 
We confirm the following: 

• There have been no off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2021 for more than 
£245 per day and lasting longer than six months. 

• There have been no new off-payroll engagements or any that reached six months 
duration between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 for more than £245 per day and 
that lasted longer than six months. 

• There have been no off-payroll engagements of Board Members and/or senior 
officials with significant financial responsibility between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 
2021, as illustrated by the following table: 

 
NUMBER OF ENGAGEMENTS 

Number of off-payroll engagements of Board Members, 
and/or, senior officials with significant financial 
responsibility, during the financial year. 

0 

Number of individuals that have been deemed Board 
Members and/or senior officials with significant financial 
responsibility. This figure includes both off-payroll and 
on-payroll engagements. 

7 

 
Exit packages (subject to audit) 
There were no exit packages in 2020/21 or in the prior year. Additionally, there were no 
non-compulsory departures which attracted an exit package in year, or in the prior year. As 
such the disclosure tables are not included within the report, as there is no data to report. 
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NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance 
 

The NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance contains guidance on good corporate 
governance. NHS England and Improvement, as the healthcare sector regulator, is keen to 
ensure that NHS Foundation Trusts have the autonomy and flexibility to ensure their 
structures and processes work well for their individual organisations, whilst making sure 
they meet overall requirements. For this reason, the Code is designed around a “comply or 
explain” basis. NHS Improvement recognises that departure from the specific provisions of 
the Code may be justified in particular circumstances, and reasons for non-compliance with 
the Code should be explained. 

 
North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust has applied the principles of the NHS 
Foundation Trust Code of Governance on a comply or explain basis. The NHS Foundation 
Trust Code of Governance, most recently revised in July 2014, is based on the principles of 
the UK Corporate Governance Code issued in 2012. 

 

There are other disclosures and statements (mandatory disclosures) that we are required to 
make, even where we are fully compliant. 

 

The mandatory disclosures have already been made within the main text of the Annual 
Report and page references are therefore provided below. 

 
Mandatory disclosures 

Code ref. Summary of requirement Section reference 

A.1.1 The schedule of matters reserved for the Board of Directors 
should include a clear statement detailing the roles and 
responsibilities of the Council of Governors. 

 

This statement should also describe how any disagreements 
between the Council of Governors and the Board of Directors will 
be resolved. 

 
The annual report should include this schedule of matters or a 
summary statement of how the Board of Directors and the 
Council of Governors operate, including a summary of the types 
of decisions to be taken by each of the Boards and which are 
delegated to the executive management of the Board of 
Directors. 

Directors’ Report – The 
Board and Governor 
Relationship section 

A.1.2 The annual report should identify the chairperson, the deputy 
chairperson (where there is one), the chief executive, the senior 
independent director (see A.4.1) and the chairperson and 
members of the nominations, audit and remuneration 
committees. 

 
It should also set out the number of meetings of the Board and 
those committees and individual attendance by directors. 

Directors’ Report – 
Board Composition 
section and table of 
Board Members 
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Code ref. Summary of requirement Section reference 

 This requirement is also contained in paragraph 7.46 as part of 
the remuneration report requirements. The disclosure relating to 
the remuneration committee should only be made once. 

 

A.5.3 The annual report should identify the members of the Council of 
Governors, including a description of the constituency or 
organisation that they represent, whether they were elected or 
appointed, and the duration of their appointments. The annual 
report should also identify the nominated lead governor. 

Directors’ Report – 
Council of Governors 
section and table of 
Governors 

FT ARM The annual report should include a statement about the number 
of meetings of the Council of Governors and individual 
attendance by governors and directors. 

Directors’ Report – 
Board Composition 
section and table 

  Directors’ Report – 
Council of Governors 
section and table. 

B.1.1 The Board of Directors should identify in the annual report each 
non-executive director it considers to be independent, with 
reasons where necessary. 

Directors’ Report – 
Board Composition 
section and table 

B.1.4 The Board of Directors should include in its annual report a 
description of each director’s skills, expertise and experience. 

Directors’ Report – 
Board Composition 
section 

 Alongside this, in the annual report, the Board should make a 
clear statement about its own balance, completeness and 
appropriateness to the requirements of the NHS foundation trust. 

 

Directors’ Report – 
Board of Directors 
section 

FT ARM The annual report should include a brief description of the length 
of appointments of the non-executive directors, and how they 
may be terminated 

Directors’ Report – 
Board of Directors 
section describes how 
appointments may be 
terminated. 

  Directors’ Report – 
Board Composition 
section and table shows 
appointment length 

B.2.10 A separate section of the annual report should describe the work 
of the nominations committee(s), including the process it has 
used in relation to Board appointments. 

Directors’ Report – 
Nomination and 
Remuneration section 

  Remuneration Report – 
Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee 

FT ARM The disclosure in the annual report on the work of the 
nominations committee should include an explanation if neither 
an external search consultancy nor open advertising has been 
used in the appointment of a chair or non-executive director. 

Not applicable – open 
advertising was used for 
all vacant Board 
positions. 
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Code ref. Summary of requirement Section reference 

B.3.1 A chairperson’s other significant commitments should be 
disclosed to the Council of Governors before appointment and 
included in the annual report. Changes to such commitments 
should be reported to the Council of Governors as they arise, and 
included in the next annual report. 

Directors’ Report – 
Board Composition 
table 

 

Directors’ Report – 
Declaration of Interests 
section 

B.5.6 Governors should canvass the opinion of the trust’s members and 
the public, and for appointed governors the body they represent, 
on the NHS foundation trust’s forward plan, including its 
objectives, priorities and strategy, and their views should be 
communicated to the Board of Directors. The annual report 
should contain a statement as to how this requirement has been 
undertaken and satisfied. 

Directors’ Report – 
Council of Governors 
section 

 

Directors’ Report – The 
Board and Governor 
Relationship 

FT ARM If, during the financial year, the Governors have exercised their 
power* under paragraph 10C** of schedule 7 of the NHS Act 
2006, then information on this must be included in the annual 
report. 
This is required by paragraph 26(2)(aa) of schedule 7 to the NHS 
Act 2006, as amended by section 151 (8) of the Health and Social 
Care Act 2012. 
* Power to require one or more of the directors to attend a 
governors’ meeting for the purpose of obtaining information 
about the foundation trust’s performance of its functions or the 
directors’ performance of their duties (and deciding whether to 
propose a vote on the foundation trust’s or directors’ 
performance). 
** As inserted by section 151 (6) of the Health and Social Care Act 
2012) 

Directors’ Report – The 
Board and Governor 
Relationship 

B.6.1 The Board of Directors should state in the annual report how 
performance evaluation of the Board, its committees, and its 
directors, including the chairperson, has been conducted. 

Directors’ Report – 
Performance Evaluation 
section 

B.6.2 Where there has been external evaluation of the Board and/or 
governance of the trust, the external facilitator should be 
identified in the annual report and a statement made as to 
whether they have any other connection to the trust. 

Directors’ Report – 
Performance Evaluation 
section 

C.1.1 The directors should explain in the annual report their 
responsibility for preparing the annual report and accounts, and 
state that they consider the annual report and accounts, taken as 
a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the 
information necessary for patients, regulators and other 
stakeholders to assess the NHS foundation trust’s performance, 
business model and strategy. Directors should also explain their 
approach to quality governance in the Annual Governance 
Statement (within the annual report). 
See also ARM paragraph 7.90 

Performance Report: 
Overview – Going 
Concern section 

 

Further disclosures are 
made in the Annual 
Governance Statement 

C.2.1 The annual report should contain a statement that the Board has 
conducted a review of the effectiveness of its system of internal 
controls. 

Annual Governance 
Statement 
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Code ref. Summary of requirement Section reference 

C.2.2 A trust should disclose in the annual report: 
(a) if it has an internal audit function, how the function is 
structured and what role it performs; or 
(b) if it does not have an internal audit function, that fact and the 
processes it employs for evaluating and continually improving the 
effectiveness of its risk management and internal control 
processes. 

Directors’ Report – 
Audit Committee 
section 

C.3.5 If the Council of Governors does not accept the audit committee’s 
recommendation on the appointment, reappointment or removal 
of an external auditor, the Board of Directors should include in 
the annual report a statement from the audit committee 
explaining the recommendation and should set out reasons why 
the Council of Governors has taken a different position. 

Not applicable for 
2018/19 – see Directors’ 
Report – Audit 
Committee section 

C.3.9 A separate section of the annual report should describe the work 
of the audit committee in discharging its responsibilities. The 
report should include: 

• the significant issues that the committee considered in 
relation to financial statements, operations and 
compliance, and how these issues were addressed; 

• an explanation of how it has assessed the effectiveness of 
the external audit process and the approach taken to the 
appointment or re-appointment of the external auditor, 
the value of external audit services and information on 
the length of tenure of the current audit firm and when a 
tender was last conducted; and 

• if the external auditor provides non-audit services, the 
value of the non-audit services provided and an 
explanation of how auditor objectivity and independence 
are safeguarded. 

Directors’ Report – 
Audit Committee 
section 

D.1.3 Where an NHS foundation trust releases an executive director, for 
example to serve as a non-executive director elsewhere, the 
remuneration disclosures of the annual report should include a 
statement of whether or not the director will retain such 
earnings. 

Remuneration Report – 
Service Contracts for 
Senior Managers 
section 

E.1.5 The Board of Directors should state in the annual report the steps 
they have taken to ensure that the members of the Board, and in 
particular the non-executive directors, develop an understanding 
of the views of governors and members about the NHS 
foundation trust, for example through attendance at meetings of 
the Council of Governors, direct face-to-face contact, surveys of 
members’ opinions and consultations. 

Directors’ Report – The 
Board and Governor 
Relationship 

E.1.6 The Board of Directors should monitor how representative the 
NHS foundation trust's membership is and the level and 
effectiveness of member engagement and report on this in the 
annual report. 

Directors’ Report – 
Foundation Trust 
Membership section 

E.1.4 Contact procedures for members who wish to communicate with 
governors and/or directors should be made clearly available to 
members on the NHS foundation trust's website and in the annual 
report. 

Directors’ Report – 
Foundation Trust 
Membership section 
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Code ref. Summary of requirement Section reference 

FT ARM The annual report should include: 
• a brief description of the eligibility requirements for 

joining different membership constituencies, including 
the boundaries for public membership; 

• information on the number of members and the number 
of members in each constituency; and 

• a summary of the membership strategy, an assessment of 
the membership and a description of any steps taken 
during the year to ensure a representative membership 
[see also E.1.6 above], including progress towards any 
recruitment targets for members. 

Directors’ Report – 
Foundation Trust 
Membership section 

FT ARM The annual report should disclose details of company 
directorships or other material interests in companies held by 
governors and/or directors where those companies or related 
parties are likely to do business, or are possibly seeking to do 
business, with the NHS foundation trust. As each NHS foundation 
trust must have registers of governors’ and directors’ interests 
which are available to the public, an alternative disclosure is for 
the annual report to simply state how members of the public can 
gain access to the registers instead of listing all the interests in the 
annual report. 

Directors’ Report – 
Declaration of Interests 
Section 

 

Comply or explain disclosures 
The Trust has complied with the majority of the ‘comply’ or ‘explain’ disclosures of the NHS 
Foundation Trust Code of Governance, with the exception of one statement. The following 
table outlines the provision where we did not fully comply with the provision. 

 

Code 
Ref. 

Summary of Disclosure Explanation 

D.2.3 The Council should consult external 
professional advisers to market-test 
the remuneration levels of the 
chairperson and other non- 
executives at least once every three 
years and when they intend to make 
a material change to the 
remuneration of a non-executive. 

During 2019/20 NHS Improvement released new 
requirements regarding Chair and Non-Executive 
Director remuneration in November 2019. The aim 
of this new publication was to align remuneration 
for Chairs and Non-Executive Directors in both 
trusts and foundation trusts by April 2022. The 
Governor Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee therefore reviewed the proposed 
national remuneration structures set by NHS 
Improvement, rather than consulting external 
professional advisers. 
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NHS Oversight Framework 
 

NHS Oversight Framework 
NHS England and NHS Improvement’s NHS Oversight Framework provides the framework 
for overseeing providers and identifying potential support needs. The framework looks at 
five themes: 

• Quality of care; 

• Finance and use of resources; 

• Operational performance; 

• Strategic change; and 

• leadership and improvement capability (well-led). 
 

Based on information from these themes, providers are segmented from 1 to 4, where ‘4’ 
reflects providers receiving the most support, and ‘1’ reflects providers with maximum 
autonomy. A foundation trust will only be in segments 3 or 4 where it has been found to be 
in breach or suspected breach of its licence. 

 
Segmentation 
The Trust is in segment 2 with targeted support needs identified due to operational 
performance. This is consistent with the previous year. The Trust is not in breach of its 
licence and formal action is not required. 

 

This segmentation information is the Trust’s position as at 3 May 2021. Current 
segmentation information for NHS trusts and foundation trusts is published on the NHS 
Improvement website. 
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Statement of Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities 
 

Statement of the Chief Executive’s Responsibilities as the Accounting Officer of North East 
Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

 

The NHS Act 2006 states that the Chief Executive is the Accounting Officer of the NHS 
Foundation Trust. The relevant responsibilities of the Accounting Officer, including their 
responsibility for the propriety and regularity of public finances for which they are 
answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the NHS Foundation Trust 
Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by NHS Improvement. 

 

NHS Improvement, in exercise of the powers conferred on Monitor by the NHS Act 2006, 
has given Accounts Directions which require North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation 
Trust to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis 
required by those Directions. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation 
Trust and of its income and expenditure, other items of comprehensive income and cash 
flows for the financial year. 

 
In preparing the accounts and overseeing the use of public funds, the Accounting Officer is 
required to comply with the requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care 
Group Accounting Manual and in particular to: 

 

• Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS Improvement, including the relevant 
accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a 
consistent basis; 

 

• Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis; 
 

• State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation 
Trust Annual Reporting Manual (and the Department of Health and Social Care 
Group Accounting Manual) have been followed, and disclose and explain any 
material departures in the financial statements; 

 

• Ensure that the use of public funds complies with the relevant legislation, delegated 
authorities and guidance; 

 

• Confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and 
understandable and provides the information necessary for patients, regulators and 
stakeholders to assess the NHS Foundation Trust’s performance, business model and 
strategy; and 

 

• Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis and disclose any material 
uncertainties over going concern. 

 

The Accounting Officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose 
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS Foundation Trust and 
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to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above 
mentioned Act. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the 
NHS Foundation Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

As far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Foundation Trust’s 
auditors are unaware, and I have taken all the steps that I ought to have taken to make 
myself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the entity’s auditors 
are aware of that information. 

 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set 
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum. 

 

Helen Ray 
Chief Executive 
10 June 2021 
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Annual Governance Statement 
 

Scope of responsibility 
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal 
control that supports the achievement of the NHS Foundation Trust’s policies, aims and 
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am 
personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also 
responsible for ensuring that the NHS Foundation Trust is administered prudently and 
economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge 
my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum. 

 
The purpose of the system of internal control 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than 
to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the 
achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of North East Ambulance Service NHS 
Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact 
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The 
system of internal control has been in place in North East Ambulance Service NHS 
Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the 
annual report and accounts. 

 
Capacity to handle risk 

 
Leadership 
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the management of risk within the 
Foundation Trust. The Medical Director is designated as the Executive Lead for risk 
management and is responsible for ensuring that there are robust systems and processes in 
place for effective risk management and for ensuring that the Risk Management Strategy 
and Policy are implemented and evaluated effectively. These are effectively implemented 
via the Annual Risk Management Plan which is monitored by the Executive Management 
Group. Professional support is provided by the Head of Risk and Regulatory Services. 

 
The Board of Directors receive a quarterly risk management report containing the Board 
Assurance Framework (BAF) and the Organisational Risk Register (ORR), both of which are 
subject to regular scrutiny at the Executive Management Group. Additionally, the strategic 
risks on the Board Assurance Framework are mapped to an appropriate Non-Executive 
Director-chaired Board Committee, and the relevant extracts are reviewed at every meeting 
of the Board Committees. 

 
Executive Directors of the Foundation Trust have the responsibility for leadership in risk 
management for their own Directorates. On a cyclical basis the Directorate and service risk 
registers are scrutinised by the Executive Management Group. 
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The Trust launched a revised governance structure from September 2020. As outlined in last 
year’s Annual Governance Statement, the intention had been to launch the new structure 
from 1 April 2020, but this was paused in line with the directive from NHS England and 
Improvement to increase capacity. Under the revised governance structure, the Executive 
Management Group has executive responsibility for seeking the corporate and 
organisational assurance over risk management. Risk management is also embedded within 
the sub-group structure that reports to the Board committees via Executive Management 
Group. The Audit Committee continues to lead on seeking assurance over the effectiveness 
of the control environment for risk management. 

 
Foundation Trust managers are responsible for the management of day-to-day risks of all 
types within their management structure and budget allocation. They are charged with 
ensuring that risk assessments are undertaken throughout their area of responsibility on a 
pro-active basis and that remedial action is carried out where problems are identified in 
order to reduce or mitigate that risk. 

 
Risk Training 
It is the policy of the Foundation Trust to provide and maintain, so far as is reasonably 
practicable, all plant, systems of work (including safe use, handling, storage and transport of 
substances and articles), places of work and working conditions, such that they are safe and 
with minimal risks to employees, as well as to non-employees, and to provide such 
information, instruction and training as is necessary for this purpose. 

 

The Board received an update on risk management as part of the Board Development 
Programme in February 2021. All Board Members received health and safety training as part 
of the Foundation Trust’s statutory and mandatory training programme. 

 
The Foundation Trust regularly makes opportunities available for managers to attend 
essential management training, which incorporates risk management elements. 

 
Risk management is incorporated in the Foundation Trust’s induction and statutory and 
mandatory training programme. General risk awareness/health and safety training is also 
provided to all staff on an annual basis according to their level of need/responsibility. 

 

The Risk Management Strategy, policies and procedures and responsibilities are held in the 
Foundation Trust’s Document Management System, available to all staff. 

 
The Medical Directorate has a number of appropriately qualified and experienced staff to 
lead, support and advise staff at all levels of the organisation with the identification and 
management of risk. 

 
All adverse events are recorded and investigated by the Foundation Trust utilising the 
Ulysses Safeguard System. Those of a serious nature are considered by a Root Cause 
Analysis process and signed off via the Serious Incident Review Group, chaired by the 
Director of Quality and Safety. The outcomes of such incidents inform future training plans, 
policies and wider learning for the Foundation Trust. 
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The Foundation Trust has representation on the National Ambulance Risk and Safety Forum 
and various other national and regional groups which promote active benchmarking and 
learning from good practice. 

 
The risk and control framework 
The Foundation Trust endeavours to establish a positive risk culture within the organisation 
where every member of staff feels committed and empowered to identify and 
correct/escalate system weaknesses. 

 
The Trust Board is committed to ensuring a robust infrastructure is in place to manage risks 
from operational level to Board level, and that where risks crystallise, demonstrable 
improvements can be put in place. 

 
The Foundation Trust therefore has a comprehensive Risk Management Strategy, 
Procedures and Plans. The Risk Management Strategy describes how risks are identified, 
recorded and managed via the electronic Ulysses Safeguard system and how they are 
quantified, using a risk scoring matrix. This allows standardisation of risk assessment across 
the Foundation Trust, utilising a common currency. The strategy also requires action plans 
to be determined and implemented for those risks that are inadequately controlled. The 
Foundation Trust also has a number of associated policies and procedures. 

 

The Annual Risk Management Plan is reported into the Executive Management Group on a 
quarterly basis. The Foundation Trust recognises that it is impossible and not always 
desirable to eliminate all risks and that systems of control should not be so rigid that they 
stifle innovation and imaginative use of limited resources, in order to achieve health 
benefits for patients. The strategy defines the leadership, responsibility and accountability 
arrangements of risk within the Foundation Trust. It promotes integrated governance and 
the philosophy of Enterprise Risk Management (ERM). ERM dictates that risk management 
is systematic, robust and evident, that it should identify potential events that may affect the 
organisation and manage risks to be within its risk appetite. The strategy covers non- 
clinical, clinical, organisational and financial risks. It also requires that risk management 
processes are applied to business planning at all levels and that risk management issues are 
communicated to key stakeholders where necessary. 

 
The Risk Management Strategy also contains a section on risk appetite and risk maturity. 
The Board of Directors was fully briefed on this and was actively involved in reviewing the 
Foundation Trust’s risk appetite in February 2021. 

 
North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust’s appetite is currently assessed as 
moderate – i.e. the Foundation Trust will accept moderate risk to the delivery of its Strategy 
within the Foundation Trust’s accountability and compliance frameworks, whilst maximising 
performance within Value for Money frameworks. The Foundation Trust may take 
considered risks, where the long-term benefits outweigh any short-term losses. Well 
managed risk taking will ensure that the skills, ability and knowledge are there to support 
innovation and maximise opportunities to further improve services. The Foundation Trust 
commits to review its risk appetite statement on an annual basis and/or following any 
significant changes or events. 
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There have been no changes to the assessment of the Trusts risk maturity since the Board 
reviewed its risk maturity in February 2021 and an internal self-assessment indicated that 
the Foundation Trust had maintained its risk maturity as ‘risk enabled’ level. 

 

Turning towards external reviews, the Audit One team conducted a risk-based audit of the 
Board Assurance Framework and Risk Management during June 2020. The final Internal 
audit report concluded that governance, risk management and control arrangements 
provide good assurance that the risks identified are managed effectively. Compliance with 
the control framework was found to be taking place. 

 
Board Assurance Framework 
The arrangements in place to manage the organisation’s risk also include the Foundation 
Trust’s Board Assurance Framework (BAF). The BAF provides the Foundation Trust with a 
method for effective management of the principal strategic risks to meeting its corporate 
objectives and links to the Foundation Trust’s mission, vision and strategic aims. The 
development enables the BAF to be directly linked with the relevant risk registers therefore 
improving the governance arrangements. It provides a structure for evidence to support the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

 

The Board Assurance Framework includes the following key elements: 

• Strategic objectives of the Foundation Trust by the responsible Director, with each 
objective mapped to a Board Committee for monitoring; 

• A description of the strategic risk, including initial score, current score and target 
score; 

• The corporate / organisational risks which link to the main strategic risk, including 
scores and the groups responsible for seeking assurance over the effective 
management of these risks; 

• Risks to achieving the objectives; 

• Key controls in place at the committee level to manage the risks; 

• Any gaps in control; 

• Any mitigations for gaps in controls; 

• Assurances split by internal and external assurances; 

• Any gaps in assurance at the committee; and 

• Mitigation (actions) to address gaps in control and assurances. 
 

The Board Assurance Framework (BAF) is approved by the Board at the beginning of the 
financial year and managed through delegation of specific BAF risks to the Board 
committees. The Executive Management Group oversees and monitors the full BAF prior to 
its quarterly review by the Board of Directors. 

 
It is noted that the pandemic impacted upon the way in which the BAF was utilised during 
2020/21. The BAF is normally developed at the beginning of the year based on the new 
corporate objectives. Due to the pandemic the corporate objectives for 2019/20 were 
retained into 2020/21 and therefore the BAF from the previous year was continued. The 
introduction of the new governance structure and changes in senior personnel meant that 
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the content of the BAF required significant in-year revision, with the Board of Directors 
approving a revised BAF in October 2020. 

 
Quality Governance 
Quality Governance is provided via the Foundation Trust’s Quality Committee which 
monitors the delivery of the Foundation Trust’s Quality Strategy and compliance with the 
Care Quality Commission (CQC) fundamental standards. This Committee also oversees 
production of the Quality Report. The Quality Committee is supported by a number of sub 
groups covering key areas such as patient safety, health and safety, patient experience and 
safeguarding. 

 
There are a number of mechanisms in place to assess the quality of performance 
information throughout the Foundation Trust. The directorate Change Approval Boards 
review data quality issues arising from systems within their remit. 

 

The Foundation Trust manages its information security on an on-going basis via two forums, 
the Information Security Working Group (ISWG) and the Information Governance Working 
Group (IGWG). The former typically deals with technical issues and how to address them 
and escalates more significant issues to the IGWG. The IGWG manages the Foundation 
Trust’s information security at a much higher level and is in a position to provide much 
wider assurances due to the involvement of staff from across the organisation. 

 
The Foundation Trust also formally assesses its compliance against the Information 
Governance standards (including Information Security) via the Data Security and Protection 
Toolkit which is visible and auditable to regulating bodies. A further audit is currently being 
undertaken by PWC as part of the NHS assurance work with a report to follow during May. 

 

The highest scoring risks throughout the year, which were reflected on the Organisational 
Risk Register and linked through to the Board Assurance Framework, are outlined below, 
along with a brief summary of the mitigating actions taken: 

 

Risk Description Key Mitigating Actions 

The impact of COVID-19 
(Coronavirus) on the safe and 
effective delivery of services. 
It is noted that there was a COVID- 
19 risk register in place, as well as 
this summary risk on the 
Organisational Risk Register. 

 

This links to every one of the 
Foundation Trust’s corporate 
objectives, given the magnitude of 
this risk and its potential and 
realised impact on the Foundation 
Trust, its staff and patients. 

• A robust governance structure was put in 
place to oversee the Foundation Trust’s 
response to COVID-19. This included daily 
meetings with a dedicated infrastructure to 
support the implementation of command 
and control principles. 

• Direct links were established at regional and 
national level to work proactively with 
partners and ensure that the most up-to- 
date guidance / intelligence is monitored and 
acted upon as appropriate. 

• Working arrangements for Emergency 
Operations Centre (EOC) staff were adjusted 
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Risk Description Key Mitigating Actions 

 to introduce 2 metre spacing between desks 
to help prevent the spread of the virus. 

• Regular communications were in place with 
internal and external stakeholders to discuss 
service delivery and measures to manage the 
situation. 

• Business continuity plans were quickly 
revised to ensure that every part of the 
Foundation Trust had specific work 
instructions in place for COVID-19. 

• Personal protective equipment (PPE) was 
issued to operational staff in line with 
government guidance. 

• Where possible dedicated resources / 
vehicles were used to transport confirmed 
COVID-19 cases, minimising the risk of cross- 
infection to staff. 

• Revised governance arrangements were put 
in place to provide robust, agile and timely 
mechanisms for making key decision. 

• Measures were put in place to redeploy 
support services staff and obtain support 
from external bodies / volunteers to assist 
with front line services and bolster 
contingency arrangements should key staff 
be off sick. 

The potential loss of skilled clinical 
workforce due to requirements 
highlighted in the NHS plan 
regarding the employment of 
paramedics into primary care 
networks. 

 

This links to the following 
corporate objectives: improving 
quality and safety; Clinical Care 
and Transport; NHS111; 
developing a sustainable 
workforce and organisational 
sustainability. 

• Work was undertaken to map out full 
workforce requirements to meet both the 
performance standards and the workforce 
requirements for primary care networks. 

• The Foundation Trust commenced the 
development of a career framework and 
model for delivery. 

• Plans were developed in respect of 
implementing a rotational paramedic model. 

• The Foundation Trust developed its lines of 
communications with primary care network 
colleagues and the Integrated Care System. 
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Risk Description Key Mitigating Actions 

Failure to deliver our ambulance 
key performance indicators (KPIs) 
in relation to our performance 
trajectory agreed with 
commissioners in respect of 
Category 2, 3 and 4 patients. 

 

This links to the following 
corporate objectives: improving 
quality and safety; Clinical Care 
and Transport; NHS111; and 
organisational sustainability. 

• There has been a significant focus in this 
year, and revised governance structure 
included a monthly Performance Group as 
well as broadening the scope of the former 
Finance Committee to become the 
Performance and Finance Committee. 

• The response to this risk was heavily linked 
to the response to COVID-19. 

• Third party providers were utilised to backfill 
rota lines as well as utilising redeployed Trust 
staff to support the front-line response. 

• Additional monies were secured externally 
through the national COVID-19 funding 
arrangements. 

• Work also continued to develop a robust 
case for recurrent future funding to enable 
the Trust to match its capacity with demand. 
This will be fed into the planning and 
commissioning discussions in 2021/22. 

 

Action plans to minimise the possibilities of these risks being realised are co-ordinated via 
the relevant directorate leads and include continuous monitoring via the appropriate group 
or Board-level committee. 

 
Future risks are typically identified as part of the financial and operational planning process 
for the forthcoming year. This process is delayed for 2020/21 due to the national delay in 
the financial and operational planning round. 

 

The primary future risks for the Foundation Trust as at the year-end relate to the current 
unprecedented situation regarding COVID-19 and the longer-term impact of this on the 
Foundation Trust’s operations, staffing and finances. Planning for future recovery and the 
return to business as usual was a key priority at the year-end. 

 

The risks listed in the above table all remain relevant for 2021/22 and beyond, and once the 
COVID-19 situation is largely resolved, the Foundation Trust will return its focus to managing 
key risks including: 

• The risk of losing the paramedic workforce to primary care networks; and 

• The risk of not securing sufficient funding and resources to be able to deliver against 
the core performance standards. 

 

NHS Foundation Trust Licence Condition 4 sets out the overall standards expected for 
different aspects of governance. This includes but is not limited to: the effectiveness of the 
Board and its committees; the clarity of reporting lines; and the clarity of responsibilities 
and accountabilities throughout the Foundation Trust. Under NHS Improvement’s Single 
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Oversight Framework, the segmentation of providers is based, in part, on compliance with 
the licence conditions. 

 

The Board routinely reviews information which provides assurance over compliance with 
the key elements of Licence Condition 4, including but not limited to: 

- Annual reviews of effectiveness for each Board-level Committee (note that the 
reviews of effectiveness for 2020/21 will be conducted in Quarter 1); 

- An annual assessment of Board effectiveness (undertaken as part of the NHS 
Providers’ Board Development programme in 2020/21); 

- Summary of assurances and escalations from each Board Committee; and 
- An annual review of key corporate documents including the Scheme of Delegation, 

Standing Financial Instructions, Standing Orders and the Constitution. 
 

The Board is required to assess compliance with the underlying principles, systems and 
standards of good corporate governance in the form of a Corporate Governance Statement. 
The Audit Committee reviewed the Foundation Trust’s Corporate Governance Statement 
and sought evidence to support the declarations being made. It considered the risks and 
mitigating actions that management provided to support the Statement and determine both 
from its own work throughout the year and assurances provided from the work of the 
Foundation Trust’s internal auditors, external auditors and other external audits or reviews, 
whether the Statement was valid. Only then did the Audit Committee recommend to the 
Board that the Corporate Governance Statement could be signed. 

 
Risk Management is embedded within the organisation in a number of ways. All 
departments within Directorates maintain up-to-date risk registers via the Ulysses Safeguard 
System. Risks are escalated via departmental and directorate risk registers to the 
Organisational Risk Register which identifies the major risks to the whole organisation both 
within a year and for the foreseeable future. 

 

Management of these risks are reported to the Executive Management Group. There is a 
clear escalation process to ensure high level risks are reported on the Organisational Risk 
Register. 

 

All Cost Improvement Schemes have processes in place to identify and mitigate risks to 
quality. All cost improvement schemes undergo a full quality impact assessment prior to 
approval. 

 
All new or revised policies are only approved once an equality analysis assessment has been 
satisfactorily completed. A new group, the Policy Review Group, was established in 2020/21 
to provide additional scrutiny and rigour in this area. 

 

Management and operational structures are in place to manage the risks that the 
Foundation Trust faces. All the groups working within the governance structure are 
remitted to identify, and where appropriate, escalate all risks emerging from the business 
transacted. The Groups/Committees report through Committees of the Board in a 
structured manner, ultimately to the Board. 
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Internal Audit provision also forms part of the risk and control framework, testing systems 
and processes linked to the BAF, on a risk-based approach. Their work culminates in the 
Head of Internal Audit Opinion and feeds into the assessment of the overall control 
environment. During the year their work has identified two areas where controls have only 
provided limited assurance, the first regarding Information Governance detailed further 
through the report and the second regarding the control of third-party providers. In each 
case a detailed corrective action plan has been developed and implementation is 
progressing. 

 
There are clear Terms of Reference for each Board Committee and group that report to it 
and a robust process is in place to review the effectiveness of the groups and Board 
Committees on an annual basis. The structure of these reviews ensures that consideration 
is given to any potential overlap and gap in responsibilities; minimising the risks to 
compliance with the Foundation Trust’s licence. The timing of these meetings has been 
aligned to provide for the most up-to-date information to be considered to inform decision- 
making and assess risk. 

 

Clinical Risk is monitored via the Foundation Trust’s Quality Governance Group and Quality 
Committee. The Foundation Trust’s Medical Director chairs the Clinical Advisory Group 
which provides access to expert professional opinion from specialist medical advisers and 
clinicians and reports to the Quality Committee. Additional support was provided by the 
appointment of a Deputy Medical Director during the year. 

 
Clinical risk, whilst being everyone's responsibility, is managed by operational staff and 
monitored by the Quality and Safety Directorate. Clinical risk is reported through the Risk 
Management System, Ulysses which allows themes and trends to be identified and inform 
organisational learning. All clinical practices are carried out using the best available clinical 
evidence base. This includes advice that is given to patients over the telephone as well as 
advice and skills performed when the paramedic is in a face to face situation. 

 
Developing Workforce Safeguards 
The Foundation Trust is committed to ensuring that our patients receive the highest quality 
of care through ensuring that our staffing processes are safe, sustainable and effective. 

 
Internally a corporate workforce plan is developed, supported by recruitment and training 
plans. These are reviewed on a regular basis by board committees and the Trust Board. This 
medium to long term strategic plan ensures we review what is required of the workforce 
and how this is delivered through strong partnership working with the local higher 
education institutions to ensure a robust pipeline of skilled practitioners. 

 

Any changes to the workforce establishments, introduction of new roles/working practices 
or changes to current roles are considered by the Director of Quality and Safety (Executive 
Nurse) and the Medical Director to consider the Quality Impact Assessment undertaken by 
the service, prior to approving or rejecting the changes. 

 

Systems are in place to monitor staffing levels in the Emergency Operations Centre and 
across Unscheduled and Scheduled Care and there is currently an ongoing project to review 
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and revise our emergency care shift patterns and rotas to ensure correct deployment of 
resources across the 24-hour period. We have commissioned a further demand and capacity 
review to ensure our new rotas match more recent assessments of demand. 

 

Short term strategies are in place to respond to day to day challenges with workforce, with 
demand and capacity modeling across the services to establish where hot spot areas may 
be. A clear escalation process is in place, with daily calls to review safe staffing and other 
operational issues, which is led by the Strategic Manager on call. The Foundation Trust is 
currently reviewing staff rotas across all of our services to ensure they best meet the 
demand profile of each service. Where staffing pressures cannot be addressed with internal 
Foundation Trust employed resources we have the ability to draw on third party providers 
to optimize patient and staff safety. Regular updates are provided to relevant Board 
Committees and the Trust Board for appropriate assurance. 

 
CQC Compliance 
The Foundation Trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care 
Quality Commission. In 2018 the Foundation Trust was inspected by the CQC and retained 
its overall rating of ‘good’. The Foundation Trust seeks continuous improvement in its 
services for the benefit of its patients and staff. 

 

A Section 29A Warning Notice was issued to the Trust on 5th August 2020 in regard to 
Regulation 13 (Safeguarding), 17 (Governance) and 19 (Fit and Proper Persons) concerns. A 
detailed review of the relevant policies was undertaken and significant improvements to the 
quality of healthcare provided were implemented by the deadline of 1st October 2020. The 
notice was subsequently closed 

 
Register of Interests 
The Foundation Trust has published on its website an up-to-date register of interests, 
including gifts and hospitality, for decision-making staff (as defined by the Foundation Trust 
with reference to the guidance) within the past twelve months, as required by the 
‘Managing Conflicts of Interest in the NHS’ guidance. 

 
NHS Pension Scheme 
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control 
measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme 
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, 
employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme 
rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with 
the timescales detailed in the Regulations. 

 
Equality Diversity and Human Rights 
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under 
equality, diversity and human rights legislation are complied with. 
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Carbon Reduction 
The Foundation Trust has undertaken risk assessments and has a sustainable development 
management plan in place which takes account of UK climate projections 2018 (UKCP18). 
The Foundation Trust ensures that its obligations under the climate change act and the 
adaptation reporting requirements are complied with. 

 
Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources 
Due to the Covid-19 pandemic response the Foundation Trust’s financial planning was 
centralised by NHSEI for the first six months of the year and then for the remainder it was 
based on a high-level assessment of spend required to manage the covid impact and 
maintain operational performance at a ICP level. Performance against the plan was 
monitored by the Trust Board on a monthly basis, with a summary version also being 
presented to the Governors on a quarterly basis. This ensured appropriate links back to 
public, staff and stakeholder accountability. 

 
The Board receives and reviews a monthly Integrated Quality Performance Report which 
draws together operational performance, quality metrics, workforce metrics and financial 
metrics in an integrated dashboard format. More detailed finance and quality reports are 
also presented as separate agenda items. 

 

On a quarterly basis the Board receives a report outlining progress against the Foundation 
Trust’s corporate priorities, alongside the quarterly presentation of the Board Assurance 
Framework to demonstrate how effectively strategic risks are being managed. The Board 
Committees also receive updates against the corporate priorities which have been mapped 
to them for ongoing scrutiny. 

 
In addition to Board scrutiny, the Performance and Finance Committee meets on a monthly 
basis to review progress against the financial plan in detail. Progress against the Foundation 
Trust’s financial plans and corporate priorities are presented to and reviewed by the 
Performance and Finance Committee each month. 

 

The remit of the Trust Board committees includes ensuring the effective use of resources 
and responsibility for investigating specific areas contributing to the Integrated Quality 
Performance Report. For example, the Quality Committee reviews the progress against 
Ambulance Quality Indicators and on the Committee’s behalf the Director of Quality and 
Safety. 

 
Assurance on economy, efficiency and effective use of resources is also provided by Internal 
Audit, as their work-plan includes audits of the major areas of resource utilisation and the 
external auditors also form a view on this area during their review of the accounts. 

 
Information governance 
During the year no incidents were reported via the DSP Toolkit. 

 

As part of the internal audit programme an audit of the data breach management process 
was undertaken during the year. This highlighted a number of control issues including that 
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compliance with the control framework was not found to be taking place. A detailed 
corrective action plan has subsequently been developed. 

 
Data quality and governance 
Governance and leadership: Data Quality is owned by each system’s Information Asset 
Owners (IAO) and monitored via Change Approval Boards (CAB). Part of the responsibility of 
this group is to ensure any change to operational process or system use is raised with 
stakeholders in order to capture all changes that could impact reported data. The Trust’s 
information team produce Trust-wide data quality dashboards for regular review by IAOs 
and Information Asset Administrators (IAA) to strengthen data quality contained within all 
systems that are used to feed all reports including performance reports. The data quality 
dashboards report/highlight any potential issues and offer the opportunity for correcting 
data at source, as well as highlighting any general problems with certain procedures or 
training requirements. The information team also logs any issues that become apparent 
whilst reporting, and these are raised with the IAO and reviewed at the appropriate CAB, 
providing assurances to the Information Governance Working Group (IGWG), through its 
direct reporting arrangements and ensures the Trust’s compliance with legislative, 
mandatory and regulatory requirements in terms of the group’s scope. 

 
The Role of Policies and Plans: In ensuring the quality of care provided, the Trust maintains 
and reviews data quality dashboards where any data quality issues are identified and 
monitored by the appropriate services. If data quality issues are discovered, the IAO is 
responsible for making the necessary improvements to the data within the source system. 
All IAOs, IAAs and staff have access to all Trust policies via the Trust’s intranet, Siren, 
available any time via any device. 

 
Systems and processes: The Trust has robust processes around data quality. Each system 
has a nominated IAO and IAA who work with the information team to ensure that data can 
be accurately extracted for reporting purposes. All reported data is reviewed by the 
information team as well as independently by the performance team or relevant 
department to ensure this adheres to national guidance. Reconciliation checks are regularly 
carried out to ensure that reported performance figures can be reconciled back to source 
data, with any issues identified raised with the IAO. 

 

People and skills: IAO and IAA, are the members of staff with expertise in that particular 
area, understanding the operational requirements and processes as well as the 
requirements for information. Informatics staff are highly skilled in extraction and 
presentation of data using the latest Microsoft business intelligence technology. The 
performance team then reviews all data from an objective standpoint to ensure the data is 
concurrent with forecasts or established baselines. 
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Data use and reporting: Data is reported to internal Board-Level Committees only after it 
has been checked by the IAO, and then by the performance team. The Board-Level 
Committees are then given the opportunity to scrutinise the data, before it is published 
externally on our internet site. Any group or individual then has the opportunity to question 
anything about the data and demand rationale for data. Healthwatch, Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees and Clinical Commissioning Groups all have direct and open contact to 
reported performance. 

 
Corona Virus Pandemic 
The pandemic continued throughout the entirety of 2020/21. This caused unprecedented 
pressure on the Foundation Trust and the whole healthcare system as a major event was 
triggered and multiple business continuity plans were put into action. 

 

However, during these unprecedented times, controls were always maintained with 
supporting actions mobilised to ensure continuity of the service without significant undue 
risk to the public purse. A coronavirus governance structure was established and shared 
with the Board in March 2020 to provide assurance over how key decisions about the 
Trust’s response to the pandemic were being made, on a daily basis. This structure was 
utilised in times of pressures during the year, with usual governance and operational 
processes resuming between the waves of the pandemic. This was in line with the guidance 
issued from NHS England and Improvement regarding freeing up the capacity to respond to 
the pandemic. 

 
Review of effectiveness 
As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed 
by the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive managers and clinical 
leads within the NHS Foundation Trust who have responsibility for the development and 
maintenance of the internal control framework. I have drawn on performance information 
available to me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in 
their management letter and other reports. I have been advised on the implications of the 
result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Board, the 
Audit Committee, the Executive Management Group and Quality Committee, and a plan to 
address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place. 

 
The system of internal control is managed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors 
therefore employs a number of systems to assure itself that the systems of internal control 
are working effectively. The formal governance structure of committees reporting through 
to the Board, maintains effective systems and identifies, and where appropriate, escalates 
all risks emerging from the business transacted. 

 
The Board of Directors endorses the strategic priorities, all formalised risk management 
plans and endorses and reviews the Board Assurance Framework. It also receives and 
reviews the monthly Board Performance Report which draws together the main 
components of Foundation Trust-wide performance (finance, operational, workforce and 
quality) against plan, from which the Board gains assurance. 
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The Audit Committee acts independently from the Executive, to provide assurance to the 
Board, based on a challenge of evidence and assurance obtained, that the interests of the 
Foundation Trust are properly protected in relation to annual reporting and internal control. 
It keeps under review the effectiveness of the system of internal control, that is, the systems 
established to identify, assess, manage and monitor risks both financial and otherwise, and 
to ensure the Foundation Trust complies with all aspects of the law, relevant regulation and 
good practice. 

 
This Committee reports to the Board any matters in respect of which the Committee 
considers that action or improvement is needed and makes recommendations as to the 
steps to be taken. 

 

The Committee developed, approved and monitored a programme of internal audit work 
which assessed the effectiveness and fitness for purpose of key assurance processes and 
systems of internal control. The Head of Internal Audit opinion has provided good 
assurance on the system of internal control. Where scope for improvement was identified, 
recommendations were made, and action plans put in place that were monitored by the 
Audit Committee. 

 

The Audit Committee has overseen the effectiveness of the Foundation Trust’s risk 
management arrangements, considered the Annual Governance Statement and reviewed its 
statutory role and responsibilities and remains vigilant in assessing its controls in a complex 
and fast-moving environment. 

 
The Audit Committee has also sought assurance over the development of the Clinical Audit 
Plan, its delivery and the effective implementation of recommendations. 

 

During the year the Executive Management Group has enabled a focussed review of 
strategic, Trust-wide, directorate and departmental risks to take place. In addition, the 
Group has undertaken detailed scrutiny of the risk management delivery plan, business 
continuity and resilience arrangements. Subsequently a report was presented to the Board 
of Directors which provided the assurance required. 

 

The Quality Committee provides the Board with an independent and objective review of all 
aspects of quality governance. This includes but is not limited to: clinical effectiveness; 
patient safety; patient experience; CQC compliance; safeguarding; clinical audit; and 
progress against the Foundation Trust’s Quality Strategy and quality priorities. The 
Committee fulfilled these roles throughout 2020/21 and escalated any key issues to the 
Board for further action, decision and scrutiny. 

 
The Head of Internal Audit provides me with an opinion on the overall arrangements for 
gaining assurance through the Board Assurance Framework and on the controls reviewed as 
part of the Internal Audit work. The work undertaken throughout the year, following a risk 
based audit plan, agreed by the Audit Committee, culminated in a Head of Internal Audit 
Opinion. This Head of Internal Opinion concluded that, on the basis of work carried out in 
accordance with the Tactical Internal Plan 2020/21, good assurance could be given that 
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there is a generally sound system of internal control, designed to meet the organisation’s 
objectives, and that controls are generally being applied consistently. 

 

My review is informed by internal and external assessments during the year as follows:- 

• Compliance with Foundation Trust Code of Governance; 

• Internal self-assessment against the CQC / NHS Improvement Well-Led domain; 

• Internal Audit reports on arrangements within key Foundation Trust functions; 

• Monthly performance reports covering all Directorates in the form of an Integrated 
Quality Performance Report; 

• External Audit reports including the Value for Money conclusion and Annual Audit 
Letter. 

 

The Board of Directors of North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust approves this 
Annual Governance Statement. 

 
Conclusion 
We can conclude that no significant control issues have been identified. 

 

Helen Ray 
Chief Executive 
10th June 2021 



 

 
 

 

Independent auditor’s report to the 
Council of Governors of North East 
Ambulance Service NHS Foundation 
Trust 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on the financial statements 

 
We have audited the financial statements of North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust (‘the 
Trust’) and its subsidiary (‘the Group’) for the year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the Group 
and Trust Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group and Trust Consolidated 
Statements of Financial Position, the Group and Trust Consolidated Statement of Changes in 
Taxpayers’ Equity, the Group and Trust Statement of Cash Flows, and notes to the financial 
statements, including the summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework 
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and international accounting standards as 
interpreted and adapted by HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual 2020/21 as contained in the 
Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2020/21, and the Accounts Direction 
issued under the National Health Service Act 2006. 

 
In our opinion, the financial statements: 

 
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Trust and Group as at 31 March 2021 and of 

the Trust and Group’s and income and expenditure for the year then ended; 

 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Department of Health and Social Care Group 

Accounting Manual 2020/21; and 

 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health Service 

Act 2006. 

Basis for opinion 

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities section of our report. We are independent of the Trust and Group in accordance with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including 
the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 
Conclusions relating to going concern 

 
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Accounting Officer’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to 
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust and 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the 
financial statements are authorised for issue. 

 
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Accounting Officer with respect to going concern are 
described in the relevant sections of this report. 



 

 
 

Other information 

 
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to 
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

 
We are also required to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies between our 
knowledge acquired during the audit and the Directors’ statement that they consider the Annual Report 
is fair, balanced and understandable and whether the Annual Report appropriately discloses those 
matters that we communicated to the Audit Committee which we consider should have been disclosed. 

 
We have nothing to report in these regards. 

 
Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer for the financial statements 

 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Accounting Officer's Responsibilities, the Accounting 
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Accounting Officer determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

 
The Accounting Officer is required to comply with the Department of Health and Social Care Group 
Accounting Manual 2020/21 and prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless the 
Trust is informed of the intention for dissolution without transfer of services or function to another entity. 
The Accounting Officer is responsible for assessing each year whether or not it is appropriate for the 
Trust to prepare financial statements on the going concern basis and disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern. 

 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

 
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design 
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect 
of irregularities, including fraud. Based on our understanding of the Trust and Group, we identified that 
the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the National Health Service 
Act 2006 (as amended by the Health and Social Care Act 2012), and we considered the extent to which 
non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
We evaluated the Accounting Officer’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the 
financial statements (including the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks 
were related to posting manual journal entries to manipulate financial performance, management bias 
through judgements and assumptions in significant accounting estimates and significant one off or 
unusual transactions. 



 

 
 

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to those identified risks, including non-compliance with 
laws and regulations (irregularities) and fraud that are material to the financial statements. Our audit 
procedures included, but were not limited to: 

 
• discussing with management and the Audit Committee the policies and procedures regarding 

compliance with laws and regulations; 

 
• communicating identified laws and regulations throughout our engagement team and remaining 

alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout our audit; and 

 
• considering the risk of acts by the Trust and Group which were contrary to applicable laws and 

regulations, including fraud. 

 
Our audit procedures in relation to fraud included, but were not limited to: 

 
• making enquiries of management and the Audit Committee on whether they had knowledge of any 

actual, suspected or alleged fraud; 

 
• gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud; 

 
• discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud; and 

 
• addressing the risks of fraud through management override of controls by performing journal entry 

testing. 

 
There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the primary responsibility for 
the prevention and detection of irregularities including fraud rests with management and the Audit 
Committee. As with any audit, there remained a risk of non-detection of irregularities, as these may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal controls. 

 
We are also required to conclude on whether the Accounting Officer’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. We performed our work in 
accordance with Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statement and regularity of public sector bodies in 
the United Kingdom, and Supplementary Guidance Note 01, issued by the National Audit Office in April 
2021. 

 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms 
part of our auditor’s report. 

 

Report on the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources 

Matter on which we are required to report by exception 

 
We are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we are not satisfied that the Trust has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year 
ended 31 March 2021. 

 
We have not completed our work on the Trust’s arrangements. On the basis of our work to date, 
having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021, we have 
not identified any significant weaknesses in arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2021. 

 
We will report the outcome of our work on the Trust’s arrangements in our commentary on those 
arrangements within the Auditor’s Annual Report. Our audit completion certificate will set out any 
matters which we are required to report by exception. 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


 

 
 

Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer 

 
The Chief Executive as Accounting Officer is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the Trust’s use of resources, to ensure proper 
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these 
arrangements. 

 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources 

 
We are required by Schedule 10(1) of the National Health Service Act 2006 to satisfy ourselves that the 
Trust has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 
effectively. 

 
We have undertaken our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the 
guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021. 

 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Code of Audit Practice 

 
In our opinion: 

 
• the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report subject to audit have been properly prepared in 

accordance with the requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2020/21; 
and 

 
• the other information published together with the audited financial statements in the Annual Report 

for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements. 

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception under the Code of Audit Practice 

 
We are required to report to you if: 

 
• in our opinion the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the NHS Foundation Trust 

Annual Reporting Manual 2020/21; or 

 
• the Annual Governance Statement is misleading or is not consistent with our knowledge of the 

Trust and other information of which we are aware from our audit of the financial statements; or 

 
• we refer a matter to the regulator under Schedule 10(6) of the National Health Service Act 2006; 

or 

 
• we issue a report in the public interest under Schedule 10(3) of the National Health Service Act 

2006. 

 
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

 

Use of the audit report 
 

This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of North East Ambulance Service NHS 
Foundation Trust as a body in accordance with Schedule 10(4) of the National Health Service Act 
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Council of Governors of the 
Trust those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To 
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
Council of Governors of the Trust as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed. 



 

 
 
 

 

Delay of certification of completion of the audit 
 

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until we have completed the work necessary to 
satisfy ourselves that the Trust has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
is its use of resources, and issued our assurance statement to the group auditor in respect of the Trust’s 
consolidation schedules. 

 

 

 

 
Cameron Waddell, Partner 
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 

 
The Corner Bank Chambers 
26 Mosley Street 
Newcastle upon Tyne NE1 1DF 

 
 

 
14 June 2021 
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Audit Completion Certificate issued to the Council of 
Governors of North East Ambulance Service NHS 
Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2021 

 

In our auditor’s report dated 14 June 2021, we explained that the audit could not be formally 

concluded until we had completed the work necessary to satisfy ourselves that the Trust has made 

proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness is its use of resources. In 

addition, we were not able to conclude our audit as we had not completed work required to report to 

the National Audit Office as group auditor of the Consolidated Provider Account. 

This work has now been completed. 

No matters have come to our attention since 14 June 2021 that would have a material impact on the 
financial statements on which we gave our unqualified opinion. 

 

The Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources 

We are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we are not satisfied that the Trust has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year 

ended 31 March 2021. 

We have nothing to report in this respect. 

 

Certificate 

We certify that we have completed the audit of North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

in accordance with the requirements of chapter 5 of part 2 of the National Health Service Act 2006 

and the Code of Audit Practice. 
 

 
Cameron Waddell, Key Audit Partner 

For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 
 

The Corner 

Bank Chambers 

26 Mosley Street 

Newcastle upon Tyne 

NE1 1DF 

 

 
27 July 2021 

 
 
 

Mazars LLP 
Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with 
registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London E1W 1DD. Registered to carry on audit work in the UK by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861. VAT number: GB 
839 8356 73 

http://www.auditregister.org.uk/
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Foreword to the accounts 

 

 
North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

 
 

 
These accounts, for the year ended 31 March 2021, have been prepared by North East Ambulance 

Service NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 & 25 of Schedule 7 within the 

National Health Service Act 2006. 

 

Signed 
 

Name  Helen Ray 

Job title       Chief Executive 

Date 10th June 2021 
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
 
 

Group Trust 

 

  2020/21  2019/20  2020/21  2019/20 

Note £000  £000  £000  £000 

Operating income from patient care activities 3 160,925  143,207  160,856  143,130 

Other operating income 4 23,797  5,289  25,039  6,482 

Operating expenses 6, 8   (182,345)     (147,900)        (183,557)        (148,880)  

Operating surplus from continuing operations  2,377  596  2,338  732 

 
Finance income 

 
11 

 
17 

  
132 

  
459 

  
449 

Finance expenses 12 (223)  (122)  (594)  (317) 

PDC dividends payable    (509)     (1,012)     (509)     (1,012)  

Net finance costs  (715)  (1,002)  (644)  (880) 

Other gains / (losses) 13   (31)     102      (44)     113   

Surplus / (deficit) for the year  1,631  (304)  1,650  (35) 

 
Other comprehensive income 

        

Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure: 

Revaluations 

 
16 

 
  929   

  
  140   

  
  929  

  
  140  

Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the period  2,560  (164)  2,579  105 
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 
 
 

 Group  Trust  

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 

2021 2020 2021 2020 

 
Non-current assets 

Note £000 £000 £000 £000 

Intangible assets 14 1,613 1,826 1,613 1,826 

Property, plant and equipment 15 44,937 44,991 42,986 44,370 

Loans to Subsidiary 17 - - 10,078 11,601 

Total non-current assets  46,550 46,817 54,677 57,797 

Current assets      

Inventories 18 2,547 511 2,513 491 

Receivables 19 7,525 8,194 7,629 7,918 

Loans to Subsidiary 17 - - 2,040 1,911 

Non-current assets held for sale 20 - 73 - 73 

Cash and cash equivalents 21.1 25,838 11,797 25,213 10,048 

Total current assets  35,910 20,575 37,395 20,441 

Current liabilities      

Trade and other payables 22 (15,990) (11,308) (15,336) (11,105) 

Borrowings 24 (521) (593) (1,994) (2,017) 

Provisions 26 (6,445) (2,687) (6,406) (2,687) 

Other liabilities 23 (1,721) (668) (1,721) (668) 

Total current liabilities  (24,677) (15,256) (25,457) (16,477) 

Total assets less current liabilities  57,783 52,136 66,615 61,761 

Non-current liabilities      

Trade and other payables 22 (858) (396) (858) (396) 

Borrowings 24 (3,708) (2,587) (11,459) (11,151) 

Provisions 26 (3,250) (3,058) (3,251) (3,058) 

Total non-current liabilities  (7,816) (6,041) (15,568) (14,605) 

Total assets employed  49,967 46,095 51,047 47,156 

Financed by 
     

Public dividend capital  37,247 35,935 37,247 35,935 

Revaluation reserve  6,439 5,837 6,439 5,837 

Income and expenditure reserve  6,281 4,323 7,361 5,384 

Total taxpayers' equity  49,967 46,095 51,047 47,156 

The notes on pages 119 to 154 form part of these accounts. 
    

 

Helen Ray 

Chief Executive 

10th June 2021 
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021 
 

 

 
Group 

Public 

dividend 

capital 

 
Revaluation 

reserve 

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve 

 

 
Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2020 - brought 

forward 

 
35,935 

 
5,837 

 
4,323 

 
46,095 

Surplus for the year - - 1,631 1,631 

Revaluations - 929 - 929 

Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets - (36) 36 - 

Public dividend capital received 1,312 - - 1,312 

Other reserve movements - (291) 291 - 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2021 37,247 6,439 6,281 49,967 

 

 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020 

 
 

 
Group 

Public 

dividend 

capital 

 
Revaluation 

reserve 

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve 

 

 
Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2019 - brought 

forward 

 
35,100 

 
6,135 

 
4,150 

 
45,385 

Prior period adjustment - - 39 39 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2019 - restated 35,100 6,135 4,189 45,424 

Deficit for the year - - (304) (304) 

Revaluations - 140 - 140 

Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets - (55) 55 - 

Public dividend capital received 835 - - 835 

Other reserve movements - (383) 383 - 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2020 35,935 5,837 4,323 46,095 
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021 
 
 

 
 
Trust 

Public 

dividend 

capital 

 
Revaluation 

reserve 

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve 

 
 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2020 - brought forward 35,935 5,837 5,384 47,156 

Surplus for the year - - 1,650 1,650 

Revaluations - 929 - 929 

Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets - (36) 36 - 

Public dividend capital received 1,312 - - 1,312 

Other reserve movements - (291) 291 - 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2021 37,247 6,439 7,361 51,047 

 

 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020 
 

 
 
Trust 

Public 

dividend 

capital 

 
Revaluation 

reserve 

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve 

 
 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2019 - brought forward 35,100 6,135 4,981 46,216 

Deficit for the year - - (35) (35) 

Revaluations - 140 - 140 

Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets - (55) 55 - 

Public dividend capital received 835 - - 835 

Other reserve movements - (383) 383 - 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2020 35,935 5,837 5,384 47,156 

 
 
 

Information on reserves 

Public dividend capital 

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the time of establishment of the predecessor 

NHS organisation. Additional PDC may also be issued to trusts by the Department of Health and Social Care. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by 

the trust, is payable to the Department of Health as the public dividend capital dividend. 

 
Revaluation reserve 

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse impairments 

previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating income. Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations 

are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that a previous gain was recognised unless the downward movement represents a clear consumption 

of economic benefit or a reduction in service potential. 

 
Income and expenditure reserve 

The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the trust. 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  

   

Group 
  

Trust 
 

  2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 

 Note £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cash flows from operating activities      

Operating surplus  2,377 596 2,338 732 

Non-cash income and expense:      

Depreciation and amortisation 6.1 7,552 6,955 7,503 6,912 

Net impairments 7 339 355 339 355 

(Increase) / decrease in receivables and other assets  1,171 (264) 791 (415) 

(Increase) / decrease in inventories  (2,036) 29 (2,022) (28) 

Increase in payables and other liabilities  6,609 2,104 6,461 1,459 

Increase in provisions  3,968 904 3,930 904 

Net cash flows from operating activities  19,980 10,679 19,340 9,919 

Cash flows from investing activities      

Interest received  17 132 459 449 

Purchase of intangible assets  (426) (1,229) (426) (1,229) 

Purchase of PPE and investment property  (5,155) (8,576) (3,954) (2,484) 

Sales of PPE and investment property  295 135 232 655 

Net cash flows used in investing activities  (5,269) (9,538) (3,689) (2,609) 

Cash flows from financing activities      

Public dividend capital received  1,312 835 1,312 835 

Movement on other loans  - - 1,394 (6,564) 

Capital element of finance lease rental payments  (653) (718) (1,535) (1,386) 

Interest paid on finance lease liabilities  (318) (125) (646) (355) 

PDC dividend paid  (1,011) (1,000) (1,011) (1,000) 

Net cash flows (used in) financing activities  (670) (1,008) (486) (8,470) 

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  14,041 133 15,165 (1,160) 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brought forward  11,797 11,664 10,048 11,208 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 21.1 25,838 11,797 25,213 10,048   
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Notes to the Accounts 

 
Note 1 Accounting policies and other information 

Note 1.1 Basis of preparation 

NHS Improvement, in exercising the statutory functions conferred on Monitor, has directed that the financial statements 

of the Trust shall meet the accounting requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting 

Manual (GAM), which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been 

prepared in accordance with the GAM 2020/21 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting 

policies contained in the GAM follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful 

and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory 

Board. Where the GAM permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy that is judged to be most appropriate 

to the particular circumstances of the Trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular 

policies adopted are described below. These have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in 

relation to the accounts 

 
 
 

Accounting convention 

 
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of 

property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities. 

 
Note 1.2 Going concern 

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial reporting framework applicable to NHS 

bodies, derived from the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual, defines that the anticipated continued provision of the 

entity's services in the public setor is normally sufficient evidence of going cncern. The Trust's Board of Directors have 

reasonable expectation that this will continue to be he case. 

 

 
Note 1.3 Consolidation 

Other subsidiaries 

 
North East Ambulance Service Unified Solutions is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Foundation Trust. Subsidiary entities 

are those over which the trust is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has 

the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The income, expenses, assets, liabilities, equity and 

reserves of subsidiaries are consolidated in full into the appropriate financial statement lines. The capital and reserves 

attributable to minority interests are included as a separate item in the Statement of Financial Position. 

The amounts consolidated are drawn from the published financial statements of the subsidiaries for the year 

The Trust has not consolidated its charity on the basis of materiality. 
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Note 1.4 Revenue from contracts with customers 
 

Where income is derived from contracts with customers, it is accounted for under IFRS 15. The GAM expands the definition of a contract 

to include legislation and regulations which enables an entity to receive cash or another financial asset that is not classified as a tax by the 

Office of National Statistics (ONS). 

 
Revenue in respect of goods/services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by transferring promised 

goods/services to the customer and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated to those performance obligations. At the 

year end, the Trust accrues income relating to performance obligations satisfied in that year. Where the Trust’s entitlement to consideration 

for those goods or services is unconditional a contract receivable will be recognised. Where entitlement to consideration is conditional on 

a further factor other than the passage of time, a contract asset will be recognised. Where consideration received or receivable relates to 

a performance obligation that is to be satisfied in a future period, the income is deferred and recognised as a contract liability. 

 

Revenue from NHS contracts 

The accounting policies for revenue recognition and the application of IFRS 15 are consistently applied. The contracting 

arrangements in the NHS changed between 2019/20 and 2020/21 affecting the application of the accounting policy under 

IFRS 15. This difference in application is explained below. 

 
The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners for health care services. In 2020/21, the majority 

of the Trust’s income from NHS commissioners was in the form of block contract arrangements. During the first half of the 

year the Trust received block funding from its commissioners. For the second half of the year, block contract arrangements 

were agreed at a [Integrated Care System/Sustainability and Transformation Partnership] level. The related performance 

obligation is the delivery of healthcare and related services during the period, with the Trust’s entitlement to consideration not 

varying based on the levels of activity performed. 

The Trust has received additional income outside of the block and system envelopes to reimburse specific costs incurred and 

other income top-ups to support the delivery of services. Reimbursement and top-up income is accounted for as variable 

consideration. 

Comparative period (2019/20) 

 

In the comparative period (2019/20), the Trust’s contracts with NHS commissioners included those where the Trust’s 

entitlement to income varied according to services delivered. A performance obligation relating to delivery of a spell of health 

care was generally satisfied over time as healthcare was received and consumed simultaneously by the customer as the 

Trust performed it. The customer in such a contract was the commissioner, but the customer benefited as services were 

provided to their patient. Even where a contract could be broken down into separate performance obligations, healthcare 

generally aligned with paragraph 22(b) of the Standard entailing a delivery of a series of goods or services that were 

substantially the same and had a similar pattern of transfer. At the year end, the Trust accrued income relating to activity 

delivered in that year, where a patient care spell was incomplete. This accrual was disclosed as a contract receivable as 

entitlement to payment for work completed was usually only dependent on the passage of time. 

 
Note 1.5 Other forms of income 

Grants and donations 

 

Government grants are grants from government bodies other than income from commissioners or trusts for the provision of services. 

Where a grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income to match that expenditure. 

Where the grants is used to fund capital expenditure, it is credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income once conditions 

attached to the grant have been met. Donations are treated in the same way as government grants. 

 
Apprenticeship service income 

The value of the benefit received when accessing funds from the Government's apprenticeship service is recognised as income at the 

point of receipt of the training service. Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited training provider from the Trust's Digital 

Apprenticeship Service (DAS) account held by the Department for Education, the corresponding notional expense is also recognised at 

the point of recognition for the benefit. 
 

Note 1.6 Expenditure on employee benefits 
 

Short-term employee benefits 

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments such as social security costs and the apprenticeship levy are recognised in the period 

in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but not taken by employees at the end of 

the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following 

period. 

Pension costs 

NHS Pension Scheme 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Both schemes are unfunded, defined 

benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of Secretary of State for 

Health and Social Care in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed in a way that would enable employers to identify their share of 

the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as though it is a defined contribution scheme: the 

cost to the trust is taken as equal to the employer's pension contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period. The 

contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due. 

 

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is due to ill-health. 

The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time the trust commits itself to the 

retirement, regardless of the method of payment. 

 

Note 1.7 Expenditure on other goods and services 
 

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is measured at the fair value 

of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where it results in the creation of a non-current 

asset such as property, plant and equipment. 
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Note 1.8 Property, plant and equipment 

Recognition 

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where: 

 
• it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes 

• it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust 

• it is expected to be used for more than one financial year 

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably 

• the item has cost of at least £5,000, or 

• collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have cost of more than £250, where the 

assets are functionally interdependent, had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have similar disposal 

dates and are under single managerial control. 

 
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, 

eg, plant and equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful 

lives. 

Subsequent expenditure 

 

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the carrying 

amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic benefits or service potential deriving from the cost 

incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be determined reliably. 

Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets the criteria for 

recognition above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Other expenditure that does not generate 

additional future economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is charged to the Statement 

of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred. 

 
Measurement 

Valuation 

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to 

acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating 

in the manner intended by management. 

Assets are measured subsequently at valuation. Assets which are held for their service potential and are in use (ie 

operational assets used to deliver either front line services or back office functions) are measured at their current value 

in existing use. Assets that were most recently held for their service potential but are surplus with no plan to bring them 

back into use are measured at fair value where there are no restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where they do 

not meet the definitions of investment properties or assets held for sale. 

 
Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying values are 

not materially different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period. Current values in existing 

use are determined as follows: 

 
• Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use 

• Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost on a modern equivalent asset basis. 

For specialised assets, current value in existing use is interpreted as the present value of the asset's remaining service 

potential, which is assumed to be at least equal to the cost of replacing that service potential. Specialised assets are 

therefore valued at their depreciated replacement cost (DRC) on a modern equivalent asset (MEA) basis. An MEA 

basis assumes that the asset will be replaced with a modern asset of equivalent capacity and meeting the location 

requirements of the services being provided. Assets held at depreciated replacement cost have been valued on an 

alternative site basis where this would meet the location requirements. 

 
 

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment 

loss. Cost includes professional fees and, where capitalised in accordance with IAS 23, borrowings costs. Assets are 

revalued and depreciation commences when the assets are brought into use. 
 

IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, and plant and machinery that are held for operational use are 

valued at depreciated historic cost where these assets have short useful lives or low values or both, as this is not 

considered to be materially different from current value in existing use. 
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Depreciation 

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful lives in a manner consistent with the 

consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not depreciated. 

 
Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as ‘held for sale’ cease to be depreciated upon the reclassification. 

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the trust, respectively. 

 
Revaluation gains and losses 

Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse a revaluation 

decrease that has previously been recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating 

expenditure. 

 
Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset concerned, 

and thereafter are charged to operating expenses. 

 
Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an item of 

‘other comprehensive income’. 

 

Impairments 

In accordance with the GAM, impairments that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefits or of service potential in 

the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve to the income and 

expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the balance 

in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment. 

 
An impairment that arises from a clear consumption of economic benefit or of service potential is reversed when, and to the 

extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating expenditure to the 

extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment had never been recognised. Any 

remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the original impairment, a transfer was made 

from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is transferred back to the revaluation reserve 

when the impairment reversal is recognised. 

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are treated as revaluation gains. 

 
 
 

De-recognition 

Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘held for sale’ once the criteria in IFRS 5 are met. The sale must be highly 

probable and the asset available for immediate sale in its present condition. 

 
Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their ‘fair value less costs 

to sell’. Depreciation ceases to be charged and the assets are not revalued, except where the 'fair value less costs to sell' falls 

below the carrying amount. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract conditions have been met. 

 
Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as ‘held for sale’ and 

instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset’s useful life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when scrapping 

or demolition occurs. 

 

Donated and grant funded assets 

Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The donation/grant 

is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has imposed a condition that the future economic benefits embodied in 

the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the donation/grant is deferred within liabilities 

and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition has not yet been met. 

 
The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other items of property, plant and 

equipment. 

In 2020/21 this includes assets donated to the trust by the Department of Health and Social Care as part of the response to the 

coronavirus pandemic. As defined in the GAM, the trust applies the principle of donated asset accounting to assets that the trust 

controls and is obtaining economic benefits from at the year end. 
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Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
 

Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful lives are shown in 

the table below: 

 Min life Max life 

Years Years 

Buildings, excluding dwellings 1 114 

Plant & machinery 4 15 

Transport equipment 4 10 

Information technology 2 7 

 

Finance-leased assets (including land) are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life or the lease term, unless the 

trust expects to acquire the asset at the end of the lease term in which case the assets are depreciated in the same  

manner as owned assets above. 

 

Note 1.9 Intangible assets 

Recognition 

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately from 

the rest of the trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is  

probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust and where the cost of the 

asset can be measured reliably. 

 
Internally generated intangible assets 

Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised as 

intangible assets. 

 
Expenditure on research is not capitalised. Expenditure on development is capitalised where it meets the requirements  

set out in IAS 38. 

 

Software 

Software which is integral to the operation of hardware, eg an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item 

of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of hardware, eg application software, is 

capitalised as an intangible asset. 

Measurement 

Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create, produce and 

prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 

Subsequently intangible assets are measured at current value in existing use. Where no active market exists, intangible 

assets are valued at the lower of depreciated replacement cost and the value in use where the asset is income generating. 

Revaluations gains and losses and impairments are treated in the same manner as for property, plant and equipment. 

An intangible asset which is surplus with no plan to bring it back into use is valued at fair value where there  are no 

restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where they do not meet the definitions of investment properties or assets 

held for sale. 

 
Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. 

 
Amortisation 

Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of 

economic or service delivery benefits. 

 

Useful lives of intangible assets 
 

Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful lives are shown in 

the table below: 

 Min life Max life 

Years Years 

Information technology - 3rd Party and In-House Software 1 7 

Development expenditure 1 7 

Websites 1 7 

Software licences 1 7 
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Note 1.10 Inventories 

 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is measured using the first in, first out (FIFO) 

method. 

In 2020/21, the Trust received inventories including personal protective equipment from the Department of Health and Social Care at nil 

cost. In line with the GAM and applying the principles of the IFRS Conceptual Framework, the Trust has accounted for the receipt of these 

inventories at a deemed cost, reflecting the best available approximation of an imputed market value for the transaction based on the cost 

of acquisition by the Department. 

 

 
Note 1.11 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash 

equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts 

of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 

 
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form 

an integral part of the Trust’s cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded at current values. 

 

Note 1.12 Financial assets and financial liabilities 

Recognition 

Financial assets and financial liabilities arise where the Trust is party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument, and as a result 

has a legal right to receive or a legal obligation to pay cash or another financial instrument. The GAM expands the definition of a contract to 

include legislation and regulations which give rise to arrangements that in all other respects would be a financial instrument and do not give 

rise to transactions classified as a tax by ONS. 

 

 
This includes the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the Trust’s 

normal purchase, sale or usage requirements and are recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs, ie, when receipt or 

delivery of the goods or services is made. 
 

Classification and measurement 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus or minus directly attributable transaction costs except where 

the asset or liability is not measured at fair value through income and expenditure. Fair value is taken as the transaction price, or otherwise 

determined by reference to quoted market prices or valuation techniques. 

 
Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance leases are recognised and measured in 

accordance with the accounting policy for leases described below. 

 
Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

 

Financial liabilities classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

 
Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost 

 

After initial recognition, these financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method 

less any impairment (for financial assets). The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or 

receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the 

amortised cost of a financial liability. 

 
Interest revenue or expense is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or amortised 

cost of a financial liability and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and a financing income or expense. 

 
Impairment of financial assets 

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost including lease receivables, contract receivables and contract assets the Trust 

recognises an allowance for expected credit losses. 

 

The Trust adopts the simplified approach to impairment for contract and other receivables, contract assets and lease receivables, measuring 

expected losses as at an amount equal to lifetime expected losses. For other financial assets, the loss allowance is initially measured at an 

amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (stage 1) and subsequently at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit 

risk assessed for the financial asset significantly increases (stage 2). 

 

 
Expected losses are charged to operating expenditure within the Statement of Comprehensive Income and reduce the net carrying value of 

the financial asset in the Statement of Financial Position. 
 

Derecognition 

Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or the Trust has 

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. 

 

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires. 
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Note 1.13 Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All 

other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 

The Trust as a lessee 

Finance leases 

 
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the Trust, the asset is recorded as property, 

plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the lower of the fair value of 

the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. The i mplicit 

interest rate is that which produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability. 

 
The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounted for an item of pro perty 

plant and equipment. 

 
The annual rental charge is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate of finance 

over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged to finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

 
 

Operating leases 

 
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised 

initially in other liabilities on the statement of financial position and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over 

the lease term. 

 
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

 

Leases of land and buildings 

 
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the classification for each is 

assessed separately. 

The Trust as a lessor 

Finance leases 

 
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Trust's net investment in the leases. 

Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Trust's net inve stment 

outstanding in respect of the leases. 

Operating leases 

 
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in 

negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Note 1.14 Provisions 

The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or amount; for w hich it is 

probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount. The amount 

recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the resources required to settle the obligation. Wh ere the 

effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using HM Treasury's discount 

rates effective for 31 March 2021: 

 
 Nominal rate 

Short-term Up to 5 years Minus 0.02% 

Medium-term After 5 years up to 10 years 0.18% 

Long-term Exceeding 10 years 1.99% 

 
HM Treasury provides discount rates for general provisions on a nominal rate basis. Expected future cash flows are therefore adjusted 

for the impact of inflation before discounting using nominal rates. The following inflation rates are set by HM Treasury, effective 31 

March 2021: 

 
 Inflation rate 

Year 1 1.20% 

Year 2 1.60% 

Into perpetuity 2.00% 

 
Early retirement provisions and injury benefit provisions both use the HM Treasury's pension discount rate of minus 0.95% in real 

terms. 

 
Clinical negligence costs 

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution, which, in return, 

settles all clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal 

liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by NHS Resolution on behalf of th e trust is 

disclosed at note 36.3 but is not recognised in the Trust’s accounts. 
 

Non-clinical risk pooling 

 
The trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling sch emes 

under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution and in return receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. 

The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expens es 

when the liability arises. 
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Note 1.15 Contingencies 

Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more future 

events not wholly within the entity’s control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed in note 27 where an inflow 

of economic benefits is probable. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in note 27, unless the probability of a transfer of economic 

benefits is remote. 

 
Contingent liabilities are defined as: 

 
• possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or 

 
• present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will 

arise or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 
 

Note 1.16 Public dividend capital 

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at 

the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial 

instrument within the meaning of IAS 32. 

 
The Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the Trust. PDC is recorded at the 

value received. 

 
A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is 

calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the Trust during the 

financial year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, with certain 

additions and deductions as defined by the Department of Health and Social Care. 

This policy is available at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-financing-available-to-nhs-Trusts- 

and-foundation-Trusts. 

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health and Social Care (as the issuer of PDC), the 

dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the 

annual accounts. The dividend calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result the audit 

of the annual accounts. 

 

Note 1.17 Value added tax 

Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax 

on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the 

capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated 

net of VAT. 

 
Note 1.18 Corporation tax 

The Trust has determined that the wholly owned subsidiary did not generate any Corporation tax liabilities. 

 
Note 1.19 Climate change levy 

Expenditure on the climate change levy is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as incurred, based on 

the prevailing chargeable rates for energy consumption. 

Note 1.20 Third party assets 

Assets belonging to third parties in which the Trust has no beneficial interest (such as money held on behalf of patients) 

are not recognised in the accounts. However, they are disclosed in a separate note to the accounts in accordance with the 

requirements of HM Treasury’s FReM . 

 
Note 1.21 Losses and special payments 

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the 

health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject 

to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which 

govern the way that individual cases are handled. Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional 

headings in expenditure on an accruals basis. 

 
The losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which reports on 

an accrual basis with the exception of provisions for future losses. 

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-financing-available-to-nhs-Trusts-
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Note 1.22 Early adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations 

No new accounting standards or revisions to existing standards have been early adopted in 2020/21. 
 

Note 1.23 Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective or adopted 

IFRS 16 Leases 

IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease and other 

interpretations and is applicable in the public sector for periods beginning 1 April 2022. The standard provides a single 

accounting model for lessees, recognising a right of use asset and obligation in the statement of financial position for most 

leases: some leases are exempt through application of practical expedients explained below. For those recognised in 

the statement of financial position the standard also requires the remeasurement of lease liabilities in specific 

circumstances after the commencement of the lease term. For lessors, the distinction between operating and finance 

leases will remain and the accounting will be largely unchanged. 

 
IFRS 16 changes the definition of a lease compared to IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The trust will apply this definition to new 

leases only and will grandfather its assessments made under the old standards of whether existing contracts contain a 

lease. 

On transition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2022, the trust will apply the standard retrospectively with the cumulative effect of 

initially applying the standard recognised in the income and expenditure reserve at that date. For existing operating leases 

with a remaining lease term of more than 12 months and an underlying asset value of at least £5,000, a lease liability will 

be recognised equal to the value of remaining lease payments discounted on transition at the trust’s incremental borrowing 

rate. The trust's incremental borrowing rate will be defined by HM Treasury. Currently this rate is 0.91% but this may 

change between now and adoption of the standard. The related right of use asset will be measured equal to the lease 

liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments. No adjustments will be made on 1 April 2022 for existing 

finance leases. 

For leases commencing in 2022/23, the trust will not recognise a right of use asset or lease liability for short term 

leases (less than or equal to 12 months) or for leases of low value assets (less than £5,000). Right of use assets will 

be subsequently measured on a basis consistent with owned assets and depreciated over the length of the lease term. 

 

 
The implementation date for IFRS 16 in the NHS was revised to 1 April 2022 in November 2020. Due to the need to 

reassess lease calculations, together with uncertainty on expected leasing activity in from April 2022 and beyond, a 

quantification of the expected impact of applying the standard in 2022/23 is currently impracticable. However, the trust 

does expect this standard to have a material impact on non-current assets, liabilities and depreciation. 

 

 
Note 1.24 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 

The following are the judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in 

the process of applying the Trust accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised 

in the financial statements: 

As the majority of Trust income in 2020/21 is from a NHS block contract arrangements then all revenue have been 

recorded in the current reporting period. 

Other revenue is based on meeting performance obligations, so research and development income and training income 

are only recorded when those criteria are met. 
 

Note 1.25 Sources of estimation uncertainty 

The following are assumptions about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant 

risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year: 

The key sources of estimation relate to the values recorded as provisions and the revaluation of the Trust's assets. Further 

information on these values are included within the relevant notes to the accounts. Provision discount rates used are 

the employee benefit rates as supplied by HM Treasury and every 1% increase in this rate would give an approximate 

£250k gain to the Trust. 

The upward property revaluation for the year was £686k, the total value of land and buildings at 31st March 2021 was 

£23,028k. This demonstrates that the valuation has a large impact on the carrying value for the Trust, last year the 

uncertainty around Covid-19 resulted in a £140k downward revaluation. 

Although the Trust has seen a dramatic fall in trade receivables in the year the remaining balances have been 

evaluated as higher risk due and therefore an increase to the doubtful debts in the year. 

The Trust has also evaluated the implication of the settlement of it's Flowers legal obligations - an estimate of 60% has 

been put through as a provision with each 10% equating to approx £250k. 
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Note 2 Operating Segments 

 

NEAS has not identified any operating segments as all services relate to the delivery of healthcare. In addition, segmental reporting is not currently provided 

Statutory reporting of the Trust's financial position is provided to NHS Improvement monthly and the Board and Finance Committee receive information 

The key measures within the NHS Improvement returns look at the in year financial performance against plan and the month 7-12 financial plan. 
 

Note 3 Operating income from patient care activities 
 

All income from patient care activities relates to contract income recognised in line with accounting policy 1.4 

Group 

   

Trust 

 

Note 3.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature) 2020/21 2019/20  2020/21 2019/20 

 £000 £000  £000 £000 

A & E income 99,114 83,525  99,114 83,525 

Patient transport services income 27,628 27,365  27,628 27,365 

Other income 29,529 28,096  29,529 28,096 

Additional pension contribution central funding** 4,654 4,221  4,585 4,144 

Total income from activities 
 

160,925 143,207  
 

160,856 143,130 

 

As part of the coronavirus pandemic response, transaction flows were simplified in the NHS  and providers  and their  commissioners moved  onto block contract 

payments at the start of 2020/21. In the second half of the year, a revised financial framework built on these arrangements but with a greater focus on system 

partnership and providers derived most of their income from these system  envelopes. Comparatives in this note are presented to be comparable with the current 

year activity. This does not reflect the contracting and payment mechanisms in place during the prior year. 

 
 

**The employer contribution rate for NHS pensions increased from 14.3% to 20.6% (excluding administration charge) from 1 April 2019. Since 2019/20, NHS 

providers have continued to pay over contributions at the former rate with the additional amount  being paid  over by NHS England  on providers'  behalf. The full 

cost and related funding have been recognised in these accounts. 

 
 

Note 3.2 Income from patient care activities (by source) Group 
2020/21 

 
2019/20 

Trust 
2020/21 

 
2019/20 

Income from patient care activities received from: £000 £000 £000 £000 

NHS England 8,705 5,964 8,636 5,887 

Clinical commissioning groups 150,596 135,112 150,596 135,112 

Department of Health and Social Care - - - - 

Other NHS providers 1,154 1,219 1,154 1,219 

Local authorities 21 84 21 84 

Non-NHS: private patients - 9 - 9 

Injury cost recovery scheme 263 278 263 278 

Non NHS: other   186   
 

  541   
 

  186   
 

  541   

Total income from activities   160,925      143,207           160,856           143,130   

Of which:        

Related to continuing operations 160,925  143,207  160,856  143,130 
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Note 4 Other operating income     

    

Group 

  2020/21   2019/20  

 
Contract 

income 

Non-contract 

income 

 

Total 

Contract 

income 

Non-contract 

income 

 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Research and development 211 - 211 184 - 184 

Education and training 2,986 - 2,986 1,831 - 1,831 

Non-patient care services to other bodies 596 - 596 891 - 891 

Provider sustainability fund (2019/20 only) - - - 1,077 - 1,077 

Financial recovery fund (2019/20 only) - - - 554 - 554 

Reimbursement and top up funding 12,865 - 12,865 - - - 

Contributions to expenditure, PPE Inventory - DHSC - 6,708 6,708 - - - 

Rental revenue from operating leases - 107 107 - 95 95 

Other income 324 - 324 657 - 657 

Total other operating income 16,982 6,815 23,797 5,194 95 5,289 

Of which:       

Related to continuing operations   23,797   5,289 

 
 

 
Trust 

 

2020/21 2019/20 

  
Contract 

income 

 
Non-contract 

income 

 

 
Total 

  
Contract 

income 

 
Non-contract 

income 

 

 
Total 

 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 

Research and development 211 - 211  184 - 184 

Education and training 2,986 - 2,986  1,831 - 1,831 

Non-patient care services to other bodies 596 - 596  891 - 891 

Provider sustainability fund (2019/20 only) - - -  1,077 - 1,077 

Financial recovery fund (2019/20 only) - - -  554 - 554 

Reimbursement and top up funding 12,865 - 12,865  - - - 

Contributions to expenditure, PPE Inventory - DHSC - 6,708 6,708  - - - 

Rental revenue from operating leases 130 107 237  130 95 225 

Other income 1,436 - 1,436  1,720 - 1,720 

Total other operating income 18,224 6,815 25,039  6,387 95 6,482 

Of which:        

Related to continuing operations   25,039    6,482 
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Note 5.1 Additional information on contract revenue (IFRS 15) recognised in the period 

 

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in within contract liabilities at the previous period end £0K 

(£55K 2019/20) 

 

 
Note 5.2 Income from activities arising from commissioner requested services 

 

Commissioner requested services are defined in the provider licence and are services that commissioners believe would 

need to be protected in the event of provider failure. A&E income is classified as a Commissioner Requested Service 

and totals £99.1m (£83.5m in 19/20). All other income is non-Commissioner Requested Services. 



131  

North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Accounts 2020/21 

 

 
Note 6.1 Operating expenses  

 

Group 

   
 

Trust 

 

 2020/21 2019/20  2020/21 2019/20 

 £000 £000  £000 £000 

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies 461 571  461 571 

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies 11,904 5,290  11,904 5,290 

Staff and executive directors costs 125,713 107,763  123,170 105,320 

Remuneration of non-executive directors 147 144  144 131 

Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs costs) 6,882 1,847  6,473 1,591 

Supplies and services - general 3,815 1,880  3,778 1,825 

Drug costs (drugs inventory consumed and purchase of non-inventory drugs) 494 454  494 454 

Inventories written down 1,338 -  1,338  

Consultancy costs 12 42  12 42 

Establishment 4,819 3,579  4,745 3,286 

Premises 4,115 2,225  4,098 2,216 

Transport (including patient travel) 8,612 10,923  13,069 15,037 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6,753 6,413  6,704 6,370 

Amortisation on intangible assets 799 542  799 542 

Net impairments 339 355  339 355 

Movement in credit loss allowance: contract receivables / contract assets 164 169  55 169 

Movement in credit loss allowance: all other receivables and investments 40 27  40 27 

Change in provisions discount rate(s) 130 213  130 213 

Audit fees payable to the external auditor      

audit services- statutory audit 82 56  70 42 

other auditor remuneration (external auditor only) - 4  - 4 

Internal audit costs 137 95  137 95 

Clinical negligence 764 587  764 587 

Legal fees 139 420  139 420 

Insurance 345 96  345 96 

Research and development 236 374  236 374 

Education and training 2,556 2,188  2,552 2,174 

Rentals under operating leases 805 994  805 988 

Early retirements 87 7  87 7 

Hospitality - 6  - 6 

Losses, ex gratia & special payments 281 361  281 361 

Other services, eg external payroll 374 253  374 253 

Other 2 22  14 34 

Total 
 

182,345 147,900  
 

183,557 148,880 

Of which:      

Related to continuing operations 182,345 147,900  182,219 148,880 

 

Note 6.2 Other auditor remuneration (Group) 
 

Other auditor remuneration payments made to the external auditor in 2020/21 £7K (2019/20 £4K) were in regard to the audit of the Quality Report. The audit fees for 

the Trust includes VAT. 

 

Note 6.3 Limitation on auditor's liability (Group) 

 

There is no limitation on auditor's liability for external audit work carried out for the financial years 2020/21 or 2019/20. 

 
 

Note 7 Impairment of assets (Group)  

 2020/21  2019/20 

 
Net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit resulting from: 

£000  £000 

Changes in market price 243  260 

Other 96  95 

Total net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit 339  355 
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Note 8 Employee benefits  
 

Group 

   
 

Trust 

 

 2020/21 2019/20  2020/21 2019/20 

 Total Total  Total Total 

 £000 £000  £000 £000 

Salaries and wages 99,504 85,498  96,971 83,661 

Social security costs 9,163 8,140  8,971 7,961 

Apprenticeship levy 439 400  439 400 

Employer's contributions to NHS pensions 15,482 14,061  15,252 13,808 

Pension cost - other 60 55  47 46 

Termination benefits - 32  - - 

Temporary staff (including agency) 3,000 1,718  2,779 1,585 

Total gross staff costs 
 

127,648 109,904  
 

124,459 107,461 

Recoveries in respect of seconded staff (148) (233)  (148) (233) 

Total staff costs 
 

127,500 109,671  
 

124,311 107,228 

Of which 

Costs capitalised as part of assets 
 

- 
 

224 

  
- 

 
224 

 
 

Note 8.1 Retirements due to ill-health (Group) 
 

During 2020/21 there were 3 early retirements from the trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (2 in the year ended 31 March 2020). The 

estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements is £88k (£32k in 2019/20). 

 
 

These estimated costs are calculated on an average basis and will be borne by the NHS Pension Scheme. 
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Note 9 Pension costs 
 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits 

payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both are 

unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction 

of the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that 

would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme 

is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is 

taken as equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period. 

 

 
In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that 

would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between 

formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows: 

 

 
a) Accounting valuation 

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s 

Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period 

in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing 

suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2021, is based 

on valuation data as 31 March 2020, updated to 31 March 2021 with summary global member and accounting data. In 

undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the 

discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used. 

 

 
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part 

of the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are 

published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office. 
 

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation 

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into 

account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers. 

 
The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016. The results 

of this valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20.6% of pensionable pay. The 2016 funding 

valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap that was set following the 

2012 valuation. In January 2019, the Government announced a pause to the cost control element of the 2016 valuations, 

due to the uncertainty around member benefits caused by the discrimination ruling relating to the McCloud case. 
 

The Government subsequently announced in July 2020 that the pause had been lifted, and so the cost control element 

of the 2016 valuations could be completed. The Government has set out that the costs of remedy of the discrimination will 

be included in this process. HMT valuation directions will set out the technical detail of how the costs of remedy will be 

included in the valuation process. The Government has also confirmed that the Government Actuary is reviewing the cost 

control mechanism (as was originally announced in 2018). The review will assess whether the cost control mechanism is 

working in line with original government objectives and reported to Government in April 2021. The findings of this review 

will not impact the 2016 valuations, with the aim for any changes to the cost cap mechanism to be made in time for the 

completion of the 2020 actuarial valuations. 

 

 

The Trust also offers an additional defined contribution workplace pension scheme, the National Employment Savings 

Scheme (NEST) scheme for those employees not eligible or wanting to join the Trust's NHS Pension Scheme. 

http://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions
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Note 10 Operating leases (Group & Trust) 

 
Note 10.1 North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust as a lessor 

This note discloses income generated in operating lease agreements where North East Ambulance Service NHS 

Foundation Trust is the lessor. 

 
Revenue is received from customers who share the use of Trust radio mast sites.  

 
2020/21 

 
2019/20 

 
Operating lease revenue 

£000  £000 

Minimum lease receipts 107  95 

Total 107  95 

 
The Trust has an additional operating lease arrangement with its subsidiary to provide accommodation to deliver it's 

fleet services. This is not recognisd in the group figure above but is agreed at £11k per month. The lease expires 28/2/2023 

 
 31 March  31 March 

2021  2020 

£000  £000 

Future minimum lease receipts due:    

- not later than one year; 107  95 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 428  380 

Total 535  475 

 
Note 10.2 North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust as a lessee 

This note discloses costs and commitments incurred in operating lease arrangements where North East Ambulance 

Service NHS Foundation Trust is the lessee. 
 

North East Ambulance Service has 3 main operating lease liabilities, namely land, buildings and vehicles. Land and 

buildings include ambulance stations and office buildings. Vehicle leasing includes some Emergency Care vehicles, though 

some are purchased outright. 

 

The future lease payments for land relate to finance leases which are disclosed in Note 25. 
 

Contingent rent relates to land and buildings only and reflects increases in rent that were unknown at the inception of 

the lease, including finance lease rental increases. 

 
There were no sub-lets of lease arrangements in 2020/21 or 2019/20.  

 2020/21  2019/20 

 £000  £000 

Operating lease expense    

Minimum lease payments 740  958 

Contingent rents 65  36 

Total 805  994 

  
31 March 

2021 

  
31 March 

2020 

 £000  £000 

Future minimum lease payments due:    

- not later than one year; 575  792 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 642  695 

- later than five years. 440  453 

Total 1,657  1,940 
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Note 11 Finance income 

Finance income represents interest received on assets and investments in the period. 

 Group   Trust  

2020/21 2019/20  2020/21 2019/20 

£000 £000  £000 £000 

Interest on bank accounts - 132  - 124 

Interest on loans to subsidiary - -  442 325 

Other finance income 17 -  17 - 

Total finance income 
 

17 132  
 

459 449 

 
Note 12.1 Finance expenditure 

Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges involved in the borrowing of money or asset financing. 

 Group   Trust  

2020/21 2019/20  2020/21 2019/20 

£000 £000  £000 £000 

Interest expense:      

Finance leases 241 113  612 308 

Total interest expense 
 

241 113  
 

612 308 

Unwinding of discount on provisions (18) 9  (18) 9 

Total finance costs 
 

223 122  
 

594 317 

 
Note 12.2 The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998 / Public Contract Regulations 2015 (Group) 

 

No payments were made in 2020/21 or 2019/20 for late payment of commercial debt. 

 
Note 13 Other gains / (losses)  

Group 

   
Trust 

 

 2020/21 2019/20  2020/21 2019/20 

 £000 £000  £000 £000 

Gains on disposal of assets - 125  - 113 

Losses on disposal of assets (31) (23)  (44) - 

Total gains / (losses) on disposal of assets 
 

(31) 102  
 

(44) 113 
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Note 14 Intangible assets - 2020/21  

  

 
Software 

Internally 

generated 

information 

 

 
Development 

  

Group & Trust licences technology expenditure Websites Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2020 - brought forward 520 2,625 150 52 3,347 

Additions 506 20 - - 526 

Reclassifications - 26 34 - 60 

Disposals / derecognition (87) (210) (21) - (318) 

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2021 939 2,461 163 52 3,615 

 
Amortisation at 1 April 2020 - brought forward 

 
283 

 
1,107 

 
79 

 
52 

 
1,521 

Provided during the year 132 646 21 - 799 

Disposals / derecognition (87) (210) (21) - (318) 

Amortisation at 31 March 2021 328 1,543 79 52 2,002 

 
Net book value at 31 March 2021 

 
611 

 
918 

 
84 

 
- 

 
1,613 

Net book value at 1 April 2020 237 1,518 71 - 1,826 

 
Note 14.1 Intangible assets - 2019/20 

     

  
 

 
Software 

 
Internally 

generated 

information 

 
 

 
Development 

  

Group & Trust licences technology expenditure Websites Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2019 - as previously 

stated 

 
481 

 
1,515 

 
74 

 
52 

 
2,122 

Additions - 1,014 20 - 1,034 

Reclassifications 39 96 56 - 191 

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2020 520 2,625 150 52 3,347 

 
Amortisation at 1 April 2019 - as previously stated 

 
170 

 
692 

 
65 

 
52 

 
979 

Provided during the year 113 415 14 - 542 

Amortisation at 31 March 2020 283 1,107 79 52 1,521 

 

Net book value at 31 March 2020 
 

237 
 

1,518 
 

71 
 

- 
 

1,826 

Net book value at 1 April 2019 311 823 9 - 1,143 
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Note 15 Property, plant and equipment - 2020/21 

 
 
 
 

Group 

 
 
 
 

 
Land 

 
 

 
Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings 

 
 
 

 
Assets under 

construction 

 
 
 

 
Plant & 

machinery 

 
 
 

 
Transport 

equipment 

 
 
 

 
Information 

technology 

 
 
 
 

 
Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation/gross cost at 1 April 2020 - 

brought forward 

 
3,113 

 
18,980 

 
1,406 

 
10,654 

 
34,881 

 
7,384 

 
76,418 

Additions - 3,190 2,081 82 358 682 6,393 

Impairments - (115) - - - - (115) 

Revaluations - (29) - - - - (29) 

Reclassifications - - (1,408) 65 301 982 (60) 

Disposals / derecognition - (640) - (291) (719) (1,538) (3,188) 

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2021 3,113 21,386 2,079 10,510 34,821 7,510 79,419 

 
Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2020 - 

brought forward 

 

 
- 

 

 
1,866 

 

 
- 

 

 
5,196 

 

 
18,504 

 

 
5,861 

 

 
31,427 

Provided during the year - 979 - 1,248 3,752 774 6,753 

Impairments - 436 - - - - 436 

Reversals of impairments - (212) - - - - (212) 

Revaluations - (958) - - - - (958) 

Disposals / derecognition - (640) - (291) (495) (1,538) (2,964) 

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 

2021 
 

- 
 

1,471 
 

- 
 

6,153 
 

21,761 
 

5,097 
 

34,482 

 
Net book value at 31 March 2021 

 
3,113 

 
19,915 

 
2,079 

 
4,357 

 
13,060 

 
2,413 

 
44,937 

Net book value at 1 April 2020 3,113 17,114 1,406 5,458 16,377 1,523 44,991 

 
Note 15.1 Property, plant and equipment - 2019/20 

       

 
 

 

Group 

 
Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2019 - as 

previously stated 

Additions 

Impairments 

Revaluations 

Reclassifications 

Disposals / derecognition 

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2020 

 
Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2019 - 

as previously stated 

Provided during the year 

Impairments 

Reversals of impairments 

Revaluations 

Disposals / derecognition 

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 

2020 

 
Net book value at 31 March 2020 

Net book value at 1 April 2019 

 

 
Land 

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings 

 

Assets under 

construction 

 

Plant & 

machinery 

 

Transport 

equipment 

 

Information 

technology 

 

 
Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

3,113 18,621 3,181 10,573 32,430 7,192 75,110 

- 1,343 1,384 1,167 5,670 275 9,839 

- (235) - - - - (235) 

- (769) - - - - (769) 

- 20 (3,159) 578 2,277 93 (191) 

- - - (1,664) (5,496) (176) (7,336) 

3,113 18,980 1,406 10,654 34,881 7,384 76,418 

 
 

- 

 
 

1,639 

 
 

- 

 
 

5,763 

 
 

20,372 

 
 

5,330 

 
 

33,104 

- 1,016 - 1,097 3,593 707 6,413 

- 441 - - - - 441 

- (321) - - - - (321) 

- (909) - - - - (909) 

- - - (1,664) (5,461) (176) (7,301) 

 
- 

 
1,866 

 
- 

 
5,196 

 
18,504 

 
5,861 

 
31,427 

 
3,113 

 
17,114 

 
1,406 

 
5,458 

 
16,377 

 
1,523 

 
44,991 

3,113 16,982 3,181 4,810 12,058 1,862 42,006 
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Note 15.2 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2020/21 

 
 

 

 
Group 

 

 
Land 

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings 

 

Assets under 

construction 

 

Plant & 

machinery 

 

Transport 

equipment 

 

Information 

technology 

 

 
Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2021 

Owned - purchased 

 
3,113 

 
16,879 

 
2,079 

 
2,922 

 
13,060 

 
2,413 

 
40,466 

Finance leased - 3,036 - 1,435 - - 4,471 

NBV total at 31 March 2021 3,113 19,915 2,079 4,357 13,060 2,413 44,937 

 
 

Note 15.3 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2019/20 
 

 

 
Group 

 

 
Land 

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings 

 

Assets under 

construction 

 

Plant & 

machinery 

 

Transport 

equipment 

 

Information 

technology 

 

 
Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2020 

Owned - purchased 

 
3,113 

 
15,812 

 
1,406 

 
3,502 

 
16,377 

 
1,523 

 
41,733 

Finance leased - 1,302 - 1,956 - - 3,258 

NBV total at 31 March 2020 3,113 17,114 1,406 5,458 16,377 1,523 44,991 
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Note 15.4 Property, plant and equipment - 2020/21 

 
 

 
Trust 

 
 
 
 

Land 

 

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings 

 
 
 

Assets under 

construction 

 
 
 

Plant & 

machinery 

 
 
 

Transport 

equipment 

 
 
 

Information 

technology 

 
 
 
 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation/gross cost at 1 April 2020 - brought 

forward 

 
3,113 

 
18,980 

 
1,043 

 
10,405 

 
34,783 

 
7,384 

 
75,708 

Additions  3,190 345 147 525 682 4,889 

Impairments  (115)     (115) 

Revaluations  (29)     (29) 

Reclassifications   (1,042)   982 (60) 

Disposals / derecognition  (640) (9) (291) (585) (1,538) (3,063) 

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2021 3,113 21,386 337 10,261 34,723 7,510 77,330 

 
Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2020 - brought 

forward 

 
 

- 

 
 

1,866 

 
 

- 

 
 

5,117 

 
 

18,494 

 
 

5,861 

 
 

31,338 

Provided during the year  979  1,213 3,738 774 6,704 

Impairments  436     436 

Reversals of impairments  (212)     (212) 

Revaluations  (958)     (958) 

Disposals / derecognition  (640)  (291) (495) (1,538) (2,964) 

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2021 - 1,471 - 6,039 21,737 5,097 34,344 

 
Net book value at 31 March 2021 

 
3,113 

 
19,915 

 
337 

 
4,222 

 
12,986 

 
2,413 

 
42,986 

Net book value at 1 April 2020 3,113 17,114 1,043 5,288 16,289 1,523 44,370 

 
Note 15.5 Property, plant and equipment - 2019/20 

       

 

 
 

 
Trust 

 

 
Land 

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings 

 

Assets under 

construction 

 

Plant & 

machinery 

 

Transport 

equipment 

 

Information 

technology 

 

 
Total 

 
Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2019 - as previously 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

stated 3,113 18,621 376 10,324 32,386 7,192 72,012 

Additions - 1,343 1,275 1,696 7,893 275 12,482 

Impairments - (235) - - - - (235) 

Revaluations - (769) - - - - (769) 

Reclassifications - 20 (353) 49 - 93 (191) 

Disposals / derecognition - - (255) (1,664) (5,496) (176) (7,591) 

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2020 3,113 18,980 1,043 10,405 34,783 7,384 75,708 

 
Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2019 - as 

       

previously stated - 1,639 - 5,719 20,370 5,330 33,058 

Provided during the year - 1,016 - 1,062 3,585 707 6,370 

Impairments - 441 - - - - 441 

Reversals of impairments - (321) - - - - (321) 

Revaluations - (909) - - - - (909) 

Disposals / derecognition - - - (1,664) (5,461) (176) (7,301) 

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2020 - 1,866 - 5,117 18,494 5,861 31,338 

 
Net book value at 31 March 2020 

 
3,113 

 
17,114 

 
1,043 

 
5,288 

 
16,289 

 
1,523 

 
44,370 

Net book value at 1 April 2019 3,113 16,982 376 4,605 12,016 1,862 38,954 
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Note 15.6 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2020/21 

 

 
 

 
Trust 

 

 
Land 

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings 

 

Assets under 

construction 

 

Plant & 

machinery 

 

Transport 

equipment 

 

Information 

technology 

 

 
Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2021        

Owned - purchased 3,113 16,879 337 1,668 5,368 2,413 29,778 

Finance leased - 3,036 - 2,554 7,618 - 13,208 

NBV total at 31 March 2021 3,113 19,915 337 4,222 12,986 2,413 42,986 

 
 
 
 

Note 15.7 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2019/20 

 
 

 
Trust Land 

 

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings 

 
 
 

Assets under 

construction 

 
 
 

Plant & 

machinery 

 
 
 

Transport 

equipment 

 
 
 

Information 

technology 

 
 
 

 
Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2020        

Owned - purchased 3,113 15,812 1,043 2,181 7,739 1,523 31,411 

Finance leased - 1,302 - 3,107 8,550 - 12,959 

NBV total at 31 March 2020 3,113 17,114 1,043 5,288 16,289 1,523 44,370 
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Note 16 Revaluations of property, plant and equipment 

 

Property assets including land and buildings were revalued as at 31 March 2021. The Valuation Office Agency (VOA) was 

commissioned to undertake a desktop property valuation with an effective date of 31 March 2021 for the Trust's owned 

property assets (as they were also valued (Full site visit) by the VOA in March 2020). 

These valuations are based upon fair values applying Depreciated replacement Cost (DRC) for specialised assets and 

Existing Use Values (EUV) for Non-Specialised Assets. Finance lease assets were valued on a Leasehold Interest 

Valuation method as at 31 March 2021. The revaluation undertaken by the VOA includes two leased properties with no 

designated end dates (namely Lanchester Road and TVJI) as in previous years. 

No compensation has been received from third parties for assets impaired, lost or given up, that is included in the Trust's 

surplus. The overall NET revaluation for the year was upward by £686k. 

 
 
 
 

Note 17 Investments in Subsidiary Undertakings  

 
2020/21 2019/20 

 £ £ 

Shares in Subsidiary Undertakings 100 100 

Loans to Subsidiary Undertakings 12,118,330 13,512,741 

Carrying value at 31 March 12,118,430 13,512,841 

 
The loan value above can be split by: 

 
£'000 

 
£'000 

Current 2,041 1,911 

Non-current 10,078 11,601 

 

The shares in the subsidiary company North East Ambulance Service Unified Solutions Limited comprises a 100% holding 

in the share capital consisting of 100 ordinary £1 shares. 

 
The principal activity of North East Ambulance Service Unified Solutions Limited is to provide fleet repairs and 

maintenance services. 

 

 
The loans to the subsidiary are usually for the period of 8 years. 
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Note 18 Inventories  

 
Group 

 

 
Trust 

 

 31 March 31 March 

2021 2020 

31 March 

2021 

31 March 

2020 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Consumables 2,331 320 2,297 300 

Energy 216 191 216 191 

Total inventories 
  

2,547 511 2,513 491 

 
Inventories recognised 

 
in expenses for the year were £6,493k (2019/20: £3,745k). 

 
Write-down of 

 
inventories 

recognised as expenses for the year were £1,338k (2019/20: £0k). 
 

In response to the COVID 19 pandemic, the Department of Health and Social Care centrally procured personal protective 

equipment and passed these to NHS providers free of charge. During 2020/21 the Trust received £6,708k of items 

purchased by DHSC. 

 
These inventories were recognised as additions to inventory at deemed cost with the corresponding benefit recognised 

in income. The utilisation of these items is included in the expenses disclosed above. 

 
 
 
 
 

Note 19 Receivables  
Group 

   
Trust 

 

 31 March 

2021 

31 March 

2020 

 31 March 

2021 

31 March 

2020 

 £000 £000  £000 £000 

Current      

Contract receivables 4,124 6,208  3,924 5,726 

Allowance for impaired contract receivables / assets (568) (404)  (459) (404) 

Allowance for other impaired receivables (87) (47)  (87) (47) 

Prepayments (non-PFI) 2,766 2,117  2,831 2,096 

PDC dividend receivable 520 18  520 18 

VAT receivable 412 -  542 266 

Other receivables 358 302  358 263 

Total current receivables 7,525 8,194  7,629 7,918 

 

Of which receivable from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 
     

Current 3,625 4,941    
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Note 19.1 Allowances for credit losses - 2020/21 

 
 
 

 Group   Trust  

Contract 

receivables 

and contract 

 

 
All other 

 Contract 

receivables 

and contract 

 

 
All other 

assets receivables  assets receivables 

£000 £000  £000 £000 

Allowances as at 1 Apr 2020 - brought forward 404 47  404 47 

Changes in existing allowances 164 40  55 40 

Allowances as at 31 Mar 2021 568 87  459 87 

 

 
Note 19.2 Allowances for credit losses - 2019/20  

 Group 

Contract 

  Trust 

Contract 

 

 receivables   receivables  

 and contract All other  and contract All other 

 assets receivables  assets receivables 

 £000 £000  £000 £000 

Allowances as at 1 Apr 2019 - as previously      

stated 235 20  235 20 

Changes in existing allowances 169 27  169 27 

Allowances as at 31 Mar 2020 404 47  404 47 
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Note 20 Non-current assets held for sale and assets in disposal groups 

 

Group & Trust 
 

 2020/21 2019/20 

£000 £000 

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in 

disposal groups at 1 April 
 

73 

 
73 

Prior period adjustment  - 

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in 

disposal groups at 1 April - restated 
 

73 

 
73 

Assets sold in year (73) - 

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in 

disposal groups at 31 March 
 

- 
 

73 

 
Note 21.1 Cash and cash equivalents movements 

  

 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, in hand and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily 

convertible investments of known value which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

 
 
 

 Group 

2020/21 

 
2019/20 

 Trust 

2020/21 

 
2019/20 

£000 £000  £000 £000 

At 1 April 11,797 11,664  10,048 11,208 

Net change in year 14,041 133  15,165 (1,160) 

At 31 March 25,838 11,797  25,213 10,048 

Broken down into: 

Cash with the Government Banking Service 

 
25,838 

 
11,797 

  
25,213 

 
10,048 

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP 25,838 11,797  25,213 10,048 

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF 25,838 11,797  25,213 10,048 
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Note 22 Trade and other payables  
Group 

   
Trust 

 

 31 March 

2021 

31 March 

2020 

 31 March 

2021 

31 March 

2020 

 £000 £000  £000 £000 

Current      

Trade payables 886 855  698 1,362 

Capital payables 795 1,214  237 959 

Accruals 11,564 6,765  11,736 6,371 

Social security costs 1,427 1,246  1,403 1,219 

VAT payables - 18  - - 

Other taxes payable 1,003 856  983 840 

Other payables 315 354  279 354 

Total current trade and other payables 15,990 11,308  15,336 11,105 

Non-current 
     

Capital payables 403 396  403 396 

Accruals 455 -  455 - 

Total non-current trade and other payables 858 396  858 396 

 
Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 

     

Current 464 556    

 

New non-current accruals relate to dilapidation and reparation costs that are to be carried out prior to the end of the 

lease. 

 
Note 22.1 Early retirements in NHS payables above  

There were no early retirements in 20/21 (none in 2019/20) 
     

Note 23 Other liabilities 
     

 Group   Trust  

 31 March 31 March  31 March 31 March 

 2021 2020  2021 2020 

 £000 £000  £000 £000 

Current      

Deferred income: contract liabilities 1,721 668  1,721 668 

Total other current liabilities 1,721 668  1,721 668 

 

Note 24 Borrowings 

 
 

Group 

   
 

Trust 

 

 31 March 31 March  31 March 31 March 

 2021 2020  2021 2020 

 £000 £000  £000 £000 

Current      

Obligations under finance leases 521 593  1,994 2,017 

Total current borrowings 521 593  1,994 2,017 

Non-current 
     

Obligations under finance leases 3,708 2,587  11,459 11,151 

Total non-current borrowings 3,708 2,587  11,459 11,151 

 
A new lease at Dukesway, Team Valley was taken up in the year and a valuation of £1.731m was obtained, this lease 

expires in 2040. 
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Note 24.1 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities 

 
Group Trust 

 
 Finance Finance 

2020/21 leases leases 

 £000 £000 

Carrying value at 1 April 2020 3,180 13,167 

Cash movements:   

 
Financing cash flows - payments and receipts of principal 

 
(653) 

 
(1,535) 

Financing cash flows - payments of interest (318) (646) 

Non-cash movements:   

Additions 1,731  2,366 

Application of effective interest rate 289  101 

Carrying value at 31 March 2021 4,229  13,453 

 
 

 
 Finance Finance 

2019/20 leases leases 

 £000 £000 

Carrying value at 1 April 2019 3,683 5,413 

Cash movements:   

 
Financing cash flows - payments and receipts of principal 

 
(718) 

 
(1,386) 

Financing cash flows - payments of interest (125) (355) 

Non-cash movements:   

Additions 194  9,136 

Application of effective interest rate 146  359 

Carrying value at 31 March 2020 3,180  13,167 
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Note 25 Finance leases 

 
Note 25.1 North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust as a lessor 

 

 
There are no leases of this nature, (2019/20 £0k). 

 

Note 25.2 North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust as a lessee 

 
Obligations under finance leases where the trust is the lessee. 

 

Group 

 Transport 

and 

Equipment 

 

 
Buildings 

 

 
Total 

  
Transport and 

Equipment 

 

 
Buildings 

 

 
Total 

31 March 31 March 31 March  31 March 31 March 31 March 

2021 2021 2021  2020 2020 2020 

£000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 

Gross lease liabilities 1,375 6,247 7,622  1,963 1,940 3,903 

 
of which liabilities are due: 

       

- not later than one year; 489 329 818  510 226 736 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 830 1,172 2,002  1,397 944 2,341 

- later than five years. 56 4,746 4,802  56 770 826 

Finance charges allocated to future periods (42) (3,351) (3,393)  (83) (640) (723) 

Net lease liabilities 1,333 2,896 4,229  1,880 1,300 3,180 

of which payable:        

- not later than one year; 471 49 520  479 114 593 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 808 307 1,115  1,346 582 1,928 

- later than five years. 54 2,540 2,594  54 605 659 

 
 
 

The Trust incurred additional finance leases obligations in the year due to vehicle leases with its subsidiary, NEASUS Ltd along with the Group and 

Trust impact of the new lease at Team Valley £1.731m. 

 
 T rus t  
 Transport     

 and 

Equipment 
 

Buildings 
 

Total 

 Transport and 

Equipment 

 
Buildings 

 
Total 

 31 March 31 March 31 March  31 March 31 March 31 March 

 2021 2021 2021  2020 2020 2020 

 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 

Gross lease liabilities 11,863 6,247 18,110  13,570 1,940 15,510 

 
of which liabilities are due: 

       

- not later than one year; 2,383 329 2,712  2,353 226 2,579 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 6,860 1,172 8,032  7,418 944 8,362 

- later than five years. 2,620 4,746 7,366  3,799 770 4,569 

Finance charges allocated to future periods (1,306) (3,351) (4,657)  (1,703) (640) (2,343) 

Net lease liabilities 10,557 2,896 13,453  11,867 1,300 13,167 

of which payable:        

- not later than one year; 1,945 49 1,994  1,903 114 2,017 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 6,037 307 6,344  6,404 582 6,986 

- later than five years. 2,575 2,540 5,115  3,559 605 4,164 
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Note 26 Provisions for liabilities and charges analysis (Group) 

 

 
 
 
 
Group 

Pensions: 

early 

departure 

costs 

 
Pensions: 

injury 

benefits 

 
 

Legal 

claims 

 
 
 

Other 

 
 
 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April 2020 672 2,632 125 2,316 5,745 

Change in the discount rate 15 115 - - 130 

Arising during the year 89 179 104 7,983 8,355 

Utilised during the year (65) (122) (74) (659) (920) 

Reversed unused - - (36) (3,561) (3,597) 

Unwinding of discount (4) (14) - - (18) 

At 31 March 2021 707 2,790 119 6,079 9,695 

Expected timing of cash flows: 

- not later than one year; 

 
87 

 
160 

 
119 

 
6,079 

 
6,445 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 354 661 - - 1,015 

- later than five years. 266 1,969 - - 2,235 

Total 707 2,790 119 6,079 9,695 

 
 
 

 
Note 26.1 Provisions for liabilities and charges analysis (Trust) 

 
 

 
 
 
Trust 

Pensions: 

early 

departure 

costs 

 
Pensions: 

injury 

benefits 

 
 

Legal 

claims 

 
 
 

Other 

 
 
 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April 2020 672 2,632 125 2,316 5,745 

Change in the discount rate 15 115 - - 130 

Arising during the year 89 179 104 7,945 8,317 

Utilised during the year (65) (122) (74) (659) (920) 

Reversed unused - - (36) (3,561) (3,597) 

Unwinding of discount (4) (14) - - (18) 

At 31 March 2021 707 2,790 119 6,041 9,657 

Expected timing of cash flows:      

- not later than one year; 87 160 119 6,041 6,407 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 354 661 - - 1,015 

- later than five years. 266 1,969 - - 2,235 

Total 707 2,790 119 6,041 9,657 

 
 

 
Legal claims are those recorded via NHS Resolution for employers liability claims. The "Other" class of provisions includes 

provisions for employee claims, banked annual leave and coroner's costs. 

 

The Pensions - early departures provision balances are calculated by using an estimate of life expectancy based on the  

Office of National Statistics Life Tables. The future payments for early retirements and injury benefits are also discounted 

to take into account the time value of money using HM Treasury's recommended discount rate, this was amended to - 

0.95% during the year. 
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Note 26.2 Clinical negligence liabilities 

 

At 31 March 2021, £16,177k was included in provisions of NHS Resolution in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of 

North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust (31 March 2020: £8,774k). 

 
 
 

Note 27 Contingent assets and liabilities  
Group 

   
Trust 

 

 31 March 

2021 

31 March 

2020 

 31 March 

2021 

31 March 

2020 

 £000 £000  £000 £000 

Value of contingent liabilities      

NHS Resolution legal claims (91) (108)  (91) (108) 

Gross value of contingent liabilities (91) (108)  (91) (108) 

Amounts recoverable against liabilities - -   - 

Net value of contingent liabilities (91) (108)  (91) (108) 

 
There were no contingent assets (2019/20 £0k) 

     

 
Note 28 Contractual capital commitments 

     

 Group   Trust  

 31 March 

2021 

31 March 

2020 

 31 March 

2021 

31 March 

2020 

 £000 £000  £000 £000 

Property, plant and equipment 1,368 1,050  136 167 

Intangible assets 39 34  39 34 

Total 1,407 1,084  175 201 
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Note 29 Financial instruments 

 
Note 29.1 Financial risk management 

 

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the year in 

creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider 

relationship that the Trust has with Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG's) and the way those CCG's are financed, the 

Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also financial instruments play a much more 

limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards 

mainly apply. The Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are 

generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking its 

activities. 

 
 

The Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally 

within the Trust’s standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Board of Directors. Trust treasury activity is 

subject to review by the Trust’s internal auditors. 

 

Currency risk 

The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK 

and sterling based. The Trust has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate 

fluctuations. 

 

Interest rate risk 

The Trust borrows from government for capital expenditure. The borrowings are for 1 – 25 years, in line with the life of the 

associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan. The Trust therefore 

has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations. 

 

Credit risk 

Because the majority of the Trust’s income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low exposure 

to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2021 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade 

and other receivables note. The increase in the provision for the impairment of receivables is documented in Note 19. 

 

Liquidity risk 

 
The Trust’s operating costs are incurred under contracts with CCG's, which are financed from resources voted annually 

by Parliament. The Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its prudential borrowing limit. The 

Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks. 
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Note 29.2 Carrying values of financial assets (Group) 

 
 
 
Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2021 

 
 

Held at 

amortised 

cost 

 
 
 

Total book 

value 

 £000 £000 

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 3,827 3,827 

Cash and cash equivalents 25,838 25,838 

Total at 31 March 2021 29,665 29,665 

  

Held at 

amortised 

 
 
 

Total book 

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2020 cost value 

 £000 £000 

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 6,020 6,020 

Cash and cash equivalents 11,797 11,797 

Total at 31 March 2020 17,817 17,817 

 

 
Note 29.3 Carrying values of financial assets (Trust) 

  

 
Held at 

amortised 

 

Total book 

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2021 cost value 

 £000 £000 

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 15,854 15,854 

Cash and cash equivalents 25,213 25,213 

Total at 31 March 2021 41,067 41,067 

  

Held at 

amortised 

 
 
 

Total book 

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2020 cost value 

 £000 £000 

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 19,050 19,050 

Cash and cash equivalents 10,048 10,048 

Total at 31 March 2020 29,098 29,098 
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Note 29.4 Carrying values of financial liabilities (Group) 

 

 
Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2021 

 

Held at 

amortised 

cost 

 
 

Total 

book value 

 £000 £000 

Obligations under finance leases 4,229 4,229 

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 12,110 12,110 

Total at 31 March 2021 16,339 16,339 

  

Held at 

amortised 

 

 
Total 

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2020 cost book value 

 £000 £000 

Obligations under finance leases 3,180 3,180 

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 7,873 7,873 

Total at 31 March 2020 11,053 11,053 

 

 
Note 29.5 Carrying values of financial liabilities (Trust) 

 
 
Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2021 

 

Held at 

amortised 

cost 

 

Total 

book value 

 £000 £000 

Obligations under finance leases 13,453 13,453 

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 11,520 11,520 

Total at 31 March 2021 24,973 24,973 

  

Held at 

amortised 

 

 
Total 

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2020 cost book value 

 £000 £000 

Obligations under finance leases 13,167 13,167 

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 7,754 7,754 

Total at 31 March 2020 20,921 20,921 
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Note 29.6 Maturity of financial liabilities 

The following maturity profile of financial liabilities is based on the contractual undiscounted cash flows. This differs to the 

amounts recognised in the statement of financial position which are discounted to present value. 

 
 

 Group   Trust  

 31 March   31 March 

31 March 

2021 

2020 

restated* 

 31 March 

2021 

2020 

restated* 

£000 £000  £000 £000 

In one year or less 12,928 8,609  14,232 10,142 

In more than one year but not more than five years 2,003 2,341  8,033 7,949 

In more than five years 4,801 826  7,365 4,402 

Total 19,732 11,776  29,630 22,493 

 

* This disclosure has previously been prepared using discounted cash flows. The comparatives have therefore been 

restated on an undiscounted basis. 

 
Note 30 Losses and special payments  

 
2020/21 

 
2019/20 

 

Group and trust 

Total number Total value 

of cases  of cases 

 
Total number Total value 

of cases  of cases 

 Number £000  Number £000 

Losses    

Cash losses 175 151  244 87 

Fruitless payments and constructive losses 22 1  40 40 

Stores losses and damage to property 61 90  243 33 

Total losses 258 242  527 160 

Special payments    

Ex-gratia payments 18 82  7 32 

Total special payments 18 82  7 32 

Total losses and special payments 276 324  534 192 
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Note 31 Related parties 
 

The Department of Health and Social Care is a related party as it is the parent department for the Group. Other related 

categories include local Clinical Commissioning Groups and local provider NHS Trusts.   Transactions have taken place 

with other public bodies, with material transactions taking place with HMRC and local authorities during the year. The 

Foundation Trust also has its own registered charity. The Foundation Trust board is also charged with governance of 

the Charity. 

 
The North East Ambulance Service Trust Fund is registered with the Charity Commission, Charity number 1078575. The 

balance of funds as at 31st March 2021 is £254k (31 March 2020 £148k). The Trust Fund accounts are not consolidated 

into the Foundation Trust accounts due to the immaterial value of these funds. As at 31st March 2021, there is £75k owed 

from the Charity to the Trust. 

The shares in the subsidiary company North East Ambulance Service Unified Solutions Limited comprise a 100% holding 

in the share capital consisting of 100 ordinary £1 shares. This wholly owned subsidiary has had material transactions 

with the Trust during the year, in particular in reference to the loan and sale of vehicles and other assets. 

 
 
 

Other related parties include: 

Chairman is Director Rail, at Serco UK and Europe (Group spend £28K) 

Non-Executive Director is Apprenticeship Lead at Health Education England (Group income £2.007m) 

 

Note 32 Public Dividend Capital 
 

The Trust is required to pay a dividend to the Department of Health equal to 3.5% of the average of opening and 

closing net relevant assets for the year. As set out in the Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual, the calculation of 

the dividend excludes the average cash held with the Government Banking Service. 

The impact of the Inventories balance of DHSC provided PPE and the NBV of Covid-19 assets are excluded from the 

calculation 

2020/21 

£000 

Opening Capital and Reserves (Total Assets Employed) 45,941  

Closing Capital and Reserves (Total Assets Employed) 47,256 

Average net assets 46,599 (A) 

Average cash balance held in Government Banking Service Accounts 32,072 (B) 

Average relevant net assets 14,527 (A-B) 

Dividend (3.5% of average relevant net assets) 509  

 
The forecast Dividend payment as notified to the Department of Health was £1.029m. Therefore there is a receivable due 

to be paid to the Trust of £520k which will be deducted from the September 2021 dividend payment. PDC payments 

have fallen from 2019/20 £1,012k in the main due to significant increases in cash balances in the year as providers 

received 12 months of income in by month 11. 
 

The above calculation is based on pre-audited accounts and is not adjusted for results in the audited accounts. 

 
Note 33 Prior period adjustments 

 

 
The SOCITE has been updated to include a £39k adjustment for the period 2018/19. This relates to an amendment made 

to the Subsidiary accounts made after submission of the Group accounts. This resulted in a reduction of expenditure of 

£39k and therefore the brought forward I&E reserve has been increased by this amount. 
 

There are also restatements to notes 43.7 Maturity of Financial Liabilities to show undiscounted cashflows. 

 
Note 34 Events after the reporting date 

 
There were no events after the reporting date as at draft accounts stage. 
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Glossary of Terms 
 

Abbreviation Definition Abbreviation Definition 

AACE Association of Ambulance Chief 

Executives 

DVLA Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency 

A&E Accident and Emergency EAA Equality Analysis Assessment 

AP Advanced Practitioner EDI Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 

AQI Ambulance Quality Indicator EDS2 Equality Delivery System 2 

ARP Ambulance Response Programme ENEI Employers Network for Equality and 

Inclusion 

ASHP Air Source Heat Pump EOC Emergency Operations Centre 

BAF Board Assurance Framework ePCR Electronic Patient Care Record 

BAME Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic EPRR Emergency Preparedness Resilience and 

Response 

BWV Body Worn Video FFP3 Filtering Face Pieces 3 mask 

CARE Clinical Annual Record of Excellence GP General Practitioner 

CAS Clinical Assessment Service GMP Guaranteed Minimum Pension 

CCaT Clinical Care and Transport HART Hazardous Area Response Team 

CCG Clinical Commissioning Group HR Human Resources 

CCM Clinical Care Manager ICP Integrated Care Partnership 

CETV Cash Equivalent Transfer Value ICS Integrated Care System 

CFR Community First Responder IUC Integrated Urgent Care 

CIP Cost Improvement Programme LCFS Local Counter Fraud Specialist 

CMP Carbon Management Plan MIG Medical Interoperability Gateway 

CPR Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation MSK Musculoskeletal 

CQC Care Quality Commission NAA Northern Ambulance Alliance 

CQUIN Commissioning for Quality and 

Innovation 

NEAS / Trust North East Ambulance Service NHS 

Foundation Trust 

CPAD Community Public Access Defibrillator NEASUS North East Ambulance Service Unified 

Solutions 

DNACPR Do not attempt cardiopulmonary 

resuscitation 

NICE National Institute of Clinical Excellence 
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Abbreviation Definition 

NSECH Northumbria Specialist Emergency 

Care Hospital 

OD Organisational Development 

OHS Occupational Health Service 

PALS Patient Advice and Liaison Service 

PCR Polymerase Chain Reaction 

PPE Personal Protective Equipment 

QI Quality Improvement 

QSIR Quality, Service Improvement and 

Resdesign 

ROSC Return of Spontaneous Circulation 

RRV Rapid Response Vehicle 

SDAT Sustainable Development 

Assessment Tool 

SEQOHS Safe, Effective, Quality Occupational 

Health Service 

SI Serious Incident 

SJR Structured Judgement Review 

SMT Senior Management Team 

STEMI Segment Elevation Myocardial 

Infarction 

STF Sustainability and Transformational 

Funding 

VPN Virtual Private Network 
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North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 
Ambulance Headquarters 
Bernicia House 
Goldcrest Way 
Newburn Riverside Business Park 
Newburn 
Newcastle Upon Tyne 
NE15 8NY 

 

Tel: 0191 430 2000 
Website: www.neas.nhs.uk 

http://www.neas.nhs.uk/
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